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CHAIR'S STATEMENT

Delivering for the

UK economy

The British Business Bank
helps to drive economic
growth by making finance
markets work better for
smaller businesses,
wherever they are in the
UK and wherever they are
on their business journey,
enabling them to prosper
and grow.

i In2018/19 the British Business

* Bank began putting in place
the enhanced infrastructure and
processes required by a rapidly
growing organisation, while at the
same time delivering increased
volumes and diversity of finance
far UK smaller businesses.

These smaller businesses are of huge
importance to our economy; they
provide the majority of private sector
jobs and turnover, and they make up
over 399 of the ceuntry’s business
poputation.

Chair's statement
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In 2018/19 the British
Business Bank began
putting in place the
enhanced infrastructure
and processes required
by a rapidly growing
organisation,
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New objectives

From 1 April 2018, cur Shareholder
gssigned the Bank two new
objectives:

- tobethe centre of expertise on
smaller business finance in the UK,
providing advice and support to the
Government

- toidentify and help reduce regional
imbalances in access to finance for
smaller businesses across the UK.

Inthe last financial year, we began

to deliver against these abjectives.
This is detailed in our strategic report,
which describes our programmes
toincrease finance - and awareness
of finance options - in specific UK
regions, our delivery of a number of
crass-government programmes and
amarked (ncrease inour research
and analysis,



Chair's statement

As part of this, in February 2019 we
published cur VC & Female Founders
reportin partnership with the BVCA
and Diversity VC, which identified
specific barriers faced by female-led
firms in accessing venture capital. Our
coordination and convening of 45 VC
firms 1o produce this ground-breaking
research was a good illustration of
how well placed we are to set the
agenda and lead the conversation, in
partnership with the finance industry.

Additional funding for delivery

Over the past year, the Government
has demonstrated confidence in the
British Business Bank's capability
to deliver for smaller businesses.

Aswell as an additional £200m of
funding aliocated to offset potential
reductions in European funding to

UK smaller businesses, we have

been asked to suppertup to £1bn of
smaller housebuilder finance, working
alongside the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government,
and Homes England. The Government
also committed to funding our

Start Up l.ozns programme until 2021
at the 2018 Autumn Budget,

We launched a new subsidiary, British
Patient Capital (BPC), in June 2018,
with £2.5bn of funding and a mission
to enable long-term investment in
innovative UK companies so they
become successful world-class
husinesses, We appointed the CEQ
of British Business Investments,
(Catherine Lewis La Torre, as CEQ of
BPCin October 27018, bringing both
businesses under her leadership.
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Our people

We responded tc our expanding

role and responsibilities by creating
over 80 new roles and growing our
cclleague numbers to over 320.

This rapid expansion has required

us to Lpgrade our processes and
infrastructure, and alongside that we
have also developed a renewed focus
on enabling our people to develop and
grow along with the organisation,

We have continued the integration
of the Start Up Loans Company
following our merger in Aprii 2017,
This involved a greater sharing

of resources, and consoclidating
our respective Londan operations
frem two officesinto asingle new
premisesin December 2018.

The Board

Caroline Green MBE stepped down

as Non-executive Director in January
2019, and | would like to thank her for
her valuable insights and contribution
to the work of the Bank since 2013,

Five years on from the creation of
the British Business Bank, we have
built an crganisation thatis making a
substantial difference to businesses
across the UK. From the earliest
stages - funding start-ups - through
to providing the longer-term patient
capital that businesses at the larger
end of the SME scale require, we are
playing a crucial part in enabling their
growth and success.

LA P HFLE

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Delivering more widely,
building our activity

Qur results for 2018/19
show increased
performance and delivery
for the UK's smaller
businesses.

Over the last five years, the British
Busiriess Bank has built a strong track
record, intervening to improve finance
markets for smaller UK businesses,

' At the end of the last financial year,

over 89,000 businesses were
benefiting from £6.6bn of finance
supported by the British Business
Bank, As shown by the many examples
inthis report, our interventions apply
to a wide variety of businesses of all
sizes and stages - fromstartup
businesses who received mentoring
and finance from our Start Up Loans
programme to high-growth scale-ups
accessing, perhaps, multiple later-
stage funding rounds.

Chief Executive's statement

In 2018719, we increased our support
for smaller businesses through our
national and regional programmes,
helping us to deliver successtully
against our objectives:

—- \We made new commiiments of
£957m, coniributing to an increase
of 27% (n the total stock of finance
supported through our
programmes.

- We provided 91.5% of our support
through smaller banks, non-bank
lenders, alternative lenders and
equity providers, helping to
improve diversity and chaice.

— Our dedicated regional Tunds
supported over £160m of finance,
helping to address regional
imbalances.

— We saw awareness of the Bank
amongst businesses that may need
finance increase from 13% to 28%.

- We provided advice and support
to Government on an increasing
number of cross-government
projects, and published high profile,
ground-breaking research into UK
finance markets, including important
research on gender diversity in the
Venture Capital sectar.

- We generated an adjusted return
on capital of 3.6%b, ahead of our
target of 2.5%.

British Business Bank's financial
statements for the year show a net
operating profit of £42.4m (before
adjustment for ECF [oan commitments
and interest payable) and a profit
before tax of £81.2m.
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A growing regional impact

Our regional funds have begun 1o
make a significant contribution to the
areas they support, with the Northern
Powerhouse and Midlands Engine
Investment Funds providing 16%6

and 20% of the equity finance deals
in their respective regions in 2018.
We also invested for the first timein

a fund wholly dedicated to businesses
located in Northern Ireland. Our new
UK Network, which we set upin
autumn 2018, is providing valuable
feedback cn regional and local
finance markets and promoting

cur information products to smaller
businesses across the country.

Working across Government

The Government increasingly calls
on our expertise in smaller business
finance markets to help it fulfil
specific policy priorities. Last year,
this included support for new
housebuilding through our ENABLE
Guarantee programmes, and for
technology toimprove national
security through our National Security
Strategic Investment Fund. We also
continue to provide inputinto
important ongoing initiatives

such as the Industrial Strategy and
EU Exit planning.

Providing valuable research
into markets

2018/19 was a strong year for cur
research and analysis of markets,
with February 2019's V{ & Female
Founders reportin particular setting
the agenda for the VCindustry. In the
coming year we will increase activity
further, including publishing major
research into export finance for
smaller businesses and the feasibility
of greaterinvestmentin patient
capital funds by defined contribution
pension schemes.

Building demand

Qur provision of information to smaller
businesses underwent a step-change
in summer 2018 when we introduced
our new online Finance Hub, which
encourages and enables growth
businesses to find, understand and
get the right source of finance they
need. As a key element of our new
Demand Development Unit, the Hub
has quickly proved its effectiveness,
with 77% of users saying they would
recommend the platform.
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Delivering more patient
capital

Last yearwe putin place the last of
the measures recommended by 2017
Patient Capital Review, launching a
new £500m Managed Funds
Programme, a £100m Regional Angeis
Programme and cur £2.5bn British
Patient Capital (BPC) programme,
BPCis already delivering strongly,

and made 12 commitments totalling
£333m over the year.

In 2018/18, the British Business Bank
has grown rapidly, both in scope and
delivery. The depth of that delivery -
from the Start Up Loans programme
providing £500m of loans since 2012,
our Enterprise Finance Guarantee
celebratingits 30,000 businesses
funded milestone, to patient capital
programmes to help ambiticus
high-growth companies become the
world-class businesses of tomarrow
- means we are well placed to support
UK smaller businesses across every
stage of develepment now and in
the future.

ZTHT AN ot ~

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

'L 4

The British Business Bank
has grown rapidly in both
scope and delivery.

' 4
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Strategic report

‘Strategic report

Our mission and objectives

~ The British Business Bank’s mission is to help drive
economic growth by making finance markets work
better for smaller businesses! - wherever they are
in the UK and wherever they are on their business

" journey - enabling them to prosper and grow.

in 2018/19 the Bank had six kéy objectives:

Increase the supply
of finance

to smalter businesses where
markets don’t wark well

Encourage and enable
SMEs

to seek the finance best
suited to their needs

1. Businesses with a turnover of up to £100m

Help to create a more

diverse finance market

for smaller businesses, with
greater choice of options
and providers

Be the centre of expertise
on smaller business finance
in the UK

providing advice and support
to Government

Identify and help to reduce
regional imbalances
in access to finance

for smaller businesses acrass
the UK

Achieve the Bank's other
abjectives whilst managing
taxpayers  money efficiently

within a robustrisk
management framework
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Our smaller business finance programmes

QOur Sharehoider, BEIS, measures
our success by assessing the
performance of all the assets we
manage, and this strategicreport
takes the same approach,

We act as agents for these other
programmes, which include the
ENABLE programme, Enterprise
Finance Guarantees and the
Northern Powerhouse, Midlands
Engine and Cornwall and Isles

of Scilly Investment Funds.

The British Business Bank provides
and manages a wide range of smaller
business finance programmes for the
Government. This includes programmes
both on cur own balance sheetand cn
those of Government departments -
primarily the Department for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS).

Qur programmes are described below.

Debt

StartUp Loans

Loans and mentoring to
help people start their
own businesses or become
self-employed.

Enterprise Finance
Guarantee
Government-backed debt
finance for viable smaller

pusinesses lacking security.

ENABLE Guarantees
Guarantees which reduce
the amount of regulatory
capital that participating
providers need to hold
for their loans to small
businesses, so that they
are able to provide more
fending.

ENABLE Funding
Cost-effective access to
funding through the capital
markets for smaller fenders,
meaning they can provide

more finance to businesses.

Investment Programme
Support toincrease the
volume and diversity of
finance for smaller
businesses by enabling
the growth of new and
alternative lenders.

Regional debt funding
Microc and small businass
debt finance in the
Northern Powerhouse,
Midlands Engine, and
Cornwall and Isles of
Scilly regions.

Average size of facility to smaller

businesses - debt
As of December 2018

d Regional
Debt Funds
£313k

ENABLE

Funding
£21k

ENABLE
Guaraniees

£1.3m

Investment
Programme

114k Enterprise

Finance
Guarariee
£107k

Equity

Angel CoFund

Equity co-investment
alongside business angel
syndicates toincrease the
volume of early stage
finance available to smaller
businesses.

Regional Angels
Programme

Support to reduce regional
imbalancesin accessto
early stage equity finance
across the UK

Enterprise Capital Funds
Funds which increase

the supply of early

stage venture capital

to high growth potential
businesses and lower
barriers for fund managers
entering the VC market,

British Patient Capital
Investmentsinlong-term
venture and growth funds,
enabling high growth firms
todevelop into world-class
businesses

Managed Funds
lmvestments into Funds of

- Funds designed to increase

institutional funding of
long-term patient capital
for high growth innovative
businesses.

Regional equity funding
Equity finance in the
Northern Powerhouse,
Midlands Engine, and
Cornwall and Isles of
Scilly regions.

Average size of facility to
smaller businesses - equity
As of December 2018

Managed
Fungds*
n/a

British
g Patient Capital
£3.4m.

Enterprise
. Capital Fund
Regionat El.2m
Equity

Funds

£1lm

* Managed Funds programme was launchedin
May 2018 and the Bank expects to make its
firstinvestmentinearly 2018/20.




B British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2019

The state of the market

The number of SMEs fell te 5.7 million
at the start of 2018 - 0.5% lower
than at the start of 2017 and the

first annual reduction since 2000,
The economic environment has been
challenging, and confidence has
declined. The Bank of England reduced
its economic growth forecast for
2019 tc 1.2%, driven by weakening
investment intentions and EU exit-
related uncertainty. Nevertheless, our
2019 Small Business Finance Markets
repcrt found that 50% of smaller
businesses aimed to grow in 2019.

Flows of finance to SMEs remain
strong despite uncertainty about
the economic environment

2018 saw tatal flows of finance

to SMEs match or exceed thosein
2017, Gross hank lending remained
stable, while other forms of finance
continued to increase, though more
slowly thanin 2017 The value of
equity finance, asset finance and
market-based lending grew by 4%,
3% and 18% respectively in 2018.

Many smaller businesses remain
reluctant to use finance

SMES' continued refuctance to use
financeis driven by attitudes towards

. finance rather than circumstances,

73% of SMEs are willing to forgo
some growth to avoid berrowing,
and just 36% of smaller businesses
used external finance in 2018, down
from 38% in 2017. The cutcome of
this reluctance is that ngw finance
applications are ata record low.

By contrast, awareness of
alternatives to traditional finance
continued to grow in 2018, with
52% of small businesses aware of
peer-te-peer lending, 70% aware of
crowdfunding platforms, and 69%
aware of venture capital {up from
A47%, BO%, and G2% respectively
in 2017). This growth in awareness
is ane of our key ohiectives and an
essential first step in enabling SMEs
to seek the finance best suited to
their needs.

Strategic report

Access to finance is impartant

to enable SMEs to deliver on their
growth potential

Ensuring that growing businesses
can access the finance they need

is important for long-term UK
productivity and competitiveness,
Of those scale-up businesses that
grew their annual turnover by 100%
or more, 42% used equity finance
to help achieve that growth.

However, there is still room for

improvement in the financing

of businesses with high growth

potential. Despite the increase i
in equity finance as a propertion

of gross domestic product (GDP)
inrecent years, the UK remains
well behind the US, with equity
investment to GDP ratios at 0,299
and 0.42% respectively in 2017

There are considerable challenges
in enabling viable firms in many
parts of the UK to access the
finance they need

The UK-wide picture on small business
finance markets masks examples of
notable success in some focal areas,
but alse considerable challenges in
many parts of the UK.

Forres-based electronic design,
manufacturing and service support
company Makar Technolegies secured
£50,000 of finance through British Business
Bank EFG partner DSL Business Finance.
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In terms of debit, bank lending
volumes broadly match the regional
distribution of the small business
population.

tn terms of equity, high growth firms
are spread across the nations and
regions of the UK, but deals remain
concentrated in London. Almost half
{(46%;) of equity deals are in London
despite the fact that it accounts for
just 20% share of high growth firms,
Angel finance and venture capital (VC)
remains clustered in a relatively small
number of cities. This suggests that
there is more to be done teincrease
the reach of this type of finance, and
to support businesses with growth
potential in many parts of the UK,

The increasing use of alternatives

to traditional bank foans means that
the finance markets are more diverse
than before.

UK atthe startof 2018
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Our business model

Our expertise in finance markets for
smaller UK businesses allows us to
take an evidence-based and market-
led approach to addressing the
challenges faced by those businesses
when accessing finance. We need to
monitor finance markets continually
and have close engagement with
market players. This is increasingly
criticalin an uncertain economic
environment. Qur programmes are
reviewed regularly and, where
necessary, we adjust our existing
pragrammes - and introduce new
ones - torespond to market
requirements and changes.

In doing so we are guided by both
public policy objectives and private
sector requirements. We maintain an
appropriate balance between the two
by providing policy advice to ministers,
Government departments and
public-sector agencies on the one
hand, and carefully structuring
interventions tc unlock private

sector investment on the other,

In 2018719, the Bank established
British Patient Capital (BPC) as a
separate commercial subsidiary

tc enable long-term investment in
innovative companies across the UK.

BPC was launched with a care team
transferred from the Bank's Venture
Solutions division. It was seeded with
the VC Catalyst portfolio previously
meanaged by British Business
Investments.

The Bank has also created a new
Demand Development Unit (DDU).
This helps to stimulate demand by
engaging directly with smaller
businesses toinform them about
their finance options.

. The Start Up Loans Company, which

merged with the British Business Bank
last year, has continued its integration
by relocating, along with the Bank's

~ London operations, 1o a new

shared office space.

' { 4

Our expertise in finance
markets for smaller UK
businesses allows us to
take an evidence-based
and market-led approach to
addressing the challenges
faced by those businesses
when accessing finance.

'd 4
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OBJECTIVE Stock of finance for smaller

businesses

Increase supply of
finance in the UK 7

S|

g S.2br
Why itis important ‘ 43bn
When we make markets work better and help 3 b
smaller businesses to secure finance that they o 2
otherwise wouldn't get, we enable investment ! I

that benefits the entire UK economy.

o

i4/15 15716 16/7 0 17418 18/19

At a glance

British Patient Capital”’
fundsinvestedinto.

£6.6bn

Stock of finance supported,
as of end of March 2019

31

new commitments
made in 2018/19




Strateqgic report

Akey chjective of the Bankis to

boost the supply of finance for smaller
businesses in areas of the market

that don't work well. We measure

OUr suCcess against this objective by
measuring both how much finance

we ourselves deploy, and how much
the private sector centributes in
addition to this,

Each year, the Bank influences this
measurement by committing funding
through our programmes, Once we
have committed funding, our delivery
partners typically take a number of
years to draw the fundinc down as
they finance smaller businesses.

We then add the combined funds
drawn to the 'stock’ of finance.

When a borrower repays a loan or

an investmentis realised, the funds
can be returned to the Bank and
ather investors and will be taken

out of the stock of finance measure,

89,000+

over 89,000
businesses supported
as of March 2019
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Inarder to increase supply, we have
built up a wide range of delivery
partners who can get that finance to

the market. Over the past year we have

made new commitments of £957m.

As at the end of 2018/19, we had
£6.6bn of stock of finance supparted,
anincrease of 27% from £5.2bn the
previous year.

This increase was driven primarily

by the higher than expected leverage
across most programmes, with the
Investment Programme and the UK
Innovation investment Fund deing
particularly well in this respect, as
well as a higher number of ENABLE
Guarantees.

' {4

A key objective of the

Bank is to boost the supply
of finance for smaller
businesses in areas of the
market that don't work well.

r { 4

CASESTUDY ‘
Yorkshire Dama
Cheese

Halifax
Yorkshire
& Humber

Programme; Start Up Loans

Razan Al-Sous decided to set up
Yorkshire Dama Cheese after
fleeing war-torn Syria with her
husband and three childrenin
2012.

Arriving in Yorkshire, she struggled
to find work despite having a
degree in pharmacology. She
noticed how the halloumi cheese
sold in the UK was often of poor
quality and decided to start making
halloumi cheese using Yorkshire-
sourced milk instead.

She useda £7,500 StartUp Loan
to buy the equipment she needed.
Her products are available in
Morrisons and online, She has won
several awards including the Woarld
Cheese Award Gold Prize 2016 and
was nominated by former Prime
Minister David Cameron for
recognition on International
Women's Day 2015,
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™

CASESTUDY
Dartington Crystal
Holdings Ltd

Torrington
South West

Programme:
Enterprise Finance Guarantee

Basedin Torrington, North Devon,
Dartington Crystal was founded in
1967 andis aleading UK brand in
crystal and glassware.

5,

-;l‘!ﬁulu

)

As well as mouth-blown factory
products, Dartington also designs,
saurces and markets quality crystal
and glass from seiected Eurcpean
suppliers. The company services the
retail gift and table top sector as well
as many specialist B2Band
promotional markets.

In 2018, Dartington needed funding
to finance a management buyout and
approached Barclays, an accredited
lender under the British Business
Bank EFG Scheme. Dartington
received the funding in November
2018 and is now focusing on its
future growth,
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Debt

Start Up Loans

Sinceitbeganin 2012, the Start Up
Loans programme has delivered over
63,000 loans, providing over £500m
of funding to an average of 25
businesses aday. The programme
has contributed to the creation of
more than 75,000 jobs.

Combining the British Business

Bank with Start Up Leans in April
2017 has enabled us to take a more
integrated approach to supporting
microbusinesses, with the aim of
delivering the Covernment's
manifesto commitment of 75,000
StartUp Loans by 2020. The
programme was extended for a
further year at Autumn Budget 2018.

Enterprise Finance Guarantee

The Enterprise Finance Guarantee
(EFG)is our flagship debt programme,
Since its launch in 2009, it has
supported the provision of over
30,500 business foans to a value

of over £3.2bn.

It has a wide range of delivery
partrers, inciuding all the major high
street lenders, This means that it has
a broad reach, which makes it a useful
instrument for quickly targeting
specific market requirements.

The EFG pragramme has centinued
to add new delivery partners through
2018/18, including through its new
asset finance variant.

ENABLE Guarantees

The ENABLE Guarantee pragramme
entered into £550m of transactions
with three lendersin 2018/19.

We expanded ENABLE Guarantees to
facilitate loans specifically targeted
at the housebuilding sectorin 2017
and launched a new ENABLE Build
variant im April 2019, funded by the
Ministry for Housing, Communities
and Local Government (MHCLG).

ENABLE Funding

This year we entered intc one new
transaction for a total amount of
£150m under our ENABLE Funding
programme, bringing the total funding
we have committed to smaller finance
providers to gver £580m.

Since the first transaction in
September 2015, the programme
has supparted lending tomore than
31,750 businesses.

'L 4

We are working alongside
MHCLG and Homes England
to make available up to
£1bn of ENABLE Build
guarantees to increase
funding for smaller

" housebuilders.

' {4

CASESTUDY ‘

Bakedin

Basingstoke
South East

Programme: Start Up Loans

Joseph Munns and two friends
struck upon the idea of making
home-baking kits, inspired by
the rising popularity of recipe
boxes. The kits include cooking
instructions, ingredients and
baking equipment. The trio
began selling the recipe kits at
school fétes, market stalls and
street food festivals,

After using a Start Up Loan to fund
their first professional label run,
their products are now available
in hundreds of retailers across the
UK and as far afield as the USA,
Germany and Iceland. They have
launched The Baking Club, a
subiscription service that delivers
a home-baking kit through the
door, The kits include recipes by
world-renowned French chef
Michel Roux.
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Equity

Angel CoFund

Now in its seventh year cf operation,
the Angel CoFund has invested over
£280m in over 87 companies,
together with third party investors.
Its portfolio of high-growth businesses
is diverse, covering sectors such as
healthcare and life sciences, digital
media and infarmation technologies
(including Fintech), creative
industries, and food.

in 2018, the Angel CoFund delivery
team, who had previcusly been
secanded from the British Business
Bank, became permanent employees
of Akero Capitat Partners, anew
management vehicle with greater
independence and the ability to raise
additional commercial capital,

r {4

There are now 28 Enterprise
Capital Funds, with a total

Enterprise Capital Funds

There are now 28 Enterprise Capital
Funds, with a total investment capacity
of £1.2bn, including £500m of private
sector commitments. In 2018/19, the
ECF programme received in the region
of B85 enquiries, of which sixare
currently in early stage discussions and
two in the due diligence process.

British Patient Capital

British Patient Capital (BPC) launched
inlune 2018, having been announced
at the Chancellor's 2017 Autumn
Budget following the Patient Capital
Review. [t supports UK businesses
with high growth potential to access
the long-term financing that wil
enable them to grow into world-class

. businesses. Dver the next 10 years,

BP(C's investment aims to unlock a
total of £75bn of additional funding,

investment capacity of £1.2bn.

' {4

BPC was seaded with arcund £400m
of existing and approved venture

and growth fund commitments from
British Business investments (BBI).

a commercial subsidiary of the

British Business Bank. in the past
year, 12 investments were completed,
with BPC committing to over £330m
exceeding the very ambitious targets
set by Covernment.

Managed Funds

The Managad Funds programme,

part of BBI, was launched in May 2016.
The programme aims to invest £500m
in large-scale funds of funds to boost
the amount of patient capital available
to the UK's high growth potential
businesses.

nefits,

“ “made by.B
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British Patient Capital made £333m of new commitments to 12 VC funds in 2018/19

Fund managers o T_arget ma_rlg_f_efc_ Ba_\__r_r_k contribution

Crane [LLP Backing the neﬁ-génera-tibh-&érhb-\'tiéus inte!ligen{ tomput-\'h-g o - £25m
~ founders, solving large problems for the enterprise.,
Dawn Opps Early stage VC firm based in London investing in software-as-a-service £49m

{SaaS) and Fintech companies that develop world-leading technology
toimprove bhusiness value chains and productivity.

Draper Esprit A London-based listed venture capital firm that invests in high-growth £30m
early-stage and growth firms in the SaaS, hardware and deep tech,
digital health and wellness, and consumer technology sectors. 7 7

IQ Capital Il Cambridge-based venture capital firm that invests in UK deep tech £33m
across sectors including machine learning, Al, engineering and materials,
and data-focused propositions based on disruptive algorithms.

Nauta Sidecar Tech | Focusing on BZB software companies at late seed and £11m
Series Astages. _
NV M Investsin ambitious UK management teams to help them accelerate £20m

their growth and build successful businesses.

Afurther six funds have closed and are yet to be annourced F165m
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British Business Bank:
helping to create Unicorns

The British Business Bank is the largest UK based
Venture Capital Limited Partnerinvesting in UK VC,
A unicornis a privately held VC backed company
valued at more than $S1bn,

Through its investments the Bank has four UK companies within its current equity portfolio that have unicorn status.

Unicorn

IMPROBABLE

Description

Platform for third parties
to build vast virtual and
simulated worlds

Enterprise Capital Fund

Digital banking alternative UK Innovation

g P
Revo-’“‘ that includes a pre-paid InvestmentFund
debit card, currency
exchange, cryptecurrency  British Patient Capital
exchange and P2P payments
}_7 . Money transfer service British Patient Capital
Transferwise allowing private individuals

and businesses to send
money abroad without
hidden charges

Developer of computer Enterprise Capitat Fund
chips/ processing units
for use in Al and machine

learning applications

GRAPHCORE

British Patient Capital

The Bank's Programme B

Funding Partner

Amadeus

Balderton

Draper Esprit

Draper Esprit

Amadeus ASF

Draper Esprit

Strategic report
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The Bank's programmes have alsoinvested in the following companies which hecame valued at more than S1bndollars. These
companies were unicorns but are no longer privately held, having gone through a trade sale or listing on a public market,

Unicorn

& blueprism

MATCHES FASHION.COM

- v

mimecast:

unified email management

| PURPLE BRICKS

Description The Bank’s Programme

Developer of robotic process Legacy Fund
automation software that

transforms core business

processes to drive innovation

High street and anline British Patient Capital
fashion boutique ,
UK Innovation Investment

Fund
Leading international Enterprise Capital Fund
company specialising
in cloud-based email
management
Online real estate agent UK Innovation

that helpsitsclientstosell,  Investment Fund
buy, and let their properties

Funding Partner

RisingStars Growth Fund

SEP V (Scottish Equity
Partrners)

SEP IV (Scottish Eguity
Partners)

Dawn Capital

DN Capital
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OBJECTIVE

Increase diversity of
SME finance in the UK

Percentage through
non-Big-Five banks

90 89.7 915
50 033.0

Why itis important ;2

When we support a small business finance product, =0

or help an alternative provider, smaller businesses "

benefit from better choices and better terms that 20

increased competition can deliver. 10

2016/17  2017/1G 2018/19

16/17 datais for non-Big Four banks

Ataglance 1 3

rnew delivery partners
announced in 2018/19

£212m

in support of asset
finance

£275m

of facilities for three
challenger banks during
the year
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As well as boosting the supply of
finance to smaller businesses, it's
equally important to spread that
supply across arange of products,
providers, and funding scurces.
This diversity can improve access
to finance far a wider range of
businesses, improve the terms
and ease of use of finance for
small businesses, and increase the
likelihood that firms get the most
appropriate form of finance for
their needs.

The main way we measure our
performance for this objectiveis hy
gssessing the proportion of the stock
we support through smaller finance
providers. By increasing provider
diversity we also help with the other
dimensions of a diversified finance
market, as different providers will
offer a wider range of products and
tap alternative sources of funding.

In2018/19, we committed capital to
14 new funds across our venture capital
and growth capital programmes,
including to new and existing delivery
partners. Additionally, the Bank
announced new delivery partners
underits Investment Programme and
ENABLE programmes, and accredited
several new providers under EFG,

The total number of finance providers
we now work with is over 130,

V4
- Adiversity of finance

options can improve access
to finance for a wider range
of businesses and improve
the terms and ease of use of
finance for small businesses.

F { 4

CASE STUDY ‘

Doctify

London
London

Programme:
Enterprise Capital Fund

Doctify is a healthtech platform
built by medics for healthcare
providers, doctors and patients.

It was founded by two NHS
surgegcns when they spotted
the need for an anline platform
that links patients with the right
medical specialist.

Doctify allows patients to search
for a health specialist for 47
different medical specialities,
including cardiology, oncclogy
and pzediatrics. Patients can read
reviews from ather patients and
information about each provider,

Enterprise Capital Fund partner
Amadeus has led the last two
funding rounds for Doctify, with
fundingused to develop the
product, build the executive team
and fuel growth. Doctify is today
the UK's leading healthcare review
platform with sales doubling every
year for the past three years.
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CASESTUDY

FungiAlert

y " Rothamsted
Eastof England

Programme: Enterprise {apital Fund

FungiAlert provides soil and water
health screening. Their patented
technology. SporSenZ, is the first,
in-the-field sensor which samples
microorganisms in soil and water.

Analysis of samples alerts growers
to the risk of infection befare
visible symptoms appear, leading
to improved disease management
strategies, increased yields, and
improved soil-health.

In 2017, founders Kerry Weaver and
Angela de Manzanos raised £420,000
in a funding round led by Sussex Place
Ventures - £370,000 through an
Enterprise Capital Fund - to hire new
team members, purchase key
equipment and undertake field trials.

After {aunching their first product,
they raised a further £350,000 to
build an experienced ssles team,
support product development
research and to expand internationally.
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The Bank has worked to imprave
diversity by supporting finance
providers in the fellowing areas.

Challenger banks

While 2018 saw a generally Tavourable
commercial market for capital raising,
we continued to work with challenger
banks, including investing £25min a
tier 2 issue from Secure Trust Bank.

FinTech

In 2018/19 we committed £25m

t0 business cash advance provider
Liberis, As part of cur ongoing support
to the peer-to-peer (F2P) sector,

we extended the investment periad
for Funding Circle and Market Invoice,
and made a £20m commitment to ESF
Capital (operator of the ThinCats P2P
platform), participating alongside
institutional and retall investors.

Asset finance and asset-based

lending

We continued our support for these
types of finance in 2018719, including
a £12mcommitment from our BBI
investment Programme and £210m
through ENABLE Funding. We also
accredited nine providers under

the new asset finance variant of

our flagship Enterprise Finance
Guarantee programme.

Directlending funds

in 2018/19 British Business
Investments made three transactions
with a total value of £115m. This
takes our direct lending lifetime
commitments tc £529m.

'L 4

We accredited nine
providers under the new
asset finance variant of our
flagship Enterprise Finance
Guarantee programme,

' 4 4

CASE STUDY ‘

Bobbin Bikes

London
London

Programme:
British Business [nvestments -
Fintech

Founders Tom and Sian were
inspired to create Bobbin Bikes
afteratrip to Amsterdam.

Backin Lendon, they soon realised
that no shops were selling the
bikes they had grown to love in
the Netherlands.

Founded in 2007, Bobbin Bikes
offers arange of bicycles for
everyday cyclists across the
world and is known for its
brightly-coloured bikes with
long handlebars and baskets.

In 201% the team decided to add
anew online sales charnel to go
with their shep. They needed
financial support to buy more
stock and fulfil their new orders.
After contacting Funding Circle,
apartnerin British Business
Investments’ FinTech portfolio,
the teamreceivad £250,000 to
implement their growth plans.
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OBIECTIVE

l[dentity and help

to reduce regional
imbalances in access

to finance for smaller
businesses across the UK

Why itis important

There continue to be regional disparities, particularly
in the availability of equity and higher risk debt
investment. These are further exacerbated by a

lack of awareness and confidence among smaller
businesses seeking finance, especially those
outside London and the South East.

This means that businesses in these regiors,
and by extension these regions’ entire economies,
potentially miss out on growth opportunities.

At aglance

£200m+

Over £200m of NPIF investments

Regional funds

£400m

Northern Powerhouse
Investment Fund

£30m
Northern

Ireland Growth
Finance fund

£250m

E40m ---------- : Midland Engine
Cornwaltand Isles nvestment Fund
of Scilly investment

Fund

Together with programmes which fund
businesses thraoughout the UK, the Bank alsc
supports four regionally-dedicated funds.

£100m

Regional Angels
Programme launched
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Regional funds

The Bank has three regional
investment funds focused on specific
areas of the UK - the Northern
Powerhouse, Midlands Engine,

and the Cornwall and Isles of Scilly
Investment Funds. In addition, in
2018718, we invested for the first time
in a fund dedicated to Northern Ireland.

Northern Powerhouse

Investment Fund

We celebrated the second anniversary
of the £400m Northern Powerhouse
Investment Fund (NPIF) in February
2019, The fund has supported £203m
of finance for local smaller businesses,
including £99m from the private sector.

Midlands Engine Investment Fund
Inits first year the £250m Midlands
Engine Investment Fund (MEIF)
invested £41m through debt and
equity funds of which £17m came
from the private sector.

Invested through
MEIF investments

Cornwall and Isles of Sciily
Investment Fund

The Bank, working alongside the
Cornwall and Isles of Scilly Local
Enterprise Partnership, launched

the £40m Cornwall and Isles of Scilly
investment Fund (CloS) in June 2018.
The first loan frem the fund was made
in December 2018, and the first equity
investment in January 2019.

Northern Ireland

December 2018 saw the launch

of the Bank's first fund focusing
exclusively on supporting small
businesses in Northern Ireland.

The £30m fund comprised a £10.5m
investment from the Bank, £72.5m
from Invest Northern Ireland, and
£12m from the private sector,

'L 4

In 2018/18, we invested
forthe firsttime in a
fund dedicated to
Northern Ireland.

'L 4

CASESTUDY
Locate Bio

Nottingham
East Midlands

Fund Manager:
Mercia Technologies

Programme:
Midlands Engine Investment Fund

Locate Bio Ltd is a cell and gene
therapy company headquartered
within MediCity in Nottingham.

Following the appolintment of

Nick Staples as the new CEQ in late
2018, the cormpany sought funding
t¢ expand into the fast growing cell
and gene therapy field, utilising its
nextgeneration proprietary
technologies.

ltreceived a £2minvestment from
Mercia Technologies. with £400k
provided from the Midlands Engine
Investment Fund, Locate Bio used
the funding to help develop its
current pipeline of high value bone
fusion programmes, to further
developits IntraStem non-viral
gene therapy technolcgy, and
employ six more team members.



CASESTUDY
Sign Solutions

Redditch
West Midlands

Fund Manager: Midven

Programme:
Midlands Engine Investment Fund

Sign Solutions, specialists

in providing high quality
communication supportservices
for Deaf and hard of hearing
individuals in the publicand

private sector, secured investment

from venture capital firm Midven,
through the Midlands Engine
Investment Fund.

Historically facused on the provision
of face-to-face interpreters, BSL
translations and training, Redditch-
based Sign Solutions was founded
in 1998 and provides all types of
interpretation services, for deaf
people nationwide, 24 hours a day,
seven days a week, 365 days a year.

Sign Solutions aims to use its current
reputation as one of the market
leaders in this field to conguer the
rapidly growing video interpreting
market. With Midven’s investment,
seven jobs will be created at Sign
Sclutions over the next two years,
with further plans toinvestin
developing its service and make

it available in new areas.
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New programmes for
theregions

In2018/18, the Bank launched two
new initiatives under this objective.
These were:

- af100m Regianal Angels
programme (Octcber 2018)

- a UK Network {autumn 2018),

Regional Angels programme
Angel investors play a vital role in the
economy: they bring patient capital,
business experience and skills to
support the growth of smaller
businesses. However, The Treasury's
consultation - 'Financing growth in
innovative firms’, highlighted
continuing difficulties for businesses
in accessing earlier stage capitalin
some parts of the UK. Our new
Regional Angels programme is
designed to help develop clusters

of angels outside of Lendon and

the South East.

In 2018/19 we recaived a broad
regional spread of interestin the
programme, with a varied set of
investors including angel networks
and syndicates, equity platforms, and
angel funds and managers. We expect
to make cur first transactions through
the pregramme inearly 2019720,
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UK Network

Our UK Network was launched in
autumn 2018. This was a major step
for the Bank, meaning for the first
time we have a geographically
dispersed field-based team, with each
team member focused cn the smaller
business finance markets of their
particular region. The network will
help the Bank to understand and
improve finance markets at regional
and sub-regionat levels.

Over the relatively short period of
time that the UK Network has been
running, it has held more than 800
meetings with smaller businesses
and their intermediaries, presented at
over 50 external events, and attended
150 more, The network will use the
information and insight it gains from
these meetings tc inform the Bank's
ongoing regicnal strateqgy, and to
identify opportunities toimprove
collaboration and ce-ordination within
and across regions. it also pravides us
with a way to promote our smaller
business-facing products such as

the Finance Hub and the Business
Finance Guide,

Kalopsia Collective CIC
Programme: Enterprise Finance
Guarantee

Edinburgh based Kalopsiais a
sotial enterprise batch textile
manufacturer. Founded in 2012,
it creates white label goods with
the aimto produce ethical and
sustainable commercial products.
In 2018, it received funding
through Scottish Enterprise
Finance Guarantee partner DSL
Business Finance to expand its
number of employees and equip
the business with additional
machinery.

¥ {4

For the first time we have

“ageographically dispersed

field-based team, with
each team member focused

- on the smaller business

finance markets of their
particular region.

Y 4 4
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OBJECTIVE Awareness of the Bank

Encourage and enable  madimme ™
SMEs 1o seek the finance -
best suited to their needs .

Why itis important 15 . .
Seeking and finding the right finance, at the right 10

time, can enable businesses to diversify, expand .

or enter new markets, meaning they are more likely

to achieve their full growth potential.

2016 2017 2018

DataistorQ4incach year shown

Ataglance

200,000+

visits to the Finance Hub

90,000+

unigue visits to the
Business Finance Guides'
website
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To help us achieve this objective, we
created a new Demand Development
Unit (DDUW) inautumn 2018. The DDU
aims to help stimulzte demand for
smaller business finance by engading
directly with smaller businesses, and
encompasses Digital and Cirect
Marketing, Brand, Events, Partner

marketing, and the UK Network (UKN).
It is headed by our first Chief Marketing

Officer, appointed in early 2019/20.

We group our interventions under
this obiective under four stages of
a process aimed at driving demand
for finance amongst UK smaller
businesses:

— Awareness - building awareness

of the Bank as a provider of trusted

informaticn on finance opticns

- Consideraticn - becoming the
infarmation pravider of choice
for UK smaller businesses

- Usage - ensuring the content
we provide is easy to find and
understand

- Outcomes - seeing changesin
how smaller businesses seek and
use finance,

Awareness

In 2018, smaller businesses became
increasingly aware of the British
Business Bank, with prompted
awareness amongst businesses that
might seek finance growing from
13% at the end of 2017/18 10 28%
at the end of 2018/18.

JAO R

Awareness of peer-to-peer
crowdfunding amongst SMEs
in 2018, up from 60% in 2017

There are a numhber of measures
which contributed to this growing
awareness, including marketing
campaigns, a new UKN and
aprogramime of events,

Campaigns

We ran three major social

media campaignsin 2018/19 -
#GoodtoGrowy, #RejectRejection

and #SmallBizWonders - to champion
and celebrate smaller businesses,
while driving traffic to our information
products. These campaigns used
mechanisms and channels such as
Facebook live, Twitter chats and
sponsorship of Small Business
Advice Week,

#GocdtoGrow was particularly
successful, driving a 479% uplift
insccial traffic referrals to the
Finance Huh.

2018/19 also saw the first British
Business Bank-branded paid
campaign, with social media and paid
search helping to support the launch
of its new Finance Hub. The paid
campaign drove more than 200,000
site visits and over 2,750 Finance
Finder Tool completions, with
advertising views of more than 80m.
We also continued to support the
Start Up Lcans programme with paid
campaigns, driving over 200,000 site
visits through a mix of paid search,
paid social display advertising.

'L 4

#GoodtoGrow was our

-most successful campaign,
- driving a 479% uplift

in social traffic referrals

- to the Finance Hub.
W /4

CASESTUDY ‘
Hoverdale

Leicester
East Midlands

Programme:
Bank Referral Scheme

Hoverdale makes hard metals
and wear-resistant products for
the mining and manufacturing
industries.

For more than 40 years, they
have bean the industry leaders
in hard-wearing conveyor

belt equipment

From their Leicestershire base
they supply materials acrgss the
UK and internationally to some of
the world's biggest companies.

Requiring growth capital to hire
new salespeople, founder Michaal
Parker was turned down by his
bank. Referred to Funding Options
throughthe Bank Referra! Scheme,
he received £25,000 allowing
production and operations to
continue as usual,

Continued growth meant
Hoverdale next turned directly
to LendingCrowd, a peer to peer
lending partner of Funding
Options, for additional funding
to cover their expansion.
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UK Network

we launched our new UKN in autumn
2018 introducing & new regional
operating mode! for the Bank - a
geographically dispersed team, with
mobile field-based workers. This gives
us the benefit of having a presence
across the entire UK to support our
‘demand' and 'eco-system’ measures
within each English region and the
devolved naticns.

Events

By attending events across the
country, we are able to speak directly
to smaller businesses, theirinfluencers
and advisors, potential and current
delivery partners, and local finance and
business communities. This enables
us to raise aur profile with these
audiences, as well as providing them
with information on finance choices.

Media profile

we raise awareness of the Bank and
its programmes through a pro-active
media engagement programime

for senior spokespeaple, By targeting
business, financial and specialist
media we deliver our messagestoa
high number of key stakeholders and
smaller businesses. Over the course
of the year, the Bank was coveredin
nearly 5,000 articles across national,
regional and specialist print, cnline
and broadcast channels. The Autumn
Budget 2018 and our VC & Female
Founders report contributed
significantly to high volumes of
manthly coverage for the Bank in
October 2018 (795 articles) and
March 2018 (978 articles),

€100k

Number of people
reached through British
Business Bank attendance

atevents .

Consideration

In 2018719 we focused an providing
information through the Finance Hub,
the Business Finance Guide and Start
Up Loans,

The Finance Hub is aimed at
businesses looking to grow rapidiy,
while the Business Finance Guide

is used mastly by businesses at the
start-up stage, We also offer Start Up
Loan recipients dedicated mentoring
for 12 months sa they can get their
new business off to the beststart,

The Business Finance Guide was first
published in 2014 after the Bank and
the ICAEW identified a need to provide
clear, unbiased information on finance
options for smaller businesses, The
Finance Hub, launched in summer
2018 and backed by researchinto the
way today’s aspiring business leaders
access informationin the digital age,
provides engaging, jargon-free
content, infographics and videcs,

as well as evenrtlistings to allow small
businesses to grow their networks.

Usage

Customer service surveys for the
Bank's main online direct channel -
the Finance Hub - have generated
very pasitive responses: 69% of
respandents found the information
they were looking for; 74% found the
information useful; and 77% would
recommend the site to others.

The Business Finance Guide is now
running on-site surveys, with initial
results showing the majority of users
found the information provided useful
and easy to find.

The UKN alsc engages with smaller
businesses and their intermediaries,
to find out how our products are
understood and being used, and
provide feedback data so we can
refine and improve our offering.

Strategicreport

Outcomes

We use our annual business finance
survey to measure how SMEs seek out
and use finance. As awarenessis an
essential first stepin the process of
applying for finance, the survey locks
at the average awareness among
smaller businesses of six products -
leasing, venture capital. business
angels, peer-to-peer lending,
crowdfunding and mezzanine finance.
Awareness of these Increased from
50% in October 2017 to 56%in
October 2018,

Our 2019 Small Business Finance
Markets report also found growth

in awareness of many alternatives

to traditional finance. Awareness af
peer-to-peer lending grew from 4796
10 52%, of crowdfunding from 650%
to 70%, and of venture capital by 62%
to 68% year-on-year. These increases
are particularly encauraging, coming
in a year inwhich much of our focus
has been toward raising awareness

of non-traditional finance options.

Our followers on Twitter and Linkedin
grew by 43% and 123% respectively
during 2018718, comparing favourably
with average growth of 11% for
corporate accounts on each platform,

' { 4

Followers on Twitter and
Linkedin grew by 43% and
123% respectively during
2018/13, comparing
favourably with average
growth of 11% for corporate
accounts on each platform.

' {4
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CASE STUDY

Appa Me

Programme: Bank Referral Scheme

Imran Umar setup Appa Me in 2010
to provide essential services for
Deaf and disabled people,
providing training and services

to councils, large corparations

and banks.

N

Toexpand, Imran lcoked to his bank
for a loan. Because the business had
never borrowed before, a low credit
rating meant the locan was turned
down. After being referred to the
Alternative Business Funding
portal, Imran secured a £25,000
loan from Fleximize,

The loan meant Appa Me could

expand 10 a new office with three
training spaces, a dedicated job
search area, and room for remote
videc Sign Language interpretation.

The larger of fice means clients now
come from as far as Canterbury to
access services,
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OBJECTIVE Number of times the Bank

Be the Centre Of was discussed in Parliament

Nc. ot
times discussed

expertise on smaller

180 174

business finance in the =

120

UK, providing advice

80

and support to the :

20

Government

2016/17  2017/18  201E8/19

Why it is important

Being the centre of expertise on smaller business
finance gives us the knowledge and credibility

to achieve our other objectives, and to help the
Government deliver key policy priorities.

Ataglance ' ,, . 174 .
B numberoftifrj'esthre,'

" ‘Bank was discussed in
: Parliamentin 2018/19

6,300+
Downloads of our key reports £ 1 b
and infographics in 2018/19 n
Working with Homes England
and MHCLG to provide

a new ENABLE Build
programme, providing
up to £1bn of guarantees
to suppoert smaller
housebuilder finance
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We use insights gained from our
extensive research and analysis
programme to produce publications
about UK smaller business finance
markets, take part in policy debates,
and to provide input into cross-
governmental projects.

The Bank's closeness to smaller
business finance markets makes it
uniguely placed to advise Government
on their workings. Many of our
employees also have significant
expertise and experience of working
inindustries and institutions that
finance smaller businesses,

This alfows us to work alongside key
Gavernment, industry, academia,
thinktank and media stakeholders
toshape and inform access to
finance debates.

Our activities are grouped into four
finked areas of focus:

— Research and publications
- Opinion engagement
- Policy engagement

- Project and product delivery

Research and publications

In 2018712 we published five major
reports, with positive national,
regional and specialist press coverage,
and social media driving significant
online views,

Qur UK VC and Female Founders
report, published in partnership with
Diversity VCand the BVCA, gained a
particularly high profile. it featuredin
well over 200 media articles delivering
100% share of voice for the Bank's
spokespeople and 97% delivery of our
key messaqge. It was referred to cn
social media by Philip Hammond, Liz
Truss, HM Treasury, BEIS, Beauhurst,
and arange of well-known private
sector fund managers.

Opinion engagement

Our people engaged personally with
key pclicy makers in the Government,
and opinion farmers in thinktanks,
industry and academia through a
series of meetings and events.

This enabled us to bring together
important groups, exchange views,
lead debate and raise awareness

of the Bank’s position.

Where appropriate, we collaborated
with other thought leaders in smaller
business finance and other related
policy areas to achieve this.

Ronimix Concrete
Programrme: ENABLE Funding

Ronimix Concrete Ltdis an
Essex-based, batch on-site
concrete, screed and concrete
pump hire operator, running a
modern fleet of six lorries and
three in-line concrete pumps.

In 2018, Ronimix decided to
purchase three new concrete
mixer lorries, and received just
over £200,000 of asset-based
finance from Simply, supported by
British Business Bank's ENABLE
Funding programme.

The Bank's activities were discussed
more than 170 times in Parliament,
with key themes including Start Up
Loans, Furopean funding of UK smaller
businesses, digital and technology,
and the rural economy. The Bank was
invited as a speaker for 32 events and
hosted 17 events over the course of
the year.

Phitip Hammond & @PhiipHammondUK - Feb 4 v
in #Budget2017 1 commissioned research into barriers facing women in
accessing venture capital. @BritishBBank found #FemaleFounders pitching for
venture capital get less funding than male founders. We must address this issue
head on to realise the true potential for our aconomy.

o

Of all investment committee decisions:

CONSIDER {ONSIDER CONSIDER
ALL-FEMALE MIXED-GENDER ALL-MALE
TEAMS TEAMS TEAMS

BRITISH

. . { 198 _'I
piveasitrve (il T 74 WSS

#VCFemaleFounders

Our ground-breaking VC and Female Founders research was widely referred
to by influentizl opinion-formers on sacial media.
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CASE STUDY ‘
Evezy

Birmingham
Midlands

Pragramme:
Enterprise Capital Fund

Birmingham based Evezy

is an all-inclusive electric car
subscription service, aiming

to accelerate electric vehicie
adoption by providing a flexible,
transparentand hassle-free
subscription.

After some initial investment, it
needed further funding in order
to expand to new locations, invest
in technology and grow market
share. Evezy secured £2.1 million
in funding from Enterprise Capital
Fund partner Accelerated Digital
Ventures in December 2018,

Securing this funding meant Evezy
could increase its fleet by over
200%, vehicle collection points
from two to ten and its vehicle
models from two to six. it also
allowed the business toopena
new office in Leamington Spa,

and hire 18 new employees,

British Business Bank Non execdtive Director
Piers Linney providing advice to Liverpgol-
based Rejuiceinzate as part of the Bank's 2018
Good to Grow campaign,

Policy engagement

We contributed to and supported a
haost of Government palicy initiatives
in 2018719, including:

- Industrial Strategy - we fedinto
the sector deals, and contributed
to the Industrial Strategy Grand
Chaffenges

" — EUexitstrategy - we advisedan

conditional European Investment
Fund replacement {inciuding
venture and debtj and contingency
planning with HM Treasury and the
Department for Business, Energy
and industrial Strategy

— Regional develgpment - we
informed Whitehall discussions
on the existing use of Eurapean
Regional Development Funds and
continue to influence thinking cn
future arrangements

— Creditrisk - we established, hosted
and chaired a forum for credit risk
management in the Covernment,

Strateqic report

Project and product delivery

We also continued to develop new
products across Government and
explored new ways of financing
for smaller businesses, including:

- ENABLE Build - we introduced a
new programme providing up to
£1bn of guaranteed support for
lending to smaller housebuilders,
working with Homes England
and the Ministry Tor Housing,
Communities and Local Government

— The National Security Strategic
Investment Fund - we waorked
across several Government
departments to launch an £85m
fund to supportlong-term equity
- ‘patient capital’ - investmentin
advanced technologies which
contribute to the UK Government's
naticnal security mission

~ Defined Contribution Pension
Investment in Patient Capital study
- we chaired an ongoing feasibility
study to explore options for
fadilitating pooled investmentin
patient capital by large defined
contribution pension schemes.
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CASESTUDY

FW Properties

" Norwich
East of
England

Programme: ENABLE Guarantee

Based in Norwich, small
housebuilder FW Properties
specialisesin developing distinctive
contemporary properties across
Norfolk and Suffolk.

Since lan Fox and Julian Wells
founded FW Propertiesin 2011,
they have successfully completed
six developments of 8O residential
apartments and houses and have a
further three projects underway.

To fund development works forits
projects, F\W Properties received finance
from Hampshire Trust Bank, supported
by the Bank's ENABLE Guarantee
pragramme. Hampshire's funding
structures minimise the amount of
equity that needs tc be held by the
developer and the finance provider,
allowing a greater pipeline of housing.
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OBJECTIVE

Manage taxpayer
money efficiently

Why itisimportant

When we manage our programmes efficiently,
we deliver value for money. All UK taxpayers
benefit from our ability to deliver the most
positive outcome with the least amount of
Government resources,

At aglance

£81.3m

profit before tax of £81.3m

Return on capital employed

o

—
]

B0

36
Target 25

B B e L L O VA T B B o s B Yo

2016/17  2017/18  2018/19

£195m

cumulative excess return
of £195m

£42.4m

net operating income
of £42.4m
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All our programmes, with the exception
of the grant funding and operating
casts element for Start Up Loans,
count towards our financial return
target. The Bank targets achieving a
return on capital at least equivalent to
the Government's medium-term cost
of capital. We have a target for the
end of March 2019 of 2.525%,

Adjusted return on capital
employed

The British Business Bank achieved

a 3.6% adjusted return on capital
employed in 2018/19, which was
higher than our target for the year.
However, itis lower than the return
achieved in the previous year. This has
been caused by three key drivers; (8)
fower returns in the year from legacy
VC fundsof £7.2m{2017/18 £22.8m),
(b) write down in the value of assets
distributed by a single Enterprise
Capital Fund (£171m), and {Q)
increased operating costs as the
Bank has continued toinvestin arder
to deliver on the new cbjectives it
was setlast year. The Bank has also
continued to investin systems,
controls and processes. While not
material for the results, the Bank has
seen an increase in credit lossesin
several of its debt programmes and
continues to monitor this area closely.

Average capital employed has
increased from £1,530m to £1,829m,
anincrease of £299m as the Bank
continues to investin UK smaller
businesses.

" “aijustedretuiiton
- :-capital-fqrf.tﬁe;year
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Adoption of IFRS 9

The group adopted the Internaticnal
Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 9
for the firsttime in 2018/19. The
return for the 2017/18 finandial year
has been adjusted tc account for the
impactof the transition to the new
basis of accounting for the Group's
financial instruments. This transition
adjustmenthas resulted ina £2.8m
reduction in the reported return for
2017/18. Asindicated in the 2017/18
Annual Report, the Bank hasrestated
all of its historic return calculations to
take into account theimpact of IFRS Q.
This means that historic changes
infair value that impacted Cther
Comprehensive Income {hath the
assets on the Bank's balance sheet
and assats on the BEIS balance sheet
that are managed by the Bank) have
now been included in the historic
Adiusted Return on Capital Employed
as set out laterin this section.

CASESTUDY

Grapeshot

Cambridge
Eastof England

Programme:
Enterprise Capital Fund

Started in Cambridge,
Grapeshot is a brand safety
platform that helps marketers,
publishers and media
arganisations target customers
more accurately in any language
and in real time, globally.

It required funding to continue
development of its products and
services, and grow key teams
within the business. It received
inttial investment from the Bank's
Enterprise Capital Fund delivery
partner IQ Capital in 2009, and
several rounds of additional
funding, with the last reundin 2017,

In 2018, Grapeshot was acquired
by Oracle for $325m, providing

a significant return multiple
toinvestors.
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Summary of financial performance and calculation of adjusted return

Adjusted Programmes

Strategic report

Adjustments British managedon
Audited forsuULCo Business behalf of BEIS

Year endgd 31_{_»_13(ch 2019(£rr_r)_‘ 77777 Accounts and ECFs_ - Bank plc {u nauditgd_)_ Tatal
investment income
Investment Programmes 18.2 0.0 18.2 0.0 18.7
Lending Solutions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Venture Capital 07 109 11.0 7.2 18.2
StartUp Loans 241 (24.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Cuarantee and Whalesale Solutions a0 0.0 00 189 185

43.4 (13.2) 30.2 26.0 56.2
Management fee and other income 224 0a 274 (13.5) 8.9
Crantincome 175 (17.5) 0.0 0.0 0.0
SULCq intercompany ioan interest 00 ~0g 60 0o 0o
Total operating income 833 (30.7) 526 126 65.2
Netinvestment costs
Investment Programmes S 5l2 0.0 512 0.0 51.2
Lending Selutions 00 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Venture Capital (4.7) 6.2 1.4 0.0 1.4
Start Up Loans (30.7) 314 0.7 0.0 Q7
Cuerantee and Wholesaie Solutions ) 0.0 0.0 0.0 (10.6} (105)

15.7 37.6 53.3 (10.6) 42.7
Net gain on write down of repayable cépital g}rant ) 7.3 (7.3) - ;0.0 00 0.0 i
Other operating costs
Staff Costs (27.8) 3.9 {£3.8) 0.0 (238)
Other Costs (36.2) 135 (2.7} 0.0 {(22.7)
Totaloperatingexpenditure  (540) 175 (465 00 (465)
Net o'peratih”g profi{befofé ECFloan 424 170 594 18 @3
commitments provision )
ECF derivative galn (cash) 0.0 3.8 0.0 38
ECF permanent diminution in value 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.6
Adjusted return 42.4 63.8 1.9 65.7
Average Capital Employed 1,828.7
Adjusted return on average capital employed _ 3b6%
Cost/income ratio 43.1%
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Programmaes
British  managed on
Audited Adjustments Business behalf of BEIS
Yearended 31 March 2019 (Em) ‘ Accounts forSULCo  Bankplc (unaudited) ~  Total
Investment assets
Investment Programmes 1,145.8 0.0 1,1458 0.0 1,1458
Other BBl Programmes 203.0 a.0 203.0 0.0 203.0
Guarantee and Wholesale Solutions 1.4 0.0 14 20.3 217
Venture Capital 232.5 0.0 7325 88.0 3205
Enable Funding 0.0 0.0 0.0 3407 340.7
Startuploans 1372 {1046) 326 0.0 32.6
1,719.9 (104.6) 1,615.3 449.0 2.064.3
Investment liabilities
CGuarantee and Wholesale Solutions 0.0 0.0 0.0 {(46.2) (46.2)
venture Capital 13584y 0.0 {139.4) 0.0 (139.4)
(139.4) 0.0 (139.4) (46.2) (1856)
Netinvestment assets 1,580.5 (104.6) 1,4759 402.9 1,878.8
Other assetsliabilities
Cash 152.1 (3.4) 1487 0.0 1487
Tangible and intangible assets 51 {1.5) 3.6 0.0 36
Loans and borrowings (711.3) 107.0 (604.3) 0.0 (804.3)
Net other payables 521.3 3.4 524.7 0.0 524.7
o - (32.8) 1056 72.7 0.0 727
Totalnetassets 1,547.7 09 15486 4029  1,9515
The Bank manages a number of The principle of the adjusted returnas  temporary, non-cash fair value
investments on behalf of BEIS under set cut inour Sharehelder framework  adjustments and permanent
aservice agreement; theseinclude is to provide a measure of financial diminutions in value for other
three regional funds, the ENABLE performance that exciudes temporary,  programmes, notably ECFs,
Guarantee and ENABLE Funding non-cash fair value accounting Permanent diminutions are included in
programmes and EFG. We also impacts. This allows a comparison to the adjusted return whilst temporary,
administer the assets and liabilities the Government's funding cost. The non-cash fair value adjustments are
included on BEIS's balance sheet methodology includes returns from excluded. Positive fair value
relating to these programmes and legacy venture funds hald an BEIS's movements on our remaining fair
their performance is included in our balance sheet but managed by the value assets are also included.

performance measures. Bank and distinguishes between
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For the financial year ending 31 March 2019, the Bank has re-stated the historic rumbers to take account of the impact of

the adoption of IFRS 9 the impact of which are shown in the table below:

IFRS 9 Restatement £m o 2014/15 2015/16
Return on capital as previously reported 85 371
Other comprehensive income adjustments:

- assets initially owned by BEIS (UKIIF) 3.5 15.1
- assets owned by British Business Bank 138 20.9
Revised Return ' . - 259 731
Initial return ) - . 25% @ 38%
Revised Return 8.8% 7.5%
Target return (%) 2.5% 2.5%
Excessreturn (90) 6.2% 5.0%
Excessreturn (£m) 18.4 48.4

2016/17 2017718 2018719
528 714
151 128
20.7 9.9
N 28
886 913

/“;Llo/o j‘ljo/o

6.9% 6.0%  36%
2.5% 25% 2.5%
4.4% 3.4% 11%
56.1 52.7 196

Since the Bank was created in Navember 2014, it has generated excess returns ahead of its five-year target amounting

to £195m.

Qverallresults for the British
Business Bank 2018/19

- We generated a net operating
profit of £42.4m

— Thevalue of investment assets
increased by £333m

- We made new commitments of
£957m te funded programmes and
£550m to guarantee programmes

— Netassetsincreased by £355m to
£1,951m.

Key Drivers of Financial
Performance

As aninvestment business focusing
on generating appropriate risk-
adjusted returns on our capital
investment, our financial performance
is dependent en a number of
significant items, including:

- the amount of capital we have
committed and the time period over
which that funding Is deployed

- theunderlying performance of cur
investments and their ability to
make interest and debtrepayments

- over time, the ability to exit
investments successfully and make
a capital profit,

Theinvestment portfolio comprises
of a mix of investments which
contribute towards meeting the
Bank's overall strategic objectives,
Some investments earn a commercial
return whilst others generate areturn
which is below the market rate. It is
the perfarmance of the commercial
investments managed by British
Business Investments Limited that
makes the greatest contribution to
the Bank's overall return,

Our net operating profit was mainly
driven by £70.4m of returns from the
Investment Programme investments,
The Venture Capital programmes,
which include both market rate
andsub-market rate investments,
contributed £18.6m of income, £7.2m
of which arose from legacy venture
capital funds.

whilst year-on-year operating costs
increased by £15.1mto £46.5m
{excluding SULCo), this has cccurred
in the context of an expansion in
activities and income generation
which shows that operational
efficiencies have been delivered. The
cost/income ratio at 43.1% (excluding
SULCoyis higher than 2017/18's figure
of 32.5% (restated) reflecting the
increased activities of the Bank.

The profit before tax shown in the
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income is £81.3m,
compared to £11.3m the previous yesr.
This is primarily driven by no new ECF
commitments being made during the
year. Whilst the Bank did offer funding
to two ECF managers during the vear,
these offers did not meet the leve!

of certainty required by accounting
standards for a financial liability to be
recognised. The profit before tax of
£81.3mis higher than the adjusted
return of £65.8m. This is explained

by the exclusion from the return
calculation of ECF provision releases
of £44.4m, Nuclear Liabilities Fund
(NLF)interest of £5.6m and a number
of other adjustments {including the
contribution from investments held
on the BEIS balance sheet but
managed by the Bank). Thisis set out
in the table showing the calculation
of the adjusted return.
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Funding

We require funding to make
investments and run our operations.
Depending on our requiremnents these
can be met from cur investment
earnings, our Shareholder or an
external funder,

To fund our capital investments,

we generally issue shares to our
shareholder and utilise available cash
from our aperations, including asset
repayments. At 31 March 2019, the
UK Covernment held shares tetalling
£1.486m in British Business Bank pic,
comprising the entire share capital of
the Company. This amountincreased
by £125mduring the year. We also
borrowed £600m from the NLF and
part of this loan was used to fund our
activities,

Our cperating costs are funded
through investment income plus a
management fee charged 1o BEIS
for managing assets on its behalf.
Income received from this charging
mechanismwas £15.3min 2018/15.

At 31 March 2019, British Business
Bank plc held £152.1m of cash
balances, generated partly through
its own operations and partly through
Shareholder funding. The Bank
maintains a cash balance of at least
£50m to fund investments and <an
increase this balance in line with
investment demands. The majority of
these funds (£134.7m) are held within
the Government Banking Service to
ensure that there is minimal cost to
the Excheguer.
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Our assets

Our programmes investin a wide
range of products through private
sectar partners, to enable usto
achieve our abjective of providing
greater volume and choice of finance
to smaller businesses.

Thisisreflected in the splitof these
investments:

— Assets designated at fair value
through profit and ioss £1,288.8m

- BFPMid cap £436.1m

- Investment Programme £297.0m
- UKIIF£123.8m

- Venture/Growth £203.0m

- ECF and Venture Capital £228.9m

— Amortised costinvestments £431.2m
— BFPMid cap £554m
- Investment Programme £233.5m

StartUp Loans £137.2m

— Regional £4.9m

During the year tc 31 March 2019 we
invested £571.5m in assets included
on our balance sheet. This inciuded
investments of £185.2min the
Investment Programme and £50.1min
the BFP Mid Cap programme, £119.9m
inVenture/Growth and £921min
ECFs. The Bank has also experienced
significant capital and interest returns
in the year of £506.8m primarily in BFP
Mid Cap which amounted to £144.8m

and Investment Programme of £173.0m.

These returns reflect a large amount
of capital being available in the market
in the market place; a fall in M&A
activity; fund managers seeking
transactions cutside the UK; and
comparnies making early repayments
to refinance at lower rates.

For many investments, we make
commitments to a fund and the

fund draws down cash as it is needed.
This means that there is, generally,

a delay between our investment
commitment and capital being

drawn. As of 31 March 2019, the
British Business Bank plc had further
undrawn commitments of £1,779.9m
to be invested across its portfolio,

CASESTUDY ‘
Photonic
Solutions

Edinburgh
Scotland

Programme:
Enterprise Capital Fund

Originally established in 1999,
Edinburgh-based Photonic
Solutions distributes, installs
and provides technical support
of high powered, complex laser
systems to the UK scientific
and industrial market.

Delivered by ateam of highly
qualified scientists, Phoionic
Selutions provides testing,
modification, user training and
servicing of equipment to its
customers,

In order to fund a management
buyout and purchase the company
from the retiring founders cf the
business, the existing emplayees
sought debt and equity funding.
and were introduced by a Non-
Executive Director of the business
to British Business Bank partner,
Panaramic.

Photonic are targeting 10%
growth per year over the next
3 years with the ultimate aim
of full ownership within that
time frame.
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Future developments

The British Business Bank's long-term priorities include
addressing both countercyclical and structural finance
market failures, as well as tackling geographical and

demand-side issues.

There are a number of areas of
shorter-term focus for the Bank that
are set out below, The Bankis also
focusing longer term on four areas
of pricrities. In the near term we are
focusing on:

External review

The NAQ is undertaking a review of
the Bank, examining whether the
Bank is optimally delivering access to
finance support for SMEs and is well
prepared for future challenges.

In parallel, the Bank is working with
HMT and BEIS to assess its role, remit
and governance.

we will work through the year ahead
to support these activities and
implement any recommendations.

£200m

Additienal Government
commitment to address
potential loss of access to
Eurcpean public funding

Economiic environment

The UK is an open economy and is
therefore affected by trendsinthe
wider global economy, as well as the
ongoing uncertainty from EU Exit. In
the last year, global growth has been
affected by concerns over trade
tensions and policy uncertainty which
hasimpacted the broad-based
expansion seen previously. As

part of our role acting as a centre

of expertise for Covernment, we

are actively monitoring the impact
this shift has had across our SME
portfolios, and have seen early signs
of adetericration in credit conditions.
If this resulted in more widespread
constraints on access to finance,

the Bank are well placed to play an
important role in supporting smaller
business finance markets,

Building for the future

We will continue to build our
infrastructure, contrals and
processes. This s essential toensure
that the Bank can grow and remain
within its operational risk appetite,

as well as within its balanced mandate
of making smaller business finance
markets work better across the UK.

Strategic report

The Bank will also continue to address
longer-term priorities in four broad
areas:

Diversity of supply throughout
the cycle

Appropriate finance should be
available through the economic cycle,
and particularly when the UKisin a
recession and supply is scarce. In the
coming year we will enhance our EFG
delivery capability through investing
inanew T system, to supportour
delivery partners.

Structural supply of smaller
business finance

Itisimportant that all relevant

forms of smaller business finance

are available, including those that

are scarce in the UK due to chronic
market fallure issues. We will continue
to deliver initiatives put inplace
failowing the Government's Patient
Capital Review and over the nextyear,
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we aim tc invest an additional £200m
provided 1o us by Government 1o
enable us to step in where smaller
businesses have lost access to
European public sources of funding,

Appropriate geographical supply
of smaller business finance

The Bank has a range of programmes
to help ensure the apprepriate supply
of finance for smaller businesses
across the UK. We are doing further
work on how to build on the Bank’s
regional capabilities, including building
out the activities of the UK Network
team and development of the
Regional Angels Programme.

V4

We will continue to build
our infrastructure, controls
and processes.

' 4
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Building demand for finance

From ademand perspective, smalier
businesses need firstly to understand
that there are finance aptions
available to them and, secandly, to be
signposted as to how to navigate what
can be a complex customer journey.

In2019/20 we are puttingin

place a customer journey framework
which will track businesses’ journeys,
allowing us tc develop a comprehensive
demand strateqy. As part of this work,
we will develop a tracking capability
thatis able to measure curimpact and
the return on our marketing investment.

L AN om

Keith Mergan
11 july 2019

Chief Secretary to
the Treasury, Liz
Truss. spoke atthe
launchof the Bank's
influential VC &
Female Founders
reportin February
2018,

CASESTUDY

Launch22

Programme: Start Up Loans

Launch2?2 supports young
entrepreneurs to pursue their
business ideas.

After securing a £10,000 Start Up
Loan, Tom Previte and two friends
set up a communal workspace

in London, providing mentaring
and networking events for

pacple who had faced barriers to
entrepreneurship. These included
pecple with first-hand experience
of the criminal justice system, the
long-term unemployed, refugees
and people with disabilities. They
have since helped over 700 young
people to start their own business.

Last year Launch2? launched its
incubator programme, designed to
equip entrepreneurs with the skills
and networks they need to make
their business a success.
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Material risks: issues that could
prevent us from successtully

delivering our future plans

The directors confirm that they have carried out a
robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
company. We reviewed our risk framewark during
2018719 with a focus on how it operated relative
to the Bank's risk appetite. We continue to monitor
and respond to a number of material risks.

Political environment

The EU Exit and its eventual outcome
may have animpact on the economic
environment and the behaviour of
smaller businesses in the UK, We have
already seen a decrease in confidence
due to uncertainty, which may iead

to reduced demand for finance by
smaller businesses. We are monitoring
this position, Due to withdrawal

or reduced activity of market
participarits such as the Eurgpean
Investment Fund, we may he asked

ta make further market interventions,

Economic downturn

External macro-economic and
palitical factors may affect both the
flow of finance tc, and demand from,
smaller businesses, In these cases,
the Bank could experience creditand
investment losses as end barrowers
have difficulty in meeting their
commitments. We are in the process
of agreeing a framework for the
Bank's approachin a downturn with
the Sharehglder.

People and processes

Given the relative complexity and
significant rate of growth of the
British Business Bank, thereis arisk
of corporate stretch. The Board and
Executive are focused on ensuring
we have sufficient skilled resources
in place to manage programmes and
policy initiatives that the Bankis
undertaking,

In order to deliver its ambitious
growth plan, in 2018/19 the Bank
decided to move out of its operational
risk appetite. Implementing process
and control enhancements enabled
the Bank to return within operational
risk appetite by the end of the year.

Aspart of this work, the Bank has
mapped out its current aperating
model and has invested significant
resources inimproving its operational
environment during 2018/19. The
Bank also undertakes risk and control
self-assessments to identify
weaknesses in its controls and
processesand plans remedial actions
where needed.

Demand

while the FU Exit or other economic
conditions may influence market
demand for products, thereis also
arisk that products - new or legacy -
are not adequataly designed to meet
market demands. The British Business
Bank designs its products in a robust
fashion through both research and
market sounding, following our
internal product development
gavernance processes,

Delivery partners

The British Business Bank's business
model is heavily reliant on its delivery
partners for the efficient execution
of its interventions and increasing
the diversity of funding for smaller
businesses. The consequential higher
level of reputational risk inherentin
this modelis managed through the
Bank's due diligence processes and
regular audit programmes, alongside
regular meetings with delivery
partners and service leve|
agreements.
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Renewal of State aid

The British Business Bank takes
account of State aid rules when

we deveiop all new products and
pregrammes. The Bank's State ald
permissions expire in December 20019
and we are working with the State aid
team at the Department for Business.
Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS)
to extend our permission.

Information management
and security

The range and scope of data that we
collect, collate, and controf will rise as
our operations grow, This increases
ourinformation and datarisk and so
we have strengthened our systems
and defences,

Toensure that our IT infrastructure
is resilient enough to withstand
disruption without the loss of data
or functionality - as well as making
sure that we follow the requirements
of the EU General Data Protection
Reguiations (GDPR) - the British
Business Bank has enhanced its
internal controls and cyber security
protection software We hold IT
Cyber Essentials Plus accreditation
and [ASME certification.

Small Business Saturday 2018 - British
Business Bank Chief Commercial Cfficer,
Patrick Magee, and Smalt Business Minister,
Kelly Tolhurst MB, meet Start Up Loans
recipient Alyssa Williamson of Brighton-
tased Peach Blossom.

Delivery on objectives

As a national development bank
wholly owned by the UK Government,
we are required to deliver on
Government policy chjectivesin
relaticn to smaller business finance.
Because of this, even though we are
operaticnally independent, some
processes for decision-making and
approvals rely on input from ministers
and central Government
administration.

If these structures change (due to
anew GCovernment, new minister or
machinery of Government changes,
for example), there s a risk of both

a change to our mandate and delays
in decision making that would impact
our ability to operate as efficiently
or effectively as we would want.

During the period, the Bank has added
two new objectives: 'Expertise’ and
‘Regional’. To meet the first of these

" phjectives, the Bank is increasing its

profile as a subject matter expert
for Government on smaller business
financing. To meet the second, we
have deveioped aregional presence

. through our UK Network Team, and

we continue to deploy region-specific
funding through our Northerin
Powerhouse, Midlands Engine

and Cornwall and Isles of Scilly
Investment Funds,
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The range and scope of
data that we collect, collate,
and control will rise as our
operations grow. This
increases our information
and datarisk and so we
have strengthened our
systems and defences.

' {4
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Our people

The British Business Bank has over 320 colleagues
each of whom plays arole in the successful delivery
of our cbjectives and strategy.

People are at the heart of what we do.

Over the past year we have created
84 new roles and promoted 18
colleagues. To achieve success for our
business, we manage our people’s
performance, developing and bringing
through talent while ensuring we
operate as efficiently as possible,

We share commaon values thatinform
and guide our behaviour to achieve
cur goals in the right way.

Our people strateqgy, developed in
2018 to complement our business
plan, sets out the key actions that
improve the way we recruit, train
and develop our pecple.

The strategy has three pillars: culture
& engagement, leadership and
recognition,

Together, these pillars support
our desire to achieve cutstanding
performance with inspired and
fulfilled peaple.

Culture and engagement

Itisimportant for us to have the right
corporate cuiture, as we believe our
long-term success dlepends on
achieving our strategic goalsin the
right way - which means looking after
and championing the bestinterests
of our people, smaller businesses,

our delivery partners, and other
stakeholders.

Our annual Colleague Engagement
Survey is animportant tool to build

an actively engaged and committed
warkforce, It helps us measure and
assess how our people feel about
waorking at the Bank, and to putin place
actions for continuous improvements
based on their responses.

Strateqic report

Aprit 2018's survey had a response
rate of 66%, with an overall
engagement score of 76%. We
communicated the detailed results
to all Bank colleagues in May 2018,

At A Rank level, the main Aareas of
focus were career development,
recognition, reward and leadership,
and we have made good progress
with each of these.

For our 2019 survey, which ran frem
mid-March to early April, we had a
91% response rate and an increase in
employee engagement score to 77%.
We are putting action plansin place,
managed and owned by our leadership
team, and driving higher engagement
to enhance our people’s experience.

In a growing organisation such as
ours, there is an increasing need for
good colleague communications. As
part of that, we held two all-colleague
'‘One Team' conferences in 2018/19

- events that give us the opportunity
to tell the story of our business as

we evolve, ensuring all our people
understand where we're going and
therole they play.
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Capability for performance

Driving a performance culture is a key
objective for the Bank. In 2018/15 we
made several enhancements to our
performance managementcycle to
clarify respcnsibilities, drive fairness
and censistency, and eauip colleagues
and managers to understand and
maximise the value of the process,

We have also placed more emphasis on
managers taking more accountability
for the performance and development
of their pecple. At the end of the
performance year, facilitated
maderation sessions fostered a more
consistent application of performance
ratings, which realistically reflected
the Bank’s cverall performance.

-+ newrolescreated ;.- .

Forthe startof the 2019/20
performance year, we have made
further enhancements to drive

closer alignment of each colleague’s
objectives with the Bank's objectives,
encourage a developmental mindset,
and incorporate clear measures of
success, for both 'What' our pecple do
and ‘How' they doit. The latter Is set
outin anewly created leadership
framework as described in the
Leadership section gn page 46.

We have processesin place for
understanding and responding 1o
colleagues needs through surveys
andregular performance and
development reviews, We continue,
therefore, to work towards improving
our communication ta colleagues

to ensure they are engaged with

the decisions we make, and so we
canrespond to their feedback.

' 4

For our April 2019
engagement survey
we had a 91% respaonse
rate and an increasein
employee engagement
scoreto 77%.

' {4

Start Up Loans recipients discussing
their finance journeys at our most recent
‘One Team' meeting.

We also have a colleague forum
consisting of people from all levels of
our organisation which provides input
into policies and working practices

to ensure wea support cur Bank
calleagues’employment needs.

Business developments are
communicated frequently to keep
colleagues well informed about
the progress of the Bank and to
understand the Bank’s objectives.

Wellbeing

Wellbeing support to colleagues

has continued to be a focusin
2018/19 which has included
appointing mental health first-aiders,
introducing a cycle to work scheme,
providing fruit for colleagues and
offering flu jabs and holding events
to promote general wellbeing.
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Leadership framework

Accountability and commitment

Delivers on commitments
and aspires to do more

Lead self

Trust and
integrity
Demonstrates
the values and
builds trusting
relationships

Execution and results

Drives shared cutcomes and value
for clients and stakehclders

Leadership

Values and leadership framework
Our five shared values were reviewed
in March 2018. These values -
openness, commercially responsible,
cennecting, innovative and talent -
shape and support our brand and our
core essence of 'enabling’.

Inearly 2019720, we built on this
foundation and created a leadership
framework, which articuiates the
behaviours that will help drive the
success of the Bank and reinforce
our culture. The framework applies
to all colleagues and encompasses
behaviours groupad into leading
self, leading others and leading

the business.

Talent

Enabling values

A r &)

Cannecting

Openness
&'e

Innovative

responsible

Lead the business

To ensure that the leadership
framework becomes embedded
across the Bank and supports
continuous improvement, it will be
integrated within all our people
processes during 2019/20, including
talent and succession, recruitment
and performance management.

Building talent and succession
Talent, as well as being one of our
organisational vatues, is a key focus of
our Pecple Strateqgy. We are currently
developing an overarching and
integrated approach to identifying
and building 'bench strength’ across
the Bank - those individuals with the
potentiai to become the top talentin
our organisation. Strategic outcomes
willinclude a cfear understanding of
our top talent and leadership pipeline,
prioritised development themes
throughout the Bank, targeted
actions to mitigate talent and

Commercially

Collaboration

Shares information and
breaks down barriers

Lead others

Performance and
development

Enables high
performance and
a growth mindset

Innovation

Fosters agility and
embraces change

succession risks, and a greater
emphasis on career growth and
internal hiring. This year we Tilled
19.6% of vacancies internally.

Succession planning is a twice-yearly
process that focuses on identifying
successors for executive roles and
defining targeted development to
ensure readinass,

We are committed to grow our talent
and capability and we know that the
development of our peopleis
fundamental to the success of cur
business strategy. Ta suppart this
develppment we haveinvestedin an
online learning management system
which we will be introducing in
2019/20. This will give our employees
access to courses and arange of
pragrammes and suppart materials
to enable their development onan
ongoing basis.
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Recognition

We understand the importance
of employee recegnition in giving
empioyees a sense of ownership
and belonging and that they are
truly valued for their contribution.

QOur discretionary bonus payments
are made on merit, and we believe this
approach encourages fairness and
drives our people to want to do a great
jcb. We also have ain place a number
of other recognition schemes which
recognise and reward colleagues,

We have reviewed our reward
strategy to ensure that our reward
structure supports the recruitment
and retention of colleagues critical

to the successful delivery of the
business’objectives. Our aimis to
align performance and reward so that
colleagues know whatis expected

of them and feel recognised for their
personal contribution and behaviours,

We recognise and reward the
performance of our colleagues by
offering a stake in the financial
performance of the Bank through
participating i the annual bonus

scheme, which is linked to both
corporate and personal performance.

Employee involvement

Our Equal Opportunities, Diversity and
Inclusion policies suppart managers
and colleaguesin creating a diverse
and inclusive culture where everycne
is welcome, Qur palicies demonstrate
our commitment to providing equal
opportunities to all colleagues,
irrespective of age, disability, gender,
marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy or maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, or sexual crientation.

Diversity and inclusion

We believe that our success as a
business can only be achieved by
being truly inclusive and we have a
number of mechanisms to support
this, which include our grievance
and whistleblowing procedures,

our engagement survey and a visible
HR teamin all locations, allowing
employees to raise any concerns,

Our diversity and inclusion policy
can be found on our website
www . british-business-bank.co.uk.

British Business Bank - gender balance

Board 7 7
Employees

Executive Committee* 5
Senior Leadership Team 8
Other Employees 168
Total employees 181

Board 3
Employees

Executive Committee 3
Senior Leadership Team 4
Other Employees 133

Total employees 140

Genderrepresentation

The graphic below sets cut the gender
diversity of the Board, Executive
Committee members, Senior
Leadership Team and employees

at 31 March 2019.

The British Business Bank has a good
gender balance overall We recognise,
however, that we have more to do
toincrease the number of wamen in
our seniormanagement positions and
we are taking steps to make sure that
senicr colleagues, when recruited,
reflect the characteristics of the
diverse workforce we seek to create.

Over the past year we have continuad
to embed diversity and inclusion
within the Bank. One of our targets

is to aim for all recruitment processes
atdirector and managing director level
toinclude 2 gender diverse shortlist
and interviewer panel, We also have
gender neutral advertising.

We have reviewed our parental and
maternity policies to encourage a more
family friendly culture to enhance
support for all working parents,

In 2013 all the objectives of the
Executive Committee included gender
diversity targets to ensure the pay of
the senior executive team is linked to
gender diversity.

"includes 3 Executive Caommittee members
wha are members of the Board
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QOur subsidiary, British Patient Capital
also announced in February 2019 that
it would be seeking ta spread hest
practice by adopting the Institutiona!
Limited Partner Association (ILPA)
diversity tempiate for venture capital
firms applying for its programmes.
This new initiative enables venture
capital teams tc measure and report
the gender and ethnic diversity of
their teams by seniority and role,

and aims {o encourage conversations
aboutissues arcund diversity.

Gender pay gap

We included details of our 7018 gender
pay gap incour 2018/19 Annual Report,
and wiil be publishing a full 2019
gender pay gap report laterin the year.

Women in finance charter

In March 2018 we signed up to

the Treasury's wWomen in Finance
Charter and our CEO is responsible
and accountable for delivering this
initiative. We have made considerable
progress in appointing women to
senior pasitions over the last three
years, but thereis more to do to
increase diversity.

Our almis to ensure that, by October
2021, 50% of our senior leadership
team (bands 1 - 3) are female (within
a 10% tclerance). As at 31 March 2019
the overall split was: Male 54%,
Female 36%.

Ethnicity

We value people from all backgrounds
and have aninclusive approach that
celebrates diversity. We know that our
inclusive culture helps us to attract,
retain and develop our employees and
encourages them to bring their whale
selves to work.

The British Business Bank has a
diverse workforce, with 14 different

- ethnicities declared and with a further

group of 15% who did not declare
their ethnicity. White British is the
major ethnic group (489%) and Asian
the second largest (8%j).

Disability

The Bank works with colieagues,
including those with disabiiities, to
adapt work practices where necessary
in order to help them work effectively
within the business. We are a
Disability Confident Employer as part
of the UK Government's Disability
Confident scheme.

Humanrights

We operate in accordance with the
Universal Declaration of Human
Rights and take account of other
internaticnally accepted human rights
standards. We also promote human
rights through cur employment
policies and practices, and through
the responsible use of our products
and services,

Data protection

Across British Business Bank, the
privacy and security of perscnal
informationis respected and
pratected. Our privacy statement
governs how we collect, handle, store,
share, use and dispose of information
about people. We regard sound privacy
practices as a key element of corporate
governance and accountability.

Corporate social responsibility
Colleagues from across the Bank
worked together oninitiatives
focused onall three areas of our CSR
mandatein 2018719 - charity work,
envircnment and volunteering.

Strategic report

We continued our support for the
three charities nominated in 2017/18
for ancther year:

— Shelter - our national nominated
charity.

— Bluebell Wood Children's Hospice
in Sheffield.

— The Trussell Trust in London.

Colleagues from across the Bank
took partin fundraising activities
toraise money directly for our three
nominated charities, These included
our annual ‘Great British Business
Bank Bake Off'", as well as sponsored
runs and bike rides.

Colleagues can also take a day once

a year to undertake votuntary work.
They used these days in 2018/19 to
support a wice range of causes, which
included serving and packing food at
local food banks and supporting a
grant-making foundation with a variety
of financial topics. Many colleagues
also give their own time 1o volunteer
with charities and other organisaticns.

Colleagues are committed toreducing
waste and limiting ourimpact on the
environment at work by supporting
local suppliers, reducing packaging,
and by recycling maore effectively.

We alsorun a cycle to work scheme.
We will continue to run campaigns on
how to take simple steps to make big
changes forenvironmental impact.

- Approved by the Board of Directors

LA\ n

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

11 July 2019
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Directors’' report

The directors present
their annual report on
the affairs of the Group,
together with the
financial statements and
independent guditor’s
audit report for the year
ended 31 March 2018,

The Corporate Governance Statement
is set out on pages 54-61 and forms
part of this report.

The followinginformation required by
the Companies Act 2006 can be found
in the following sections of the Annual
Repert, which are incoerporated by
reference into thisreport:

- adescription of the principal
activities of the Croup during the
course of this yearisinciudedin
the strategic report

- infarmation on our employment
disability policies and on our action
on colleague engagement are in the
'Our Pecple’ section

Directors

details of the significant events
since the balance sheet date are
contained innote 78 to the
financial statements

information about the use of
financial instruments by the
company and its subsidiaries is
given in nate 26 to the financial
statements

the Bank has chasen to include
information regarding future
developments within the strategic
report because we believe it is
better placed there,

During the year the following individuals served as Directcrs. The appointment and removal of Directorsis set cut in the
Corporate Governance Statement found on page 54.

Director

LordSmith

Christina McComb

Jonathan Britton
Neeta Atkar
Caroline Green
Piers Linney

Amanda Rendle
Ceri Smith
Keith Morgan

Christopher Fox
Patrick Magee
Charmash Mistry

Pasition

Naon-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

~Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Shareholder
Representative Director

Chief Executive Officer

Executive Director
Executive Director
Non-executive Director

Initial
appointment

date

05 July 2017
>3 October 2013

28 April 2014
01 July 2016
24 June 2014

07 December
2017

07 December
2017

29 October 2013

10 December
2013

13 January 2015
10 March 2015
01 May 2019

Initial
appointment

expiry

04 july 2020
18 November
2016

e/ April 2017
30 June 2019
23 June 2017

06 December
2020

06 December
2020

13 November
2016

N/A

N/A
N/A
30 April 2022

Reappointment

13 November

effective Reappointment

_ date expiry
N/A N/A
18 November 18 November
2016 2019
28 April 2017 27 April 2020
01 july 2019 30 june 2022
20 July 2017 19 January 2019
N/A N/A
N/A N/A

13 November

2016 2019
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A

N/A
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Directors' biographies

Lord Smith of Keivin
Chair

Lord Smith has led organisationsin the
private, public and voluntary sectors.
He is a former Presigent of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Scotland.
He is currently the Chair of IMI plcand
Alliance Trust plc, and Chancellor of
the University of Strathclyde.

Christina McComb
Senior Independent Directar

Christina has 30 years’ experience of
investing in and supparting SMEs. She
is currently chair of OneFamily and
Standard Life Private Equity Trust plc,
Senior Independent Director of Big
Society Capital, a trustee of NESTA,
and a Non-executive of Nexeon Ltd.

Neeta Atkar

independent Non-executive
Director and Chair of Risk
Committee

Neeta has 30 years' experience

in financial services, woarking across all
aspects of risk. She is a Non-executive
Director of Nomura Eurape Holdings
plc and of Yarkshire Building Society,
chairing the Risk Committees at both.
She has heen a Magistrate for over

20 years.

Amanda Rendle
Independent Non-executive
Director and Chair cf
Remuneration Committee

Amanda has over 30 years of marketing
and communications experience. She
was Globat Head of Marketing for HSBC
Commerdial Banking and Giobal Banking
and Markets. She is a Non-executive
Director for Tesco Bank and the
Government Communications Service
Ministerial Board.

Ceri Smith
Shareholder
Representative Director

Ceriis a Director et UK Government
Investments and the British Business
Bank on behalf of its Shareholder,
the Secretary of State for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy.

He previously worked in

HM Treasury, the Department for
Business and the Foreign Office,

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

Keith has been CEO since 2013

He ioined the Bank from UK Financial
Investments, where he managed
the Government’s shareholdings

in Bradford & Bingley and Northern
Rock. Keith previously held senior
roles at Santander and spent 1.7
years at LEK Consulting.
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To see full Directors’ biographies, please visit:
british-business-bank.co.uk/our-people/

Jonathan Britton
Independent Non-executive
Director and Chair of Audit
Committee

Jonathan has over 35 years’
experience in banking. A gualified
chartered accountant, he was a
Non-executive Oirector of ICICBank
UK Ltd from 2011 to 2017 He is a
Non-executive Director of Nomura
Europe Heldings plc, chairing its
Audit Committee,

Caroline Green
Independent Non-executive
Directoruntil 19 January 2019

Caroline is the Chief Operating and
Financial Officer at ReBCUND Returns,
having previously held CFQ positions
in both private equity-backed and
listed businesses. Caroline also spent
eight years in private equity, initially
at 3iplc,

/

Piers Linney
Independent Non-executive
Director

Piers has founded several businesses
and won arange of entrepreneurship
awards. He has appeared as an
investcr on Dragon's Den and sat on
the Cabinet Office SME Panel and the
Board of TechUK. He is a Trustee

of Nesta.

Christopher Fox
Chief Financial Officer

Before joining the Bank in 2015,
Christopher was Head of Banking

at UK Financial Investments, where
he oversew the Government’s
shareholdings in Lloyds Banking
Group, RBS and UK Asset Resclution,
Previously, Christopher spent aimost
20 years at UBS.

Patrick Magee
Chief Commercial Cfficer

Patrick joined the Bankin 2014,
becoming CCO inOctober 2017 He led
the team working an the Bank's set-
up, and represented the Government's
interests anits Board, Patrick was
previously @ managing director of
corporate Tinance at JP Margan
Cazenove,

Dharmash Mistry”
Non-executive Director

Dharmashis an experienced venture
capitalist, entrepreneur and NED. He is
currently aPartner at Lakestar V(C and
co-founder and Chairman of Blow LTD.
Heis a non-executive director of BBC
Commercial Heldings Ltd and was
previously a partner at Balderton Capital,

*Appeintedon 1 May 2015
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CASE STUDY ‘
B-Secur

Belfast
Narthern
Ireland

Programme:;
Enterprise Capital Fund

Northernireland-based B-Secur
is pioneering next-generation
biometrics, using the heart

ta secure health & wellness
insights.

Its technology captures ECG signals
using sensors within clothing,
wearables, or physical touch points.
These signals provide insights

on the individual, confirming who
they are te how they are feeling.

Uses include impreving motoring
safety, medical monitoring and
improvements in worker
verification, and wellbeing.

As an early stage company,
B-Secur requires heavy R&D
investment. In 2017 it received
funding from ADV, an Enterprise
Capital Fund backed by the Bank.
B-Secur has since grown to over
35 people, competing on the globat
stace. In March, it raised a further
£4m, with ADV feading the round.

Directors’ indemnities

The company has granted indemnities
to each of its directors in respect of all
losses arising out of, or in connection
with, the execution of their powers,
duties and responsibilities as directors
to the extent permitted by law and
the company's articles of association.
The company provides directors’and
officers’liability insurance.

Going concern

The directors who served during the
year have areasonable expectation
that the company and the group
have adequate rescurces to continue
in operational existence far the
foreseeable future, Thus they
continue to adapt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial
statements, Further details can be
found in the significant accounting
policies notes in the financial
statements.

Sustainability principles

The British Business Bank is
committed to promsting
sustainability. We are concerned
about the environment and we
believe that promoting a broader
sustainability agendais integral to
our professional activities and the
management of the organisation.
We follow and promote good

. sustainability practice, and we

arereducing the environmental
impacts of all our activities,

Directors report

Greenhouse gas emission
reporting

Scope of disclosure

The British Business Bank reports its
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions based
onits property portfolio. The British
Business Bank pic occupies four floors
of office space and is able to provide
emission reporting from 2015 to date
inrespect of its premises and
company travel activities,

The reported Scope 1 emissions cover
emissions generated from the gas and
ail used in all buildings from which the
Croup cperates, and Scope 2 includes
its emissions from electricity. The
figures provided in Scope 1 and Scope
2 in the table below are estimated
emissions relating to energy
consumed in properties where the
landlord contrels the supply and
recharges the British Business Bank.
The reparted Scope 3 emissions relate
to business travel undertaken by all
colleagues using rail and air travel
which has been booked through

our carporate travel agent. These
results are summarised in the table
onpage 53. We donot report on

any other Scope 3 emissions at this
time. We have notincluded business
mileage in private vehicles as this

is not a significantly used mode

of travel,
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Ly

Assessment parameters

Baseline year for total reportéd CO; Emissions

Consolidation approach
Boundary summary
Emission factor data source
Assessment methodclogy

Intensity ration

2016

Operational control

All facilities under operational control
DEFRA (2016)

The Creenhouse Cas P-ro‘[ocol
revised edition (2004)

Emissions per full time employee (FTE)

GHG emissions

Scope 1 (Cas)

Scope 2 (Electricity)

Scope 3 (Travel)

Total

Total per average number of employees

2017/18 - 2018/19

" Corhbarisbn
Scope CO; Scope CO; 2017/18
(tonnes) (tonnes) 10 2018/19 (%)
28 39 + 38%
191 241 +26%
85 83 -13%
314 363 + 1‘_5.7%
125 1.21

Directors’ disclosure to
auditors

Each of the persons who are adirector
at the date of approval of this annual
report confirms that:

— sofaras the director is aware, there
is norelevant audit information of
which the company’s auditors are
unaware

— thedirector has taken all the steps
that he/she ought to have taken as
adirector in order to make himself/
herself aware of any relevant audit
informaticn, and to establish that
the company's zuditors are aware
of thatinformation,

This information is given and should
beinterpreted in accordance with
Section 418 of the Companies Act
2006.

Approved by the Board of Directors

LN AN

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

11 July 2019
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Corporate governance
Statement

The British Business Bank constitution consists of its
Articles of Association and a Shareholder Relationship
Framework Document between the British Business

Bank and the Department for Business, Energy and

Industrial Strategy (BEIS).

The British Business Bank plc
operates, sofarasispracticable, a
best practice corporate governance
framework, and complies with the UK
Corporate Governance Code other
than Section E (Relations with
Shareholders),

The UK Corporate Governance Code
is freely available from the Financial
Reporting Council. The 2016 UK
Corporate Governance Code acts

as a guide to a range of keyissues
toensure effective Board practice.

Apart from those setoutin this
Annual Repart, the Board is not aware
of any deviations from the relevant
aspects of the Code in the period since
1 April 2018 insofar as it applies to the
British Business Bank,

Role and responsibility of
the Board of Directors of
the company

British Business Bank plcis led

by its Board of Directors which in
consultation with BEIS is collectively
responsible for the long-term success
of the Bank. The Baard, again in
consultation with BES, is also
responsible for the strategy of
British Business Bank plc.

Assetoutinthe Shareholder
Refationship Framewaork Document,
the Board must have no fewer than
eight Directors including six Non-
executive Directors. Independent
Non-executive Directors are to
rmake Up the majorily ¢f the Buard.

Our Board and committees have

the appropriate balance of skiils,
experience and independence
todischarge their duties and
responsibilities effectively. The

Board considers that the Chair was
independent on appointment and that
all Non-executive Directors other than
Ceri Smith are independent for the
purposes of the Cade. Ceri Smith is the
Shareholder Representative Director,

Although both Neeta Atkar and
Jonathan Brittcn are Non-Executive
Directors of Nomura Europe Holdings
plc, and both Christina McComb and
Piers Linney are trustees of Nasta,
the Board considers them to be
independent in character and
judgement and therefore independent.

Directors' report

The Board reviewed the schedule

of matters reserved for the Board in
October 2018. The matters reserved
for the Board include strategy and
management, company structure

and capital, financial reporting and
cantrols, risk management and
internal controls, approval of major
projects and contracts, communications
with our Shareholder, Board
membership and other appointments,
remuneration, delegation of authority.
corporate gavernance, appointment
of professional advisers, litigation and
approval of overall levels of insurance.

Our Non-executive Directors
scrutinise the performance of
management in meeting agreed goals
and objectives. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for setting
appropriate levels of remuneration far
Executive Directors and other Bank
colleagues in consultation with our
Shareholder. Thisis further explained
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
at page 68.
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The Chair is responsibie for leading
the Board and its discussions and for
encouraging open debate and
challenge. The Chief Executive leads
the executive in the day to day running
of the business and the implementation
of strategy andis supportedin this

by the Executive Committee and the
Senior Leadership Team.

As an crganisation funded by
taxpayers' money the Bank is reguired
to comply with the principles set cutin
Managing Public Money (www.gov.uk/
government/publications/managing-
public-money).

The Chief Executive is the Accounting
Officer. The responsibilities of an
Accounting Officer include
responsibility for the stewardship

of the Bank's resources.

The Senior Independent Director

is Christina McComb, The Senior
Independent Directar’s responsibilities
are to:

- work closely with the Chair

- actasanintermediary for other
Directors as and when necessary

- meetwith other Non-executive
Directars to review the Chair's
performance.

During the year the Board appraised
Lord Smith's performance as Chair by
guestionnaire. The results were
discussed among the Non-executive
Directors, {ed by the Senior
Independent Director.

Appointment and removal
of directors

The Shareholder Relationship
Framewocrk Document states that no
appointment or removal of a director
of the company, or appointment

cr removal of any such directar to

or from an executive position, can

be made without the prior written
consent of the Shareholder. The Chair
and the Senior Independent Director
are appointed in a process chaired by
acommissioner fram the Office of the
Commissioner for Public Appointments,
in line with the Shareholder
Relationship Framework Document.

The ceamposition of the Board is set
outon page 49 of the Directors' report,

'd 4

The Board, in consultation
with BEIS, is responsible
for the strategy of British
Business Bank plc.

'L 4

Injanuary 2019, Carcline Green
stepped down from the Board. Odgers
Berndtsonwas appeinted as an
independentsearch consultant for
the appointment of a new Board
member for the British Business Bank,
and in May 2018, Dharmash Mistry
was appointed as Non-executive
Director for aterm of three years.

The full biographies of all Board
members can be found at:
www.british-business-bank.co.uk/
our-people

Annual Director election

At the 2018 Annual General Meeting
{AGM) Amanda Rendle and Piers
Linney were elected and Christopher
Fox, Patrick Magee and Ceri Smith
were re-elected.
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Information to the Board

All directors are given updates on
corporate governance developments,
legisiative end regulatory changes,
and relevantindustry and technical
information. The Board is supplied in
a timely manner with the appropriate
information to enable it to discharge
its duties, and any further information
is readily available to all directors.
Since 2015 the Board has received
board papers and information
electranically, to increase efficiency,
confidentiality and sustainability.

o’

The Board has established
four Board committees to
ensure robust and effective
decision making.

' {4

Board committees

The Board has established four Beard
committees to ensure robust and
effective decision-making within

the group structure, namely Audit,
Remuneration, Risk and Nomination
committees, The British Business
Bank Board has approved terms of
reference for each committee,

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by
Jonathan Britton. Neeta Atkar and
Caroline Green were also members

of the Commrittee during the year.
Caroline Green stepped down
following the October 2018 meeting
and Dharmash Mistry joined the Audit
Committee following his appointment
to the Board in May 2018,

Allmembers of the Audit Committee
are independent Non-executive
Directors. The Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk
QOfficer, General Counsel, Head of
internal Audit and a Shareholder
representative attend committee
meetings along with the external
auditors who are invited to attend
and report at all meetings.

The Committee also meets privately

with both internal and external audit,
Youcan find a full attendance record

on page &61.

Directors report

Role

The Committee'sroleis to review,
monitor and make recommendations
to the Board relating to:

~ the'going concern’ nature of
the Bank

- theintegrity of financial reporting

— thefinancial statements and any
issues and judgements they
contain

- the adequacy and effectiveness of
the internal and external controls

- overseeing the relationship
with the Bank's exlernal auditor,

The Committee also has oversight of
the internal audit and audit planning
pracess of the Bank,

During 2018/19, the Audit Committee
considered and approved.

- the oversight of the Bank's financial
reporting process and the process
for preparation of the consolidated
acceunts

- the accounting policies adopted
to ensure the Bank as a whole
complies with the applicable
accounting standards and presents
consolidated accounts that are
true and fair

—~ methods used to accountfor
significant or unusual transactions
where different approaches are
possible

~ the assessment of, and process
far preparing, the consolidated
accounts

~ theextent to which the Bank has
complied with Shareholder financial
reporting requirements

— JFRS S accounting implications.
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Inrelation tointernal and external
audit, the Audit Committee considered
and approved:

— the internal audit plan and review
of progress against this plan

- the findings of internal audit
reviews

- group and subsidiary audit
exemptions

— the appointment of external
auditors

- thereview of external audit
planning and progress

— the external audit management
letter.

Inrelaticn to governance and other
matters, the Audit Committee
considered and approved:

- interestraterisk
— fraud prevention

- controlsrelating to the ‘pracure
to pay process and the
management of budgetary
pressuresin respect of
Departmental Expenditure Limits

- the governance statement
submitted to BEIS.

The Corporate Governance Code
requires that the Audit Committee
should make a recommendation

on the appointment of the auditor.
However, our Shareholder
Relationship Framework Document
specifies that we are audited by the
Comptroller and Auditor General,
which we belleve provides appropriate
safeguards for our Sharehalder. The
National Audit Officer (NAD) carries
out the external audit for and on
behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor
General. The external auditors have
not cenducted any non-audit services
during the financial year and the
Committee considers that the
external auditoris both chjective

and independeant.

g

Wildanet
Programme: Cornwall and Isles
of Scilly Investment Fund

Wildanet uses wireless radio
technology tc provide superfast
brozdband inrural areas. The
business received a £750,000
equity investment through The
FSE Group, via the Cornwall and
isles of Scilly Investment Fund,
as part of awider £1.5m package.
The funding will suppart
Wildanet's expansion into Devon,
targeting 12,000 new customers
and creating 39 jobs over the next
three years,

The significantissues considered
by the Committee, with input from
the external auditor, have included:

- methodclogies and procedures
for determining asset valuations
and provisions

- significant accounting policies

- - derisions and judgments

- thecontents of the Annual Report
and the Accounts of the company

- IFRS S accounting implications.

. The external auditors brought five
" matters to the Audit Committee's

attenticnin their 2017/18
management letter.

These were the!

. — implementaticn of IFRS 9

— application of Effective Interest
Rates for fund investments

- — accuracy of payments to new

starters

- avallability of audit evidence from
delivery partners

- planning for the delivery timetable

for 2018/19 accounts and audit,

. All of these issues were addressed,

and their resoclution discussed and
agreed by the Committee.

. Signed for and on behalf of the

Audit Committee

i Jonathan Britton

Chair of the Audit Committee
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Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration
Committee during the year were
Christina McCcmb, Amanda Rendle
and Ceri Smith. It was chaired by
Christina McComb until january 2019,
and since then by Amanda Rendie.
You can find a full attendance record
on page 61.

Role

The Committes's roleis tosetthe
remuneration policy for all Executive
Directars, the Chair and other
members of the Executive Committee,
including pension rights and any
compensation payments. It alsosets
the terms of the Long- and Short-Term
Incentive Plans and any incentive
schemes that the British Business
Bank plc and its subsidiaries may run
inline with the Sharehoider
Relationship Framework Document,

Buring the financial year 2018/19, the
Remuneration Committee considered:

~ the Remuneration Framework
of the Bank

— annual confirmation to the
Shareholder an remuneration
commitments made in the
Sharehelder Relationship
Framework Document

- areview of the objectives for
Executive Directors and members
of the Senicr Leadership Team

— the annuai pay review

— corporate performance ratings
and annuai honus

— Short Term Incentive Plan and
Long Term Incentive Plan awards

— areview of the redesign of the
Long Term Incentive Plan

— theannual remuneration and
reward strategy review

- areview of market benchmarks
for remuneration

~ publication of gender pay gap data
- the equal pay audit
- the Women inFinance Charter
and gender diversity target
— private medical insurance

— paymentof performance awards
for senior executives departing the
Start Up Loans Company following
the transaction with the Bank

- exemptions from public sector pay
guidelines

— the approach to remuneration
at British Patient Capital

- ad-hoc salary proposais for
Executive Committee members

- areview of the Committee’s terms
of reference,

Signed for and on behalf of the
Remuneration Committee

s

Amanda Rendle
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee is chaired by
Neeta Atkar, The other members

of the Committee during the year
were Jonathan Britton, Piers Linney.
Christina McComb and Ceri Smith.
You can find a full attendance record
on page 61

Role

The Committee’s role is to advise the
Board on the key risks 1o the Bank in
the pursuit of its abjectives, including
whether the Bank is operating

within its risk appetite and the
appropriateness of the Bank's Risk .
Management Framewaork. it reviews
the Risk Management Framework,
taking account of the fact that the
Rank isinthe public sector and not
reguiated by the FCA/PRA.

'{4

Befare any appointment

is made by the Board,

the Nomination Committee
evaluates the balance

of skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity
on the Board.

' {4
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During 2018/1S, the Risk Committee
considered and approved:

- therisk appetite statement for
the Bank and its subsidiaries

- theupdated Risk Management
Framewaork and the Information
Risk Management Framework

- theBank's approach to Operational
Risk, Spreadsheet and Model Risk,
Credit and Investment Risk,
tinformation Risk, Reputational
Risk and Market Risi

- the Bank's approach to Business
Intelligence and Operational Risk

— theoutputs of macroeconomic and
other stress tests on our portfolio
and business plan

— the annual Governance Statement
and annuzl Money Laundering
Officer'sreport

- the Bank's position in relation
to State aid

- the Risk section within the
Annual Report

- implementation of the Risk
and Control Self-Assessment
pregramme, Ceneral Data
Protection Regulation (CDPR)
andIFRS 9

— information security.

Signed for and on behalf of the
Risk Committes

NS

Neeta Atkar
Chair of the Risk Committee

Nomination Committee

The Nemination Committee is chaired
by Lord Smith. Christina McComb

and Ceri Smith were members of

the Committee throughout the year.
You can find a full attendance record
on page 61

The UK Corperate Governance
Code requires that a majority of
the Nomination Committee be
independent Non-Executive
Directors, in order to safequard
the interests of shareholders when

making appointments. Cur Nomination -

Committee does not comply with this
as the Chair is considered independent
only on appointment and Ceri Smith

is appointed by the Shareholder and
therefore notindependent. However,
we believe the Shareholder'sinterests
are safequarded as both the Chair

and the Shareholder Representative
Director are appointed by the
Shareholder.

Role

The role of the Nomination Committee
is to review the leadership needs of
the organisation, consider succession
planning, and identify and nominate
Board members.

The Committee discussed and
ronsidered:

— succession planning for Executive
and Non-executive Directors and
for members of the Senior
Leadership Team

- the appointment of Non-executive
Directors to the Boards of the Bank
and British Patient Capital

- areview of membership of the
Board's Committees.

The Shareholder Relationship
Framework Document provides
that no appaintment ar removat

of a director of the campany, or
appointment or removal of any such
director to or from an executive
pasition, can be made without the
prior written consent of the
Shareholder, and appropriate consent
to each directorship was obtained
from the Shareholder,

The Boardis committed to ensuring
the diversity of its membership.

The Nomination Committee's duties
include reqularly reviewing the
structure, size and composition
{including diversity) of the Board

and making recommendations to the
Board about any changes, Befcre any
appointmentis made by the Board,
the Nomination Committee evaluates
the balance of skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity on the Board.

Signed for and on behaif of the
Nomination Committee

LLPFLH

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair of the Nomination Committee
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Other committees

A Board Sub-Cocmmittee was
established to discuss the approval
of the Annual Report and Accounts
far the StartUp Loans Company.

The committee previously formed to
establish the British Patient Capital
subsidiary was wound down during
the year.

The Bank has a number of executive
committeesincluding an Executive
Committee, Investment Committees
and the Product Development
Committee.

The Board, the Board committees,
and the executive committees have
been structured to provide robust
governance. The Board committees
and execCutive committees each have
terms of reference which set out their
respective duties and responsibilities.
All appointments to the Board, the
Board committees and the executive
committees are based on the diversity
of contribution, experience and
required skills, irrespective of gender,
race or any otherirrelevant criteria.

Board and committee
attendance

The table on page 61 sets out the
attendance of directors since 1 April
2018 at each Beard and committee
meetings.

Board performance

The Bank is committed to ensuring
that the Board and its committees
operate effectively and that they
continually improve. A self-evaluation
of the Board and its committees,
inciuding the Audit and Risk
committees, was conductedin

May 2019, A repart - which includes
findings and suggested improvements
- has been accepted by the Board and
an action plan has been established
forimplementing key
recommendations during 2019/20.

The review concluded that the
Board and its committees operate
effectively.

Conflicts of interest

Eachdirector has a duty under the
Companias Act 2006 tc avoid a
situation where they have, or can
have, a direct or indirectinterest that
conflicts, or possibly may conflict,
with the company's interests, As part

of our Conflicts of Interest Palicy, the
Bank has adopted a formal procedure
for the disclosure, review and
autharisation of directors’ conflicts
of interest, which requires written
disclosure of any actual or potential
cenflicts of interest for all directors
and other colleagues. The procedure
requires directors to notify farmally
the Chair or the Company Secretary
as soon as they become aware of any
actual or potential conflicts of interest
with their duties to the Bank, or of
any material change in existing or
potential conflicts that may have
been autherised by the Board,

The Board believes that outside
interests can be beneficial for both
the executive and company and has
authorised the autside interest of the
Chiet Executive Officerinhisrole as a
Non-executive Director at UK Asset
Resolution and a Trustee of the
Design Council. The Bank has not
made any political donations or
incurred any political expenditure
during the financial year.
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Attendance at meetings

The tabie below sets out the attendance of directors at Board and committee meetings in 2018/19;

Board

... PReguar Shortnotice  Audit _  Risk Remuneration Nomination
Total number of meetings 8 2 5 4 8 5
Lord Smith, Chair 8/8 2/2 5/5
Non-executive Directors
Neeta Atkar 8/8 0/¢ 4/5 4/4
Jonathan Britton 778 072 5/5 4/4
Caroline Green 5/6 172 3/4
(stepped down 18 January 2019)
PiersLinney 7 8/8 2/e 4/4
Christing McComb B8/8 2/2 4/4 8/8 5/5
Amanda Rendle 8/8 02 B/8
Ceri Smith B - 8/8 Gre 34 _7/8 5/5
Executive Directors
Keith Margan 8/8 1/2
Christopher Fox 8/8 2/e
Patrick Magee 8/8 2/2

In 2ddition to scheduled meetings, two additianal meetings of the Board were held at short notice to deal with time-critical matters. Seme directors

were unable tc attend these meetings due to conflicts with existing commitments,



62 British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Directors report

Risk management
and internal control

The British Business

Bank plc is committed to
ensuring the best standards
of corporate governance.
The Board of Directors
and Board committees
support it in this mission,

The Board has averall accountability
and responsibility for the
management of risk within the British
Business Bank. Our Risk Management
Framework has been designed to align
to the size, scale and complexity of
the British Business Bank and has
been benchmarked against other
financial services institutions. The
British Business Bank does not held
reqgulatory capital and is not regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA) or the Prudential Regulation
Authority (FRA). However, one of its
subsidiaries representing less than 1%
of the portfolio, Capital for Enterprise
Fund Management, is regulated by
the FCA for controlling but not holding
client meney. We are subject to ather
applicable laws and requiations and
we alm to meet gocd practice
standards. We have policles and
procedures in place designed to
ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regutations, including anti
maney laundering, data protection
and freedom of information, and we
follow best practice where
appropriate and applicable.

To ensure robust and effective
decision making within the Bank,
there are approved terms of reference
for each executive level investment
committee for each subsidiary which
makes investment decisions,

Risk Management Framework

Our Risk Management Framework

is acollection of tools, processes

and methodologies that support the
British Business Bank in identifying,
assessing, monitoring and controlling
therisks it faces.

The Risk Management Framewaork:

— demonstrates a clear link 1o the
overall strategy and business plan
of the British Business Bank

- outlines the risk management
vision and objectives, and the
approach for evolving the risk
management capability of the
British Business Bank

— isreviewed on an annual basis and,
if requirad, more frequently to
reflect any significant materia!
changes to the business, economic
or regulatory outlook,

Note 26 of the financial statements
sets out a discussion of how the Bank
handles its risks in relation to financial
instruments.,

The Risk Management Framework is
subject toregular review to assess

its effectiveness within the British
Business Bank. It has been updated
over the past year ta reflect the
evolving operating model. This year's
review concluded that the design of
the Risk Management Framewark
remains appropriate to enable the
Bank toidentify, assess, controi and
moniter the risk profile against the
Risk Appetite Statement. The findings
of this review were presented to the
Board Risk Committee in March 2019
and a summary was presented to the
Board. In the absence of any material
changes to the business, economic or
regulatory outlook, the next review of
the Risk Manzgement Framework will

take place in the fourth guarter
of 2019/20 financial year.

Key elements of our Risk Management
Framewaork include risk appetite and
risk gavernance

Risk appetite

The British Business Bank's Risk
Appetite Poiicy acts as the link
between overall business strategy,
the risk strategy. and the Risk
Management Framework, by

- bringing strategic context
toidentified risks

— adopting clear escalation criteria,
and

— informing the processes for the
identification, assessiienl, ool
and monitoring of risk exposures,

The Risk Appetite Pclicy of the British
Business Bank is based on the high-
level design principle thatrisk appetite
represents the level of risk the Board
of the British Business Bank is willing
to accept to deliver its public policy
objectives.

The Board undertook a review of the
British Business Bank's risk appetite
inMarch 2019 in conjunction with
setting its 2019/20 business plan,

The Risk Appetite Statement
summarises the Board's appetite for
the principal risks that the British
Business Bank is exposed ta. Itis tied
to the risk categerisations detailed

in the Risk Management Framework
which outlines seven broad categories
of level 1 risks and 31 sub-categories
of level 2 risks, which includes gne
new level 2 risk category added during
the year - model risk,
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The Risk Appetite Statement:

Risk

Definition o

Sit';étegic' and
business risk

Risk appetite:
Low - Medium

Creditand
investment risk

Risk appetite:
Medium - High

Market risk

Risk appetite:
Medium

The {residual) risks of
directorindirect
financial losses arising
from asub-optimal
business strategy or
business model and
the risk of failure to
meetinternal and/or
public policy
objectives,

" Theriskofdirector

indirect financial
losses on and of f-
balance sheet
positions as aresult
of the failure of an
end borrower or
counterparty to meet
its obligationsin
accordance with
agreed terms.

Theriskof director -

indirect financial
losses that arise from
fluctuations in values
of, orincome from,
assetsarin
movements in interest
or exchange rates or
credit spreads.

_Example Categories
Risk that the Bank has an

inadequate governance
structure.

- Risk that the Bank’s current
and planned products may
not be fit for purpose.

- Riskthat the Bank does
not meet {ts deployment
or commitment targets.

- Risk that the Bank is not
effective in meeting its
objectives.

- Risk of end borrower default,
for example due to poor
trading, or defectsin the
delivery process.

- Whilst the majority of individual

exposures toend borrowers

are small, exposures to mid-cap
companies are typically larger.

- Delivery partner default or
closure,
~ Venture Capital is subject to

vintage risk, with the year the

investment was made being
asignificantrisk factor.

- Concentraticn within one
industry or location creates
a portfolio thatis subject to

greater risk than a more evenly

balanced one.

losses due to foreign

exchange mevements through

Its investments.

— TheBanrk's investments are
subject tainterestrate
fluctuations,

~ TheBankmakesmaterial

_Example mitigants

Bothaclearly defined set

of objectives and a robust
governance model are in place.
New products are subject

to market assessmentand

new product approval process.
Regular review of our key risks

to objectives by the senior team
and Board members.

Impact on SMEs and ongoing
communication with
stakeholders.

Assessing the risks and mitigants
to meeting our objectives during
the business planning process.
Delivery partner selection
process includes robust due
ditigence, assessment of
underwriting and sanctioning
processes, and thereafter is
subject to portfolio monitoring
and reqular review.

The credit quality of exposures

is monitored closely.

The Bank aims to continue to
invest throughout the economic
cycle, therefore minimising the
vintage risk.

The portfolio is monitored closely
for concentration risk,

‘TheBank has small foreign

exchange exposure and does
not hedge this exposure. This is
inline with Government palicy.
The Bank conducts scenario
testing of exposures sensitive
tointerest rate market valuation
or foreign exchange movements,
The Bank requires some delivery
partners to manage market risk
directly within the terms of the
investment.



64 British Business Bank - Annual Reportand Accounts 2019 Directors’ report
Risk _Definition  ExampleCategories = Examplemitigants =
Operational risk Therisk of direct or - Errorsin execution, delivery,  — Risk and control assessments

Risk appetite:
Low ~ Medium

Information risk

Risk appetite:
Low

indirect financial
losses resulting from
inadequate or failed
internal processes,
people and systems or
from external events.

This encompasses any
compromise, malicicus
acts or otherwise, to
the information the
Bank handles during
its creation, storage,
processing, transfer
or disposal (the
information lifecycle).

and processing.

Failure of internal controls

OF processes,

External or internal frauds.
Damage to physical assets.
utilities disruption or systems
failure.

Risk that Bank does not have,
recruit or retain the right
people, with the right culture
and skills, to meet its
objectives.

The risk that the business
takes on too much change or
inadeguately manages current
change programmes.

Risk of inaccurate or
fncomplete data processed
within operations.

Breach of legai requirements
relating to safe-keeping and
disclosure of informaticon,
Risk of business sensitive
infarmation being leaked or
accidentally made avaitable
in the public domain.

Threats of cyber-attacks that
steal sensitive data relating
to the Bank or its defivery
nariners as well as distupt
the Bank's functionality.

with functiona! teams are helc
to assess risks and associated
internal controls.

Operational Incidents
management process in place.
Ciose liaison with BEIS counter
fraud network and regular
interaction with key business
partners.

Cperating model review and
regular ernployee engagement
including Colleague Forum,
Change function and Change
Board to manage the growth
of the organisation.

Implementation of business
information systems and data
governance across the Bank,
including GDPR.

Cyber Essentials accreditation.
infermaticn Risk Management
Framework in place supported
by policies and pracedures
covering information security,
data protection, freedom of
informaticn, information
classification and handling,

IT acceptabie use.

Mandatory colleague training
programme covering information
security, cybercrime, data
protecticn, and freedom of
information.

Information technology systems
disaster recovery testing.



Directars'report

British Business Bank - Apnual Report and Accounts 2019 65

Risk
Legal and
compliance risk

Risk appetite:
Low

Reputational risk

Risk appetite;
Low - Medium

Definition

Risk of breaching

all applicable UK and
EU law, regulation,
or standards relating
to defivery partners
and products which
exposes the Bank

to fines and penalties
as well as other
associated financial
iosses.

Theriskthatthe -

firmwill actin a way
which falls short

of internal and
external stakeholder
expectations

and cause reputational
damage.

__Example Categories
— Failure to adhere to current -

employment law.

Breaches of legal requirements
in relation to public law or

breach of Government

guidelines appropriate toa -
non-departmental public body.
Risk that the Bank is not
compliant with European -
Commission State aid rules.
Therisk that the Bank aperates

in breach of applicable UKand -
EU laws and requiations, or the
law of any other jurisdiction
thatis binding in the UK

Risk that delivery partners -
breach legal or requlatory
requirements.

t

The corporate actions -
of the Bank fall short

of the expectations of -
our Shareholder and/or
colleagues.

The Bank operates an
cutsourcing model whichis
subject to delivery partner
conduct and performance.

_Example mitigants

We keep up to date with relevant
employment law through internal
and external legal advice and
reflect this ininternal HR policies
and procedures.

New products and programmes
are assessed against the UK and
EU requlatory environments,
The Bank has a suite of policies to
direct governance e.g. Tax Policy,
Procurement How to Buy Guide.
Regular dizlogue with the
Shareholder State aid teams.
Legal Team review of transaction
structuring.

Bank employees are subject

10 a Code of Conduct, annual
{ompliance Declaration and
mandatory e-Learning.

The Bank undertakes extensive
due diligence on new delivery
partners and monitors existing
delivery partners and their
performance against contractual
requirements or Service Level

_Agreements.

A reputaticnal risk policy is

in place.

The Bank undertakes extensive
due diligence on new delivery
partners and monitors existing
delivery partners and their
performance against contractual
reguirements or service level
agreement (SLA).

The Bank has a robust complaints
policy in place.
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The Bank did an exercise to guantify The outcomes were considered
the potential downside risks af a by both the Board and Board Risk
severe downturn against our Business  Committee and the outputs were
Plan. This assessed the likely impact shared with the Shareholders.
onour portfolicassumingalin
20-year scenario across the various
programmes, and further scenarios
including those based upon Bank of
England guidelines and scenario
analysis based on financial impacts
arising from Market Risk (Fareign
Exchange and Interest Rate risks).

The three lines of defence model
implemented by the Bank s
outlined below.

Three lines of defence model

British Business Bank Shareholder

The Board*

British Business Bank
Risk Committee

British Business Bank

CEOQ/CFO/CCO/CMO Audit Committee

Chief
Executive

Head of
Internal Audit

Third line of defence
Internal audit

First line of defence Second line of defance
Product functions Control functions

External Audi

Management Risk & Financial
Controls Compliance Control

Third Party
Assurance

Human
Resources

Internal

Controls Legal

* British Business Bank Board also
acts as a Third Line of Defencein its

IT& Physical Security E?npée(;\;i[s;‘:flﬂghe First and Second

** Senior Information Risk Owner
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Risk governance

The British Business Bank risk
governance is based upon a ‘three
lines of defence’ modet as outlined
in the Risk Management Framework,
where the;

- firstline of defence isresponsible
for the day to day identification,
reporting and management of
their own risks

- second line of defenceis
responsible for designing risk
policies and methodologies,
monitoring performance and
compliance, identifying and
reparting risks and providing
independent and ohjective
challenge to the first lines
of defence

~ third line of defence provides
independent assurance of the
overall system of internal control
including assessment of the risk
governance framewaork.
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The key principles of this model,
as illustrated by the above diagram,
are that:

- the Board has cverall accountability
and responsibility for the
management of risk within
the Bank

— the Beoard delegates specific risk
management rofes and
responsibilities to the Board Risk
Committee, the Audit Committee,
CEQ, and the CRO

— the CEQis supportedin delivery
of these responsibilities through
direct reports from the senior team

- the CRO is a member of the senior
team and is alsc supported by the
Risk and Compliance functionin

the delivery of their responsibilities.

The British Business Bank encourages
a strong culture of risk awareness and
transparency through robust risk
governance, clear accountabilities,
regular intranet updates and in-house
live and computer-based training.

Our policies form an integral part

of managing risk within the British
Business Barnk. We have an
enterprise-wide set of policies,
frameworks and procedures covering
the major parts cf cur business

in place.

They outline how we work, taking
regulatory or legal reguirements
into account, as well as industry best
practice. Qur policies are approved
by the appropriate committees and
communicated to colleagues across
the Bank. Colleagues are also subject
to the British Business Bank Code of
Conductand annual compliance
declarations.

The British Business Bank conducts
its business legitimately and with
integrity. We have developed and
implemented internal systems and
controls to detect, prevent and
respond te fraud, bribery or corruption
which applies to all colleagues within
the British Business Bank and in all our
relationships with third parties and
customers. An anti-fraud, bribery and
corruption palicy is in place which was
reviewed and updated during 2018

to specifically include reference to
bribery and carruption and to ensure it
remains current to relevantlegislative
requirements. The policy is
communicated to ali staff through
intranet updates and computer-based
training which is mandatory for all
colleagues,

Appraved by the Board of Directors

LS ANt e

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

11july 2019
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Directors’ remuneration report
Chair’s foreword

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to
present the Remuneration Report for
the British Business Bank for the year
ended 31 March 2018, Thaose sections
of the report that have been audited
by the Naticnal Audit Office have heen
identified as such,

The Committee’s primary role is

to provide robust, independent
governance for executive
remuneration, to ensure that reward
for the Bank's executive team:

- supperts the Bank's long-term
business strategy and values

— enables the Bank to recruit,
motivate and retain talented
individuals with appropriate skills
and experience

- links executive reward to the Bank's
performance against its long-term
business plan,

This reportis divided into two parts:

1. Policy on Executive Directors’ and
senior managementremuneration.

2. Annualreporton remuneration,
This section outlines how the policy
has been applied and includes
details of remuneration for the
senior team.

During the finandal year 2018419, the
Bank continued to make significant
progress, as outlined in the Chair's
statement. The Committee has also
played animportant role in manitoring
and reviewing a remuneration
framework that reflects the particular
circumstances of the Bank as a public
owned company operating in a
commercial enviranment. Accordingly,
the Committee has continued with an

incentive scheme thatis designed to
reward seniar colleagues based on
the long-term sustainable success of
the Bank. Key decisions made ty the
Committee and recommended to
the Board during the year were:

- agreeing the annual pay review
far 2019

— overseeing a comprehensive review
of the Bank's remuneraticn
strategy

- formulating a set of rewarad
principles te guide remuneration
policy decisions

- agreeing the design of a new annual
bonus plan for colleagues at Director
level and below far 2019/20

— reviewing enhancements to the
Bank's performance management
processes with a view 1o
strengthening the link between
performance and reward

— measuring corporate and individual
performance targets for 2018719
and the third cycle LTIP

- reviewing the Bank's gender pay
gapreport

- reviewing the approach to setting
personal goals for the Executive
Directors and other members of the
senior team.

In accordance with the rules of

the Bank’s Laong-Term Incentive Plan
(LTIP}, awards were assessed for

the corporate performance element
of the scheme over the three-year
cycle 2016/17 1o 2018/19. Based on
the performance of the Bark against

_itsKey Performance Indicators and

taking into account various other

considerations, the Committee
concluded an award of 75% of
the maximum was appropriate.
Further details of awards of the
senior executives are setout later
inthis report.

The Remuneration Committee has
continued to take aninterestin
broader market trends and carried
out benchmarking of salaries and
remunerationin 2018, In the context
of the Bank's policy remit, the
Committee recognises that
remuneration palicy will need to

be reviewed on a regular basis

10 ensure that itis meeting the
requirements of our Sharehalder and
is fit for purpose. Where appropriate,
the Commitiee will seek relevant
external advice and guidance.

Looking ahead to 2019/20, the
Committee will be reviewing the
business targets for the next period
and setting stretching business and
personal targets for the executive. We
will monitar the impact of the changes
to remuneration policies that have
been introduced to ensure they drive
the correct outcomes for the business,
and reflect the changing environment
in which the Bank operates.

Finally lwould like to thank my
predecessor, Christina McComb for her
robust and supportive stewardship of
the Committee over the last five
years.

/“/

Amanda Rendle

é//é’/é
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Remuneration policy report

Table 1: Remuneration palicy

Element

Objective
To attract and retain high-calibre
senior leaders

Objective
Tareward performance over the
longer term

... .. UOperation, opportunity and performance framework
Basesalary L o
Base salaries are reviewed annually considering the nature of the role and

responsibilities. Roles are benchmarked against relevant comparator
organisations in the public and private sectors, The Remuneration Committee
also considers the external enviranment and views of the shareholder.

Any Executive Director salary increases in percentage terms will normally be
inline with increases awarded to other colleagues but may be higher in certain
circumstances. The circumstances may include but are not limited to:

- where there has been an increase in the scope or responsibility of an
Executive Director's role

— where asalary has fallen significantly below market positioning given the

.. ... .. _ seeandscalecftheBank.
Long TermIncentive Plan(LTIP) o L
The LTIP cperates as a series of three-year cycles. Objectives are set at the

beginning of each cycle and progress is reviewed by the Committee on an
annuat basis. 7

Objectives are set in two categories: corporate and perscnal. The weighting
between these categories may be varied gver time, at the discretion of the
Committee, considering the requirements of the business and any relevant
external factors. The weighting for the current LTIP cycles is 60% to corporate
targets and 40% to personal targets. 7

Corporate targets cover rolling three-year periods and will generally bain line
with the Bank's business plan objectives. The current targets for the LTIP
awards granted during the year and the threshold levels are set outin the
Annual Report on Remuneration and have no specific weightings. Personal
targets are designed o consider the specific responsibilities of individual senior
leaders in the Bank.

The currentincentive is a maximum cash award of 50% cf base salary. In the
case of Executive Directors, awards are paid at the end of the relevant three-
year cycle. In the case of other reciplents of the LTIP, any awards in respect of
perscnal cbjectives may be paid after two years and the corporate element
after three years. There is no annual bonus award for Executive Directers or
the senior team.
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Tabie 1 continued: Remuneration palicy

Operation, opportunity and performance framework

Long term incentive plan (LTIP) (continued)

Objective
To reward performance gver the
longer term

Pensionand other benefits

Oinjective
To provide an attractive and cost-
effective package

Objective
To provide fair but not excessive
contract features

Although the Company is not governed by the FCA or PRA, the Committee

has determined that regulatory best practice shouid be adopted with regard

to Recovery and withholding Provisions and such provisions shall apply for a
period of seven years from the start of the performance pericd. Recovery and
Wwithholding shall apply in arange of adverse circumstances, at the Committee's
discretion, including financial accounts misstatement, significant failure of risk
management, regulatory censure or breach of policy and procedures.

Asageneral rule, if a participant ceases employment within the Company's
Group before an award is paid, then the award opportunity shall normally be
forfeited and lapse in full, although there are exceptions that may he agreed
by the Committee far participants cateqgorised as ‘good leavers',

The Remuneration Committee has ultimate discretion over the paymentaf any
awards takinginto account factors it considers relevantincluding the overall
performance of the Bank.

The Bank contributes up to a maximum 15% of base salary to its defined.

contributicn scheme or an approved personal pension scheme, subject tc a
minimum colleague contribution of 3%. This benefitis tiered depending on
the grade of the colleague. The CEO receives a cash-in-lieu allowance of 10%,
Any other colleague below Executive Director level who has reached his ar her
pension Lifetime Allowance may also receive a cash-in-lieu allowance of 10%.
Currernt benefits are provided via the ‘'mylifestyle’ benefits portal affering child
care vouchers, cycle to work, etc. The Bank also provides life insurance and
allows colieagues to buy or sell up to five days' holiday. These are subject to
review cn an annual basis 1o ensure they remain appropriate in light of the

... .. ... Bankspublicownershipand attractivenessinrelation tothe market.
Loss of office payments

There are no defined terms farloss of office within service cantracts. Inline
with policy, Executive Directars and the senior team are on six months’ notice
either side. Provision may be made for payment in lieu of nctice, where this is
deemed to be in the interest of the business. Any situation will be considered
by the Committee onits merits.

Should an individual be considered a ‘good leaver' under the LTIP rules, an
appropriate portion of their LTIPs may, at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee, be retained. All termination payments are subject to Cabinet Office
Cuidance,

New Executive Director remurieration

Objective
To attract and retain high-calibre
senior leaders

Remuneration for any new appointments will be set in accordance with the
policy set out in this table. The same approach will be taken with respect to
any internal appointments. We do not offer any signing-on payments,
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Table 2: Scenarios chart: ranges for Executive Director remuneration

The following ¢hart shows how
executives' remuneration could

vary according to performance and
assumes that the Directors are
employed by the Bank for awhole
financial year. The variable pay
element is measured over a three-
year period and is paid out after

the end of the third year, subject to
persanal and corporate performance

conditions and continued employment.

External appointments

Executive Directors may be invited

to become Non-executive Directorsin
other companies. These appointments
can enhance their knowledge and
experience to the benefit of the Bank.
Itis the Bank's policy that Board
approval is required before any
external appointment may be
accepted by an Executive Director.
The Executive Director is permitted to
retain any fees paid for such services.
During the year, Keith Morgan served
as a Non-executive Director at UK
Asset Resolution Ltd and received

a fee of £80,000.

000
500 -
400
300 -
200 -
100 -

0

Minimum Target Maximum

Keith Morgan
M rixedpay | variable pay

Notes

M:inimum Target Maximum
Christopher Fox

Minimum Target Maximum
Patrick Magee

1. Minimum = fixed pay cnly (salary and current cost of benefits and pension).

2. Taryet = fixed pay and 75% vesting of the LTIP.

3. Maximum - fixed pay and 100% vesting of the LTIP.

4, The actual awards are setout in table 5.

Non-executive Directors

The Chair and the Non-executive
Directors do not have service
agreements with the Bank. Non-
executive Directors are appointed
under letters of appointment which
provide for aninitial term of service
of three years. The appointment

of a Non-executive Director can be
terminated, by either party, giving
written notice. Any increases in fees
are subject tc Shareholder approval.
Thereis no provision for compensation
forloss of office, The dates of the
current dates of appointment of the
Non-executive Directors are shown
in the Directors’ report.

The terms and conditions of
appointment of the Non-executive
Directors are available for inspection
atthe Bank's registered office,

The fee levels paid to Non-executive
Directorsreflect the time commitment
and respaonsibilities and are approved
by the Shareholder.

The Board reviews the amount of each
component of the fees an a periodic
basis to assess whether they remain
competitive and appropriatein light of
changesin roles, respensibilities or
time commitment of the Non-
execUtive Directors. In accordance
with common practice Non-executive
Directors are reimbursed expanses
incurred in performing their role.

Table 3 sets out the key elements

of the Bank’s remuneration policy

for the Chair and other Non-executive
Directors.
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Table 3: Remuneration policy for Nen-executive Directors

Element
Basic fee - Chair

Remunerationis in the form of an

annual cash fee, in line with practice
in the UK

Operation, opportunity and performance framework

The Chair fee will be .reviewéafrbr'n'fi-rﬁé“t-d"ti.n'we by the Remuneration

Committee,

Basic fee - Non-executive Directors

Remuneration is in the form of an
annual cash fee, in line with practice
inthe UK

Bank wide remuneration
and incentive plans

The Bank aims to apply its
remuneration policy in a consistent
way for all colleagues.

Caolleagues receive their basic salary,

pension contributions, life assurance,

and the option to buy/sell up to five
days holiday. In addition, scme
employees receive private medical
insurance and illness income
protection, although these benefits
are no longer open for new hires.
The Bank has two mutually exclusive
incentive plans: the LTIP and The
British Business Bank Performance
Bonus Plan ({Annua! Bonus'), Both
plans are designed to reward
performance and achievement

of the Bank's objectives.

Non-executive Director remuneration is reviewed annually by the Chair and the
Executive Directors, Any recommendations are subject to Board approval, with
Non-executive Directers not veting on thelr own remuneration. Additional fees
are paid te the Senior Independent Director and Chairs of the Audit, Risk and
Remuneration Committees, in recognition of the additional time spent in
respect of their committee activities. This isinline with UK practice generally.

These plans are payabie whclly in
cash, reflecting the fact that the Bank
has a single shareholder (the
Secretdary of Stale fur Business,
Energy and industrial Strategy) and
does not jssue shares to colleagues.

Annual bonus

The Annual Bonus provides an
opportunity for eligible colleagues

to be rewarded for their personal
contribution during the bonus year,
aswell as to participate in the Bank's
corporate success. All permanent
colleagues who are not eligible for

the LTIP and have worked Tor at least
three months of the bonus year will be
considered for a bonus under the Plan.

Bonus payments are made up of a
Personat and a Corporate element,
and are calculated as follows:

— the personal element reflects

persenal contribution during the
year and is determined by the
performance rating agreed as part
of the year-end perfarmance review

- the corperate element is based
on an assessment by the Board
of the Bank's achievement against
its strategic objectives during
the bonus year. This element
represents arecegnition of the
commitment and effort that
colfeagues collectively have putinto
delivering the Bank's objectives

— individual award levels are
calculated by reference to salary
and vary according to seniority
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Annual report on remuneration

This part of the report has been prepared in accordance with Part
3 of Schedule 8 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Amendment Regulations 2013.

Disclosures are also made in
accordance with the Companies Act
2006, The Bank has complied with
the regulations where it beiieves
itis appropriate to do so.

Although the Bank is not subject
to the variable pay cap introduced
under the European Union Capital
Requirements Directive, it does
comply with the cap.

Performance assessment

The third cycle LTIP matured on

31 March 2019, covering the period
2016/17 to 2018/19, and awards are
payablein August 2019, Awards under
the scheme are based on both
corporate performance (making up
60% of the total potential award) and
personal performance {(making up
40% of the total potential award).

Considering the performance against
KPIs {as shown in table 4 overleaf)
and other considerations, the
Remuneration Committee has
determined that a corporate
performance pay-out of 75% s
appropriate which is on target for
Corporate Performance.

Membership of the
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee
comprises Amanda Rendle, Christina
McComb and Ceri Smith (representing
the Shareholder), Amanda Rendle took
over from Christina McComb as Chair of
the Committee on 1 January 2019. The
Committee members bring with them
arange of expertise fromdiverse
backgreunds designed both to support
the Bank inits governance framework
and to facilitate the relationship with
the Shareholder. Informal discussion
between Committee members and
the executive has alsc added value

. to the Bank's Remuneration policy

and practice. Only members of the
committee and the chair of the
board have the right to attend
committes meetings.

The Chief Executive, Chief Financial

* Officer, General Counsel and Company

Secretary, and Human Resources
Managing Directer have been invited
to join meetings, but not where their
own remuneration is the subject of
discussion. The Company Secretary
or her delegate acts as Secretary

to the Committee.

External advisers

The Remuneration Committee

used advisers during the year for

the provision of remuneraticn advice.
During the year Mercer provided
advice to the Committee on
remuneration structures in British
Patient Capital for a fee of £22,500.
Aon MclLagan provided benchmarking
data for fees of £45,300. Neither of
these advisors have any connection
with the Bank.
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Table 4: KPI targets and actual outcomes (Third cycle LTIP corporate performance)

Objective KPI - o Actual Targets
Lower
Threshold Stretch Challenge
Increase supply Up to £10bn stock of finance facilitated
through our programmes over 5 years £13.5bn £7.60bn £9.5bn f114bn
- of which SME £6.6bn £54bn £6.8bn £7.5bn
More diverse Over 50% of our finance facilitated through
finance market providers other than the four largest banks
over 5 years 92% 81% 86% 91%
Better provisicn Balanced scorecard measure, showing an
of information average of green across each year in the Amber/
plan (score in brackets) Green (5) Green (2) Creen (4) Creen (6)

Manage taxpayers’ Toearngreater than the Government’s
rescurces efficiently medium term cost of capital over the next
5years measured by the 5 year gilt rate
at the beginning of the plan 3.6% 2.3% 2.9% 3.2%

jan

. The ‘Better provisicn of information objective is assessed annually against measures on a balanced scorecard, and & RAG status of Red, Amber
or Green is assigned to each measure and the overall outcome. The scores in brackets after the ‘Lower Threshold’, ‘Stretch’ and 'Challenge' targets
represent the sceres out of @ maximum possible scare of 8, The outcome shownin the ‘Actual’ column is the average RAG status ang score for the
three years of the third cycle LTIP.

. Inreachingits decision cn the overall Corparzte Performance outcome for the third cycle LTIP the Remuneration Committee alsa considered
aspects of the Bank's perfarmance during the cycle that are not reflected inthe outcomes against the KPt targets.

nJ
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The 2016/17 and 201//18 years’
perfarmance are used to determine
the perscnal element of the third
cycle LTIP. The personal performance
of the Executive Directors, as
confirmad by the Remuneration
Committee, is set out below for each
of these years,

Keith Morgan

For 2016717 the Committee assessed
Keith's personal performance as
on-target and awarded 75% of the
maximum for 2016/17 For 2017/18
the Committee assessed personal
performance as ahead of target and
awarded 80%.

Christopher Fox

In 2016417 the Committee concluded
that Christopher’s personal
performance was on-target and
awarded 75%. For 2017/18 the
Committee assessed personal
performance as ahead of targetand
awarded 80%.

Patrick Magee

For both 2016/17 and 2017/18

the Committee assessed Patrick’s
parscnal performance as on-target
and awarded 75%.

Table 5: LTIP awards made to Executive Directors

- ~ Keith Morgan ChristopherFox | PatrickMagee
Max amount: £000 149.5 105.0 105.0
Potential Performance Actual | Potential Performance Actual Potential Performance
Award Awarded Award Award Awarded Award Award Awarded
Q00 £000 | £000 £000 £000 7
Personal performance Y1 299 75% 2c.4 [ 210 /5% 158 21.0 75%
Personal performance Y2 29.9 S0% 269 ; 210 BO% 16.8 21.0 75%
Corporate performance 89.7 75% 67.3 ! 63.0 75% 47.3 630 75%
Total Award 1485 116.6 1 1050 /9.9 105.0

Actual
Award
£000

15.8
158
473
/89
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Table 6: Executive Director remuneration {audited)

Year ended 31 March 2019‘]"-

Pension
Payments
(including
Taxable Annual Longterm cash
Salary Benefits Incentive incentive supplements] Total
£000 £000 £000 E0CO £000 £000
Keith Morgan 2990 0.0 0.0 11656 29.9 445.5
Christopher Fox 224.4 Q.7 0.0 798 0.0 3049
Patrick Magee 210.0 0.7 0.0 78.8 21.0 310.4
Total B ) 733.4 1.4 0.0 _ 275.2 ) 50.9 1,069£3_
T - "-—Y_eval' endgral_March 2_018 i
Pension
Payments
Taxable Annual Longterm (including cash
Salary Benefits Incentive incentive supplements) Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Keith Morgan 2990 0.0 0.0 1181 299 447.0
Christopher Fox 224.4 0.4 0.0 851 0.0 3059
Patrick Magee 210.0 0.4 0.0 872.0 21.0 3134
Total 3 7733.4 08 - 0.0 ) 285.._2 _ 50.9 ' 1,070.3
Notes

1. The Company has not made penswon contributions for Keith Morgon but hes instead peid a cash alternative to him.
2. The Executive Directors receive death in service andillness income protection benefits which are non-taxable.

3. No Executive Director recetved annual incerntive payments in 2018/19. The leng-term incentive payments relatc to the three-year pericd ending
31 March 2018 and are payable in August 2019

Table 9 sets out the corporate three-year performance targets for the Executive Directors, which have no specific
weightings, for the fifth LTIP cycle.

Non-executive Directors are not remunerated in the same way as the Executive Directors and therefore have not been
included in the table above. However, they do receive compensation in the form of a fee as detailed in Table 10,
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Table 7: Senior team remuneration {audited)

Yearended 31 March 2019
Pension
Corporate Personal Payments
element of element of {including
Taxable Annual thirdcycle fourth cycle cash
Salary Benefits Incentive LTIP LTIP supplements) Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Shanika Amarasekara 210.6 0.7 0.0 455 319 316 3203
Mark Gray 189.3 06 0.0 44.0 221 278 2838
Andrew Grant 89.5 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 13.4 103.2
Catherine Lewis
La Torre 237.0 0.7 0.0 40.6 374 237 3354
Total 726.4 2.3 0.0 1301 91.4 96.5 1,046.7
- o e e m\;éyé'rwéwﬁded 31 March 2018 i T
Pension
Corporate Personal Payments
element of element of (including
Taxable Annual secondcycle third cycle cash
Salary Benefits Incentive LTIP LTIP supplements) Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 E£000 £000 £000
Shanika Amarasekara 2059 0.4 0.0 48.0 323 308 3175
Mark Gray 2059 0.4 00 48,0 e3.c 309 3084
Andrew Grant 1225 03 0.0 0.0 0.0 184 141.2
Catherine Lewis
La Torre 214.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 280 214 263.8
EtaL 77777 o - o 748.3 1.5 0.0 96.0 83.5 101.6 1,030.9
Notes

1. Theindividuals above receive deathin service andiflness income protection benefits which are non-taxable.

2. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed performance of individuals for 2018/13 and, for those eligible for anLTIP award, has made provisional
awardsin the range of 75%-85% for the senior team. (2017/18: 40% - 90%) subject tocontinued empioyment, these awards are payable in

August 20240,

3. Andrew Grant ceasced to be an employee ef the Bank with effect from 31 August 2018 at which point all unvested LTIP awards lapsed.

4, Mark Cray ceased tc be an employee of the Bank with effect from 24 February 2019, and was granted ‘good leaver' statusin respect of hisunvestes
LTIP awards, subject to a pro-rata reduction in award value,
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This section of the annual report on remuneration sets out the LTIP grants made during the year and which will vest

inMarch 2021 subject to meeting the performance conditions.

The senior team are invited to participate in a long-term incentive plan. The following individuals have elected tojoin
the plan and have been granted interests during 2018/19 worth up to a maximum of 509% of salary. Any pay-out is
subject to a number of conditions, including perfermance conditions,

Table 8: Fifth cycie long term incentive plan (LTIP)

Keith Morgan
Christopher Fox
Patrick Magee
Shanika Amarasekara
Mark Gray

(Catherine Lewis
La Torre

Notes

Type of
interest

CashLTIP
Cash LTIP
Cash LTIP
Cash LTIP
Cash LTIP

Cash LTIP

Total face
value
of award

(% of salary)

50%
50%
50%
50%
50%

50%

Year ended 31 March 2019
Total face Totalface

value of value of Total
personal carparate face value
award award of award
56,8 89.7 14565
44.9 6573 112.2
42.0 63.0 105.0
421 53.2 105.3
41.2 61.8 103.0

) 43.8 65.7 109.5

1. Persenal performance targets are not included in this table as they are not subject to threshold canditions.

Percentage
of carporate
award for
reaching
threshald
targets

50%
500
50%
50%
50%

50%

End of
corporate
performance
period

31 March 2021
31 March 2021
31 March 2021
31 March 2021
31 March 2021

31 March 2021



Directors remuneration report

British Business Bank - Annual Repart and Accounts 2019 79

Table 9: Group targets for the fifth cycle (March 2021)

Objective
Increase supply

More diverse
finance market
Better provision
of information

Manage
taxpayers’
resources
efficiently
Centre of
Expertise

Regicnal

Key Performance Indicator

Value (£bn) of stock of finance sﬁprorté‘d th rough
the Bank's programmes by end March 2021,

% of finance suppoerted through smaller providers
{non-'Big 5'banks) by end March 2021

Balanced scorecard measure, showing an average
of Green acress each year in the plan. Each year
to be measured against the following five elements;

a) Effectiveness of building awareness of the Bank

b) Measures relating to the use of the Business
Finance Guide

C) Measures Relating to the use of the Finance Hub
d) Measures relating to the regional manager network

e) Impacton SME population’s awareness and behaviour
Adjusted return on capital employed {excluding temporary

fair value discounts) by end March 2021,

To be measured through a combinaticn of quantitative
and qualitative measures:
a) Asurvey of the Bank's reputation as a Centre
of Excellence on smali business with relevant
stakeholders.

b) Areportdescribing the Bank's relevant deliverables
inthis area.

Perfarmance cver 2018/19 will be measured against

a qualitative report provided by the Executive, For

2019/20, this will be supplemented by regional

commitment flow data and delivery of a set number

of Initlatives. In 2020/21, this may be further

supplemented by survey resuitts,

Lowrér
_threshold  —  Stretch  Challenge
f£6.5bn £8.7bn £9.6bn
B7% S2% 96%

Amber/ Creen(3) Green (4)
Green (2)

2.0% 2.4% 3.0%

Performance against these KPIs will
be assessed by the Remuneration
Committee at the end of each financial
year and aggregated over the three
years to give an overall score

1. The Better provision of information' objective is assessed annually against measures on a balanced scorecard, and a RAG status of Red, Amber
ar Greenis assigned to each measdre and the cverall cutcome. The scoresin brackets after the ‘Lower Threshold', ‘Stretch and ‘Challenge' targets
represent the scores out of a maximum possible score of 5.
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Table 10: Non-executive Director remuneration (audited)

Tdtal Fees - Tdtal Fees

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000

Lord Smith (Chair) 120 89
Christina McComb {senior independent director) 44 65
Jonathan Britton 30 30
Teresa Graham 0 S]
Cargline Green 20 23
Colin Glass 0 G
Neeta Atkar 30 30
Piers Linney 25 8
Amanda Rendle 26 5]
CeriSmith o nil nil

Notes
L. Lerd Smith was appointed Chairman of the Board on 5 July 2017,

. Christina McCemb was appointed as interim chair from 1 October 2016 until 4 July 2017 znd her feeincreased to £120k perannum, pro-rated as
appraopriate,

3. Teresa Graham acted as interim Chair of the Remunerztion Committes in place of Christina McComb. She received anadditional pro-reted tee of £5k
per annum whilst she was chairing a Board committee.

Jn june 2017 the three-year terms of Celin Glass, Teresa Graham and Caroline Green enged.

. Cargline Green was re-appointed to the Board on 20 July 2017,

. Piers Linney and Amanda Rendle were appointed to the Board on 7 Becember 2017,

. Ceri Smith is the shareholder representative and therefore does not receive a tee,

8. Amandz Rendle replaced Christing McComb @s Char of the Remuneration Committee with effact from I januzry 2018,

~Noou

The base fee for Non-executive Directorsis £25.000 and the base fee for the Senior independent Director is £40,000.
Individuals receive an allowance of £5,000 for chairing a committee. There are no additicnal fees payable for individual
committee membership,
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Relative importance of spend on pay

Mo dividends have been paid by the Bank, so we have set out below the percentage of revenue represented by total
remuneraticn compared to 201//18 toillustrate the relative importance of spend cn pay.

" Totalrevenue (£000) Totalremuneration (€000) %
2018/19 106,424 27,765 26%
2017/18 96,931 23,550 24%

1. Asaresult of the transition to IFRS 9in the year ending 31 March 2019 and to ensure a comparable basis, the 2017/18 revenue number has been
amended to Net Operating Income (previously Gross Operating Income).

Changes in CEO/colleague pay and
median comparison

The median salary of colleagues for
2018/18 was £50,000 (2017/18:
£58,000), Thiscompares to the CEC's
annual base salary of £299,000. No
colleague earns more than the
highest paid Director.

The CEQ did not receive asalary
increase during the 2017/18 or
2018/18 performance year. A 2.3%
general pay increase was awarded to
calleagues below Executive Director
inthe 2018/19 performance year
(awarded 1 April 2018). Colleagues
of SULCo, who are subject to Civil
Service Pay Guidance, received a
general pay increase of 1.5%,
backdated to 1 April 2018, The
2019/20 pay increase pot for all
colleagues (excluding SULCg) below
Executive Director fevel has been
agreed as 3.8%.

Pension entitlements

All colleagues are entitled to
participate in a defined contribution
pension scheme, The Bank does not
offer a defined benefit pension
scheme.

Keith Morgan receives a cash
allowance of 10% of base salary
in liew of pension contribution.

Board of Directors terms of
office

The dates of appointment and terms
of office of Non-executive and
Executive Directors are provided in
the Directors Report, page 49,
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Implementation of the
remuneration policy for
2019/20

The Bank's iong-term priorities

are explained above in the Future
Developments' saection of the
Strategic Report. Qur remuneration
policy must drive the actions and
behaviours by colleagues that are
necessary for the successful delivery
of these strategic goals. At the same
time, it needs to be flexible encugh to
respond to future developments in
the Bank's programme of activity.

For 2019/20, the Remuneration
Committee has agreed several
changes 1o remuneration policy for
colleagues below Board level,
inciuding the introduction of a new
annual bonus plan, enhancements to
performance management processes,
and the withdrawal of bonus deferral
for colleagues who are not part of the
senior team. In addition, all senior
colleagues are set objectives for

effective risk management, rigorous
cost management, driving operaticnai
efficiency and pecple leadership.

We will continue to monitor our
approach to remuneration against
our strateglic priorities, to ensure it
remains fit-for-purpose. Where we
identify opportunities to improve,
the British Business Bank will seek
approval from the Shareholder for
any changes to the policy.

Approval of the Directors
Remuneration Report

This Directors’ Remuneration Report,
including both the Policy and Annual
Remuneration Report, has been
approved by the Board of Directors.

Signed cn behalf of the Board of
Directors

7

< ,//,’/) (26'_
;2(// / /Mor,(/&

Amanda Rendle
Chair of the Remuneratian Committee

Directors' remunerationreport
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Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are
responsible for preparing
the Annual Report and the
financial statements in
accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

In accordance with UK company law,
the directors have elected to prepare
both the Group financial statements
and the parent company financial
statements under International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adopted by the Eurcpean Union.

Under company law the directars
must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company
and group and of the profitorloss of
the company and group far that
period. In preparing these financial
statements, the Companies Act 2006
requires that directors:

- properly selectand apply
accounting policies

- present information, including
accounting policies, ina manner
that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable
information

- provide additional disclosures
when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRS
areinsufficient to enable users to

understand the impact of particular

transactions, other events and
conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance

— make an assessment of the
company's ability to continue
as agoing concern.

The directors are respansible for
keeping adequate accounting recerds
that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and
disclose, withreasonable accuracy at
any time, the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2005, They
are alsa responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud
and otherirregularities,

The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information
included on the company's website.
Legislationin the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

We confirm that to the hest of our
knowledge:

— thefinancial statements, prepared
inaccordance with IFRS as adopted
by the EU, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit or loss of the
company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation
taken as a whole

— thestrategic reportincludes a fair
review of the development and
performance of the business and
the position of the company and
the undertakings included in the
consclidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties
that they face

— theannual report and financial
statements, taken as awhcle, are
fair, balanced and understandable
and provide the informaticn
necessary for shareholders to
assess the company's performance,
business modal and strategy.

By order of the Board

L AN o

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

11 July 2019

AV,

Christopher Fox
Chief Financial Officer

11 July 2019
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Independent auditor's report
to the members of British
Business Bank plc

Opinion on financial
statements

| have audited the financial
statements of British Business Bank
pic Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 which comprise:

- the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Net Income:

— the Consoclidated Statement
of Financial Position;

- the Consolidated Statement
of Changesin Equity,

— the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement; and

- therelated notes, including the
significant accounting policies.

The finandial reporting framework
that has been applied in their
preparationis applicable law and
International Financial Reperting
Stendards as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accardance
with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006.

in my opinion the financial
statements:

- give atrue and fair view of the
state of the group's affairs as at
31 March 2018 and of the group’s
profit for the year then ended,

- have been properly preparad in
accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union;
and

- have been prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006.

. Conclusions relating to

principal risks, going concern
and viability statement

i have nathing to reportin respect

of the fallowing infoermation in the
annual report, in relation to which the
ISAs (UK) require me ta report to you
whether | have anything material to
add or draw attention ta

- the disclosures in the annuai report
that describe the principal risks and
explain how they are being
managed or mitigated:

- thedirectors’ confirmaticnin the
annual report that they have
carried out a robust assessment of
the principal risks facing the group,
including those thatwould
threaten its business model, Tuluig
performance, sclvency or liquidity,

— thedirectors' statementin the
financia! statements about
whether the directors considered it
appropriate to adopt the gaing
concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements
and the directors’ identification of
any material uncertainties to the
group’s ability to continue to do so
over a period of at least twelve
months from the date of approval
of the financial statements; or

— thedirectors'expianation in the
annual report as to how they have
assessed the prospects of the
group, over what period they have
done so and why they consider that
period to he appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they have
a reasonable expectation that the
group will be able to continue in
operaticn and meet its liabilities as
they fall due over the periad of their
assessment, including any related
disclosures drawing attenticn to
any necessary qualifications or
assumptions,

' Basis of opinions

| conducted my audit in accordance
with international Standards on
Auditing (ISAS) (UK). My
responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of my
repart. Those standards reguire me
and my staff to comply with the
Financial Reporting Coundil's Revised
Ethical Standard 2016, 1am
independent of the British Business

+ Bank plc Group in accordance with

the ethical requirements that are
relevant to my audit and the financial

statementsin the UK, My staff and

I have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. | believe that
the audit evidence | have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion.
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Overview of my audit approach

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters
that, in my professional judgment,
were of mast significance in my audit
of the financial statements of the
current period and include the most
significant assessed risks of material
misstaterment (whether or not due
to fraud) that I identified.

I consider the following areas of
particular audit focus to be those
areas that had the greztest effect

on my overall audit strategy, the
allocation of rescurces inmy auditand
directing the efforts of the audit team
in the current year. These matters
were addressed in the context of

my audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming my cpinion
thereon, and I do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

This is not a compiete list of all risks
identified by my audit but only thase
areas that had the greatest effecton
my overall audit strategy, allocation
of resources and direction of effort,

I have notincluded informaticn relating
to the work | have performed around
management override of controls,
other than to the extent where this
was part of my work on the
application of IFRS 9 and fair value
measurement of financial assets

as set out below; fraud in revenue
recognition, with specificregard to
investment income; or the transfer
of financial information following the
implementation of a new finance
system, where my wark has not
identified any matters to report.

The areas of focus were discussed
with the Audit Committee, theirreport
on matters that they considered to be
significant to the financial statements
is setouton pages 56-57.

In this year's repart the following
changes to the key audit matters
identified have been made compared
to my prior year report:

- Thave notidentified a key audit
matter around the Start-Up Loans
Company {SulCo) joining the British
Business Bank plc Group, as 5ulCo
joined the British Business Bank plc
Croup in the previous year.

- The significant risk surrounding
the implementation of a new
finance systemrelated tc the
accurate transfer of financial
information tc the new system
and | do not consider this tcbe
akey audit matter.

— IFRS 9, adopted by the British
Business Bank pic Croup from
1 April 2018, introduces significant
new requirements surrounding
the classification of financial
instruments; and requires complex
considerations and a high level of
management judgement cn the
measurement of the expected
creditioss allowances for financial
instruments held at amortised cost,
This has beenincluded as akey
audit matter below,




86 British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Independent auditor'sreport

Application of IFRS 9

Description of key audit matter

British Business Bank plc Group was required to
adoptIFRS S from 1 April 2018. Key changes
introduced by the standard include a new
approach for dassification and measurement
of financial assets and a new approach to
measuring impairment for those assets not
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
impairment, or Expected Credit Loss (ECL),
under IFRS S reflects a probability weighted
amount determined by evaluating a range of
possible cutcomes and includes consideration
of forecasts of future economic conditions.

The measurement of FCLs js 3 highly subjective
area due to the level of judgement involvement
in determining assumptions used in the
accounting estimate and as suchis a key area
of focus and significant risk of material
misstatement for the audit.

Following adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 April 2018,
British Business Bank plc Group investments
that meet the Business Madel and contractual
cash flow criteria of the standard are measured
at amortised cost. Therefore, a loss allowance
based on 12 month expected credit losses is
recognised with movements recognised in
profit or loss.

British Business Bank plc Croup's ECL models
have been developed and built by an
independent specialist analytics and risk
managemeant firm. British Business Bank pic
Croup use the model to calculate the
impairment provisicns each quarter using
underlyingloan and investment data and
assumptions.

British Business Bank plc Croup determine
there to be a significantincrease in credit risk
since initial recognition when accounts are
more than 30 days pastdue, Asaresult, a
lifetime ECL is recognised against such assets
in accordance with IFRS 9.

The impairment allowance on adoption of IFRS
9onl April 2018 was £68m compared tc £42m
under |AS 39. The increase was as aresult of
applying the IFRS 9 requirements 10 recognise
expected creditlosses rather thanincurred
losses under |1AS 39,

The impairment allowance at 31 March 2018 1s
£81m. The increase is primarily due to the
increase in the overall balance forinvestments
held at amortised cost, which is reflective of
the ongoing growth of the business.

 How the scope of my audit responded to the risk

I have understcod and evaluated the design and implementation of
key controls mitigating this risk, including the governance framework
in place to oversee the development, approval and continuaus
monitaring of the assumptions, models and processes surrounding
the implementation of IFRS 9.

! reviewed Britistt Business Bank plc Group's detailad IFRS 8 accounting
policies to confirm that these are consistent with the reguirements
of the accounting standards.

| also performed the fallowing procedures:

- |obtained assurance cver the completeness and accuracy of the
input data used in the ECL. models by testing a sample of loan
halances and verifying investment data against underlying
contractual documentation and other information.

- Ireviewed the reasonableness of key assumpticns, including
agreement of economic assumptions to relevant publicly available
information and tc the scenarios pravided by British Business Bank
plc Group'sindependent risk specialists. | assessed the specialists as
management's experts under ISA 500 using economics specialist
members of my team.

— |assessed the design of the ECL models and assessed management's
rationale for the assumptions and metheds used to confirm that
these would produce estimates which are appropriate to the
underlying financial instruments and compliant with the
requirements ot [FRS S,

- lreviewed the sensitivity analysis undertaken by management
toidentify the most sensitive assumptions used in the model to
focus our testing, and to evaluate how management had addressed
estimation uncertainty inmaking the accounting estimate, 1 evaluated
the reasonableness of those assumptions and performed additional
sensitivity analysis.

— lobtained assurance over the ECL models through assessment of
the independent specialists that developed and operate the mode!
as management's experts under ISA 500 using modelling specialist
members of my team.

AsIFRS Qwas adopted on 1 April 2018, | performed audit procedures
to obtain assurance on the transition adjustments from IAS 39, This
included assessing the classification and measurement of financial
assets, considering key definitions and interpretations adepted by
British Business Bank plc Croup and testing the adjustments and
disclasures made on transition,

Key abservations

Based on the evidence i obtained I found that the classification of
assets wasin line with the requirements of IFRS 9. | found that the
methodolcgy. input data and assumptions used to caiculate the ECLs
were supparted by appropriate evidence and in line with the
requirements of IFRS 9.
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Fair value measurement of financial assets

Description of key audit matter
The most significant halance in the financial
statements of the British Business Bank plc
Croupis investments. The majority of these
investments are measured at fair value based
onvaluation techniques including inputs not
based on observable market data. The
investments are held in the significant
components British Business Finance Limited
(BBFL), British Business Investments Limited
(BB, British Patient Capital Limited (BPL) and
the Start-up Loans Company (SulCo).

The valuation of Enterprise Capital Fund (ECF)
investments held in BBFL are determined by
management using models, based on inputs
and assumptions, and are therefore subject
to a degree of management judgement

and estimate.

Theinvestments heldin BBl and BPCare in
funds valued by fund managers who are
independent of managament so the level of
management judgement or estimate is limited.
The greatest level of estimation uncertainty
for these funds is within the eguity investment
funds in the Venture/Growth and UKIIF
pregrammes which are valued at £327m, which
is approximately 13% of the investments held
by the group.

The investments held in SulCo areloans to
entrepreneurs provided on non-commercial
terms and losses of 30% to 40% are expected
across the scheme, As required by IFRS 9, SulCo
recognises its loans at fair value on inception
and subsequently measures these at amortisad
cost. The level of write down reguired to
account for these non-commercial terms is
highly material and is subject to a significant
estimate based on management's judgement,
whichis derived from a number of non-
observable inputs. In the current year, SulCo
has improved their estimate by including more
granuiar, loan level data in the underlying model
that calculates the fair value at inception for
theseloans. This has resulted in an overali
increase of £28.2min the fair value adjustment
cninitial recognition as at 31 March 2018 far
these loans, as compared to the previous model,

~ How the scope of my audit responded to the risk __

In auditing the financial asset valuations | have performed the following
procedures:

- thave tested the operating effectiveness of the controls applied
by British Business Bank plc Group over the valuaticn processes for
financial assets, This included attendance at key internal meetings
where | observed management’s review and challenge of valuations
provided by fund managers. Where valuations are produced through
models, | have tested the design and implementation of controls
over the fair value model used.

- Where managementrelies cn valuations provided by fund managers
to estimate the value of its investments, I have considered the
governance arrangements in place and process undertaken by
management to review and challenge the valuations prior to their
inclusion in the accounts. | have performed detailed procedures to
enable me to gain assurance from the work of the fund managers.
This has included comparison of the most recent audited accocunts
of the fund against the fund manager vaiuation repert for the same
period and consideration of additional evidence where the
accounting period of the fund and British Business Bank plc Group
are not coterminous, t considered the overall competence, canpability
and objectivity of the fund managers, as well as the scepe of their
work and its relevance to the accounts and my opinion,

- Where management uses models to estimate the value of its loans
and investments, | considered the design of the valuation maodels, the
validity of the datainputs to those models, and the appropriateness
of the key assumptions on which the models were based. For the
ECF vaiuation model i sought confirmation that management had
reassessed the assumptions made in the prior year which underpin
the valuation model to confirm that they remain appropriate at year
end and challenged management on how it has addressed estimation
uncertainty. For the SulCo model | used auditors' experts fo support
my assessment of the key assumptions used, and obtained assurance
over the completeness and accuracy of the input data usedin the
model by testing a sample of Igan balances.

- thave assessed the accuracy and completeness of the review for
potential impairments that management has performadin relation
toits leans and investments.

~ lhave undertaken a review of a sample of lcans and investments
and considered whether management’s judgements on apprcpriate
accounting treatments are consistent with the relevant accounting
standards and the underlying substance and form of legal
agresments.

Key observations
Based on the evidence | ocbtained | found that the valuations provided
by fund managers were reliable IFRS 13 compliant values.

Where the fair values are cutputs from models | found that these
outputs were in line with the requirements of [FRS 13,
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Application of materiality

i applied the concept of materiality
inboth planning and perfaorming my
audit, and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements onmy auditand on the
financial statements. This approach
recognises that financial statements
arerarely absolutely caorrect, and that
an auditis designed tc provide
reasonable, rather than absoiute,
assurance that the financial
statements are free from material
misstatement. A matter is material it
its omission or misstatement would,
in the judgement ¢of the auditar,
reasanably influence the decisions

of users of the financial statements,

Based on my professional judgement,
| determined overall materiality for
the group's financial statements at
£24.1m, which is approximately 1% of
total assets. British Business Bank plc
Group develops and manades Tinance
programmes designed tc enhance
the working of finance markets which
it delivers through investments in
partner organisations. | therefore
chose assets as the benchmark
Decause fconsider it to be the
principal consideration for usersin
assessing the financial performance
of the Group. | determined that this
was more appropriate than using
revenue or net profit as a benchmark
as these are not the main drivers

of the decision making within the
business. | have reduced my
materiality threshold from 2% of
assetsin the prior year to reflect

the emerging practice in the sector.

As well as quantitative materiality
there are certain matters that, by
their very nature, would if not
correctad influence the decisions of
users, Assessment of such matters
would need to have regard to the
nature of the misstatement and
the applicable legal and reporting
framework, as well as the size of
the misstatement.

lagreed with the Audit Committee
that lwould report to it slf uncorrected
misstatements [dentified through my
audit in excess of £300,000, as wel!

as differences belaw this threshald
thatin my view warranted reporting
on qualitative grounds.

Total unadjusted audit differences
reported to the Audit Committee
have increased net assets by £2.8m.

Responsibilities of the
Directors for the financia!
statements

Asexplained more fully in the
Directors’ Responsibilities Statement,
the directors are responsibie for;

- the preparation of the group
financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and
fair view;

— suchinternal control as
management determinesis
necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements
that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error;

— assessing the group’s ability to
cantinue as a going concearn,
disclosing, if applicable, matters
relating to going concern and using
the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the group
or to cease pperations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial
statements

My responsibility is to audit and
express an epinion on the financial
statements in accordance with
applicable law and Internationat
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK).

An audit involves obtaining evidence
about the amecunts and disclosures

in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, butis nota
guarantee that an audit conductedin
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always
detect @ material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually orin the
aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected toinfluence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements,

As part of an auditin accordance with
ISAs (UK), | exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. i also:

- identify and assess the risks of
material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and
perfaorm audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence thatis
sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement rasulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intenticnal
omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal
control relevant to the auditin order
to design audit precedures that are
appropriate in the drcumstances,
but not for the purpose of
expressing an opiniocn on the
effectiveness of the British
Business Bank plc Group's internal
control,

evaluate the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures
made by management,

evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and content of the
financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the
consclidated financial statements
represent the underlying
transactions and eventsin a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or
business activities within the group
to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

I am responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of
the group audit, | remain sclely
responsible for my audit opinicn.

[ communicate with these charged
with governance regarding, amang
other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings. including any
significant deficiencies in internal
control that | identify during my audit.

{also provide those charged with
governance with a statement that
! have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding

" independence, and to communicate

with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be
thought ta bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related
safeguards.

© From the matters communicated

with those charged with governance,
| determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the

- current period and are therefore the

key audit matters. | describe these
matters in my auditor’s report unless
law cr regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when,
inextremely rare circumstances,
Idetermine that a matter should not be
communicated in my report because
the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.




50 British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Independent auditar's report

Audit scope

The scope of my audit of the
British Business Bank plc Group
was determined by abtaining an
understanding of the group and its
environment, including group-wide
controls, and assessing the risks

of material misstatement at the
group level.

The group comprises British Business
Bank plc, BBB Patient Capital Holdings
Limited, British Business Financial
Services Limited, British Business
Finance Limited and the subsidiaries
of these companies: British Business
Investments Limited, British Patient
Capital Limited, The Start-Up Loans
Company, British Business Aspire
Holdce Limited, Capital for Enterprise
Limited, Capitai tor Enterprise Fund
Managers Limited and Capital for
Enterprise (GP) Limited. The group
financial statements are a
consolidation of these companies.

lidentified the following as significant

components of the group: British
Business Bank plc, British Business
Investments Limited, British Patient
Capital Limited, British Business
Finance Limited and Start-Up Loans
Company (2 subsidiary of British
Business Finance Limited). British
Business Investments Limited and
British Patient Capital Limited require
statutory audits and the wark in this
respectis carried out separately.
The work an the other significant
componentsis perfoermead by the
group audit engagement team.

This work, together with additional
procedures performed on balances
arising as a result of the group's
consolidation process, gave me the
evidence | needed for my opinion on
the group financial statementsasa
whole. The significant components
of the group account for over 99% of
the group’s assets. Together with the
procedures perfarmed at group level
this gave me the evidence | needed
for my opinicn on the group financial
statements as a whole,

Gross assets of individual
components of the British
Business Bank plc group
(as at 31 March 2019)

1%

M ceepic Jest I BPC W BBFL
M sulCo B Non-significant components

Other Information

Directors are respansibie for the other
information. The other information
comprises information included in the
annual report, but does not include
the parts of the Directars’
Remuneration Report describedin
that report as having been audited,
the financial statements and my
auditor's report thereon, My opinion
on the financial statements does not
cover the otherinformation and 1 do
not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection
with my audit of the financial
statements, my responsibility is to
read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially incansistent
with the financial statements or my
knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have
performed, | conclude that thereisa
material misstatement of this other
information, | am required to report
that fact. I have nothing to reportin
this regard.
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| am specifically required to address
the following items and to report
uncorrected material misstatements
inthe otherinformation, where |
conclude that those items meet the
following conditions:

— Fair, balanced and understandable:
the statement given by the
directors that the annual report
and accounts taken as a whole are
fair, balanced and understandable
and provide the necessary
information to enable users to
assess the entity's performance,
business model and strategy, is
materially inconsistent with my
knowledge ohtained in the audit; or

- Audit Committee reporting: the
section describing the work of the
Audit Committee does not
appropriately address matters
communicated hy me to the Audit
Committee.

I also have nothing to reportin this
regard.

Opinion on other matters
prescribed by the Companies
Act

The strategic and directors’ reports
In my opinion, based on the work
undertakenin the course of the audit,
the informaticn given in the Strategic
Reportand Directors' Report for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements and
those reports have been preparedin
accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Inlight of the knowledge and
understanding of the group and its
environment obtained in the course

of the audit, have not identified any
material misstatements in the Strategic
Report or the Birectors’ Report.

The corporate governance
statement

In my opinion, based on the work
undertaken in the course of the audit:

— theinformation givenin the
corporate governance statement,
in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and
7.2.6 inthe Disclosure Rules and
Transparency Rules sourcebook
made by Financial Conduct
Authority (the FCARules}, in
respect of internal control and risk
management systems inrelation to
financial reporting processes, and
about share capital structures, is
consistent with the accounts and
has been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements,

Based on my knowledge and
understanding of the group and its
environment obtained during the
course of the audit, I have identified
ne material misstatements in this
information.

Matters on which | report by
exception

Adequacy of accounting records
infarmation and explanations
received

Ireport tc you if, in my opinion:

- adeguate accounting records have
not been kept, or returns adequate
for my audit have not been received
from branches not visited by my
staff; or

- the financial statements are notin
agreement with the accounting
records and returns;

- lhave notreceived all of the
information and explanations
I require for my audit; or

- acorperate governance statement
has not been prepared by the group.

f have nothing to report arising from
this duty.

Other matter

| have reparted separately, an pages
149 t0 151, on the Parent Company
Financial Statements of British
Business Bank plc Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and on the
information in the Directors’
Remuneration Report thatis

: described as having been audited.

Hilary Lower
Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of the Comptroller
and Auditor Ceneral {(Statutory Auditor)

National Audit Office
157-197 Buckingham Palace Road
London, SW1W 8S5P

11 Juty 2019
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Consolidated statement of

comprehensive net income

for the year to 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Note £000 £000
INCOME
Interest income 51 43,437 109,584
Grantincome 5.7 17.461 17,201
Management feeincome 53 20,575 18,208
Qtherincome 54 1.837 1286
Gross operating income 83,310 146,279
Expected credit loss onamortised cost assets 141 {12,846) -
Net gains/({losses) on investment assets 5] 28,669 (66,272)
Net gain on write down of repayable capital grant 7 7,281 18824
Net operating income ) ) 106,424 96,931
EXPENDITURE
Staff costs 81 {27.765) (23,550)
Other operating expenditure B2 (34,775) (23.858)
Depreciation and amortisation 83 (1,443) (1,214)
Operating expenditure (63,983) (48,622)
Net operating profit before ECF loan commitment financial
liability and interest payable 42,441 48,309
ECF loan commitment financial liability
Provided in the year on new commitments 18,19 - (71,321)
Released in the year 18,19 44,364 34,323
Interest payable (5,552) -
Profit before tax 81,253 11,311
Tax - 91 (9.933) (17.545)
Profit/(loss) for the year aftertax 71,320 (6,235)
Other comprehensive income
fterns that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Net gain oninvestments recognised in reserves 141,14.2 - 6718
Other comprehensive income reclassified tc net losses on
investment assets - 1,120
lterns that wilf not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Deferred tax ralating to FCF investments 9.1 - 5034
Total comprehensive income for the year 71,320 6,637

All operations are continuing.

The notes on pages 96 to 148 form an integral part of the financial statements. Where applicable balances for the year to
31 March 2018 are under IFRS 9, and those for the year to 31 March 2018 are under IAS 38, Further details on the impact

of this change are provided in the transition table in note 3.

The results by operating segment are shown in note 10 to the financial statements.



Consotidated financial statements

British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2015 93

Consolidated statement

of financial position

as at 31 March 2019
2019 2018

Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 11 152,117 63,641
Amounts owed by sharehalder 1e 525,000 -
Trade and other receivables 13 9,746 5,782
Amortised cost investments 14.1 431,126 -
Investments held at fair value through profit orloss under IFRS 9 14.2 1,248,184 -
Assetsheld for sale 14.2 40,610 -
Loans and receivables 14.1 - 346,068
Hefd to maturity investments _ 141 - 31.090
Available-for-sale financial assets 14.1,14.7 - 985,793
Assets designated at fair value through profit or loss under IAS 39 14.2 - 208,229
Derivative financial instruments 14.2 - 31,653
Praperty, plant and equipment 15 3,708 1,670
Intangible assets 1,358 1,882
Deferred tax asset 93 8,894 3,953
Total assets 2,420,743 1,679,761
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 17 (18,149) {14,225)
Corporation tax payable 9.7 (3.936) {11,353)
Provisions _ 18 (300) (183,861)
ECF loan commitment financial liability 19 (139,377) -
Loans and other mernrowihgs 20 (711,285) (116.180)
Total liabilities (873,047) (325,599)
Net assets 1,547,696 1,354,162
EQUITY
Issued share capital 23 1,496,408 1,371,408
Financial instruments reserve - 41,633
Retained earnings 51,288 {58,879)
Total equity 1,547,696 1,354,162

The financial statements of the Group (parent company number 08616013) were approved by the Board of Directors
and authorised forissue on 11 July 2019. They were signed on its behalf by:

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

LN AN o en

The notes on pages 96 to 148 form anintegral part of the financial statements,
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Consolidated statement
of changes in equity

as at 31 March 2019

Financial
Issued  instrument Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
Note £Q00 £000 £000 £000

Balance as at1 April 2018 1,371,408 41,633 (58,879) 1,354,162
Adjustment due to IFRS 9 transition 3 - {41,633) 38,847 {2,786)
Balance under IFRS 8 as at 1 April 2018 1,371,408 - (20,032) 1,351,376
Netincome after tax - - 71,320 71,320
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - -
Total comprehensive income 7 - - 71.320 71,320
Issue of ordinary shares 23 125,000 - - 125,000
Balanceat31March2019 1,496,408 - 51,288 1,547,696
Balance asat1 April 2017 1.071,408 28,761 (52,713} 1,047.456
From business combination with The Start Up
Loans Company - - 69 69
Netincome after tax - - (6,235) (6.235)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - 12,872 - lagse
Total comprehensive income - 12,872 (6,235} 6,637
Issue of ordinary shares 23 300.000 - - 300.000

Balance at 31 March 2018 1,371,408 41,633 (58.879) 1,554,162
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Consolidated cash
flow statement

as at 31 March 2019
2019 2018

Note £000 £000
Profit before tax 81,253 11,311
Cash flows from operating activities
Adjustments for non-cash itemns: ) 7
Net gain on write down of repayable capital grant 7 7 {7,251) (16,924)
Depreciation and amortisation 8.3 1,443 1,214
Interest payable - 5,552 _ -
ECF loan commitment financial liability/provision 16,12 (44,364) 7 36,998
Other comprehensive income reclassified to income statement - 1,120
Other provision expense 7 , 18 180 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Netincrease inloans and receivables 141 - (100,321)
Netincrease in available-for-sale assets 7 14.1,14.2 - (56,853)
Netincrease in assets designated at fair value through profit or
lass under 1AS 39 7 14.2 - (178,707)
Net increase in derivative financial instruments 7 7 142 - (7,334
Net increase in amortised costinvestments 141 (2,573) -
Net increase in assets at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9 14.2 _ (123,755) -
Increasein trade and other receivables - 13 (3.5564) (229)
Increase in trade and other payables 17 4,431 2,083
Payment of corporation tax , C.2 {22,291) {12,108)
Fayment of interest payable (1.288) -
Net cash usedin operating activities (112.667) (319,750)
Cash flows frominvesting activities _
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 15 (£.814) {1,393)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 15 - B ¢
Purchase of intangible assets (143) (926)
Net cash used in investing activities (2.957) {2,317)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of new shares 23 - 125000 300,000
Capitai grants received 20 4,100 25,000
Amounts owed by shareholder 7 iz (525,000} -
Proceeds from loans from Nuclear Liabilities Fund 20 600,030 -
Net cash from financing activities 204,100 325,000
Netincrease incash and cash equivalents 88.476 2,933
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year _ 63,641 58,432
{ash on business combination - 2,276
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 152,117 63,641

Interest received was £68.4m (2018: £76.8mj).

The notes on pages 96 to 148 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019

1. General information

The British Business Bank plc (the
"Company” or "Group”}isincorporated
in the United Kingdem under the
Companies Act. The address of the
registered office is Steel City House,
West Street, Sheffield, S1 2GQ. The
nature of the British Business Bank
Croup's operaticns and its principal
activities are set out in the Strategic
Repcrt on pages G tc48.

2. Significant accounting
policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with
Internaticnal Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union (EU), interpretations
issued by the IFRS Interpretations
Committee and those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS,
The financial statements are
prepared in accordance with [FRS
and interpretations in force at the
reporting date.

The financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for certain financial assets
and liabilities that are measured at
amartised cost and financial
instruments that are measured at fair
value or revalued amounts at the end
of each reporting pericd. Historical
costis generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services. The
principal accounting policies adopted
are set out below.

These financial statements are
presented in pounds sterling because
thatis the currency of the primary
economic zone inwhich the Group
operates.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries) made up to 31 March
2019. Control is achieved when the

- Company:

"~ has the power over the investee;

— isexposed, or has rights, tovariable
returns from its involvement with
the investee,; and

- has the ability to use Its power to
affects itsreturns.

The Company reassesses whether or
notit controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more af the three
elements of control listed above,

Determining whether a Company
has control of an entity is generally

* straightforward based on ownership

of the majority of the voting capital.
However, in certain instances, this
determination will involve judgement,
particularly in the case of structured
entities where voting rights are often
not the determining factor in
decisions over relevant activities,
This judgment may involve assessing
the purpose and design of the entity.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Company obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, the results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included inthe

Notes to the cansolidated financial statements

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income from the
date the Company gains control until
the date when the Company ceases
to contral the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting
policies used inta line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Allintragroup assets and liabitities,
equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions
between the members of the Group
are eliminated on consolidation.

Profit or loss and each component

of other comprehensive income

are attributed in full to the cwners
of the Company in Lhe absence of
non-cantrolling interests, Total
comprehensive inccme of the
subsidiaries is also attributed in full
to the owners of the Company in the
absence of nen-controlling interests,

IAS 28 Investments in Associates
applies to all investments in which the
Group has significant influence but
not contral. A holding of 20% or more
of the vating power of an investment
would normally indicate significant
influence and require these
investments to be accounted for as
associates using the eguity method
of accounting, Where the Group holds
greater than 20% of the ordinary
share capital of an entity but thereis
no significantinfluence, these entities
are not accounted for as assodiates.
Instead these entities are classified
and accounted for as a financial asset
in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. Details of the Group’s
significant holdings are shown in
notes 24 and 25.
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The Start Up Loans Company became
part of the Group on 1 April 2017 when
British Business Finance Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, became
the sole member. The Directors have
concluded that British Business
Finance Limited has control of

The Start Up Loans Company as it

is the scle member; it has the ability
to appoint Board members and it
provides funding to the company
which exposes it to variable returns.
The Directors have assessed that
under JFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, The Start Up Loans
Company is required to be
consolidated in the Group financial
statements. The Directors have alsc
assessed that under /FRS 3 Business
Combinations the consalidation of
The Start Up Loans Cempany
represents a business combination
of entities under common control as
the Secretary of State for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS)
exercised control over the company
prior to the business combination.

Going concern

The Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. The Group has
received a letter of support from the
Secretary of State for BEIS stating it
will provide sufficient funding to
enable the Group to meetits liabilities
as and when they fall due for a period
of not less than twelve months from
the date of approval of these financial
statements. Thus, the Directors
continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the
finandial statements.

Adoption of new and
revised Standards

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 as
issued by the Internaticnal Accounting
Standards Beardin July 2014. The
Group did not early adapt any of IFRS
9Qin previous periods.

As permitted by the transitional
provisicns, the Graup has elected not
torestate comparative figures, Any
adjustments to the carrying amounts
of financial assets and liahilities at
the date of transition have bean
recognised in the opening retained
earnings and other reservesin the
current pericd, Consequently, for
notes disclosures, the consequential
amendments to IFRS 7 disclosures
have only been applied to the current
pericd. The comparative period notes
disclosures repeat those made in the
prior year.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted
in changes to the accounting policies
for recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and
liabilities and impairment ¢f financial
assets. [FRS 9 also significantly

. amends other standards dealing with

financial instruments such as IFRS 7
Financial instruments: Disclosures,
Where therais a difference in the
Group's principal accounting policies

between the current and the previous

years as a conseguence of the
adoption IFRS G, the accounting
policies relevant to both years have
been disclosed in this note.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts

with customersdeals with revenue
recognition and estahlishes principles
far reporting useful information to
users of financial statements about
the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with recipients.

Revenueis recognised when a
customer obtains control of agoed or
service and thus has the ability to
direct the use and obtain benefits frem
the good or service. The standard is
effective for annual periods beginning
onor after 1 January 2018 and has
been adopted by the Group at the start
of the current period, The Standard is
only relevant to the Group with respect
‘Management fee income’ and ‘Other
income’ Given the nature of this type
of income there has been noimpacton
the Greup at the point of transition, nor
on Management fee inceme or Gther
income recognised during the period.

There were no other new or amended
standards applied for the first time
and therefore no restatements of
the previous financial statements
were reguired.

At the date of authorisation of these
financial statements, the fellowing
Standards and Interpretations which
have notbeen applied in these
financial statements, were inissue
but not yet effective (and in some
cases had not yet been adopted by
the EU);

-~ IFRS 3 (amendments} Business
Combinations,

- IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (omendments)

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an investor anid its
Associgte or joint Venture;

- IFRS 16 Legses;
- IFRS 17 insurance Contracts,

- Annual improvements to IFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

- IAS 1 {agmendments) Presentation
of Financial Statements,

— JAS 8 (omendments) Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting
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Estimates and Errors,

~ A5 19 (amendments) Employee
Benefits;

- IAS 28 (omendments) Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures;

— IFRIC 23 Uncertainty aver incame
Tax Treatments.

The Directors do not expect that

the adoption of the Standards and
Interpretations listed above will have
a material impact on the financial
statements of the Groupin

future years.

IFRS 16 Leasesis effective for financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019 and the Group will adopt the
standaord for the first time in the year
ending 31 March 2020. IFRS 16 requires
lessees to recognise operating leases
on their Consalidated Statement of
Financial Position which would reflect
the lessee'sright to use anassetfora
period of time. As at 31 March 2018 the
Group has 3 operating leases which are
disclosed innote 22.2. IFRS 16 requires
the Group to recognise the present
value of lease payments by disclosing
within Property, Plant and Equipment
under a new category of right-to-use-
assets. The Group would also be
required to recognise a separate
financial liability representing its
cbligation to make future lease
payments. Based on the calculations
the Directors have performed they

do not believe this would lead to a
material adjustment on transition,

Income recagnition

Following the adoption of /FRS 15
Revenue from contracts with
customers, income is recognised when
arecipient obtains controt of a good or
service and thus has the ability to the
direct the use and cbtain benefits

from the goods orservice.
Management fee income and Gther
income is recognised when a recipient
obtains control of the service,

" Income is measured at the fair value

of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of
husiness, netof discounts, Value Added
Tax (VAT) and cther sales-related
taxes. Income is reduced for estimated
rebates and other similar allowances.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably.
Interestincome is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest methodis a
method of calculating the amortised
costof adebtinstrument and of
allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest
rate s the rate that exactly discounts
future contractual cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to
the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost
before any impairment allowance) or
to the amortised cost of the financial
liability. The calculation does not
consider expected credit losses and
includes transaction costs, and
premiums or discounts that are
integral tc the effective interest
rate, such as grigination fees.

When the Group revises the estimates
of future cash flows, the carrying
amount of the respective financial
asset or financial liability is adjusted to
refiect the new estimate discounted
using the original effective interest
rate. Any changes are recognised in

- the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net income.

Tax

The tax expense represents the
sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based

on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs frem net profit
as reportedin the Consclidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
Income because it excludes items

of Income ar expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible, The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted

by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be
payable or recoverable on dif ferences
between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation

of taxable profitand is accounted for
using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recagnised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the
extentthatitis probable that taxable
profitsin future years will be available
againstwhich deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.
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Currentand deferred tax are
recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
Income, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other
camprehensive income ar directly in
equity, inwhich case, the relevant
current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly inequity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for

a business combination, the tax effect
isincluded in the accounting for the
business combination.

VAT is accounted for in the accounts,
in that amounts are shown net of
VAT except:

— Irrecoverable VAT is charged to
the Consclidated Statement of
Comprehensive NetIncome and
included under the relevant
expenditure heading.

— Irrecoverable VAT on the purchase
of an assetisincluded in additions.

The net amount due to, or from,
HM Revenue and Customsinrespect
of VAT isincluded within payables or
receivables on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.

Property, plant and equipment

Furniture, equipment and leasehold
improvements are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any
recognisedimpairment loss.

The Group capitalises property, plant
and equipment purchased for a net
value of £3,000 or more and which
have a useful economic life in excess
of one year,

Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost or valuation of
assets less their residual values over
their useful lives, using the straight-

" Iine method, on the fellowing bases:

Leasehold improvement

- Shorter of estimated remaining useful

life or outstanding lease term

¢ Fixtures and fittings

Syears

- IT equipment

3-5Svyears

The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting

. period, with the effect of any changes
" inestimate accounted foron a

prospective basis.

Anitem of property, plant and
equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. The
qain or loss arising on the disposal or
scrappage of an asset is determined
as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in

the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive NetIncome.,

intangible assets

Intangible assets including internally
developed software with a finite
useful lifeand IT programs and
software licences, with finite useful
lives that are acquired separately,
are carried at costless accumulated
amertisation and accumulated
impairment losses, Amaortisation is
recognised on a straight-tine basis
over the estimated useful life on
the following bases:

Internally developed software
and IT programs
3-10 years

Software licences

- Period of licence

The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changesin estimate
being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite
usefullives that are acquired
separately are carried at costless
accumulated impairment losses,

Anintangible assetis derecognised an
disposal, or when na future economic
benefits are expected to arise from
continued use. Gains orlosses arising
from de-recognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount cf the asset,
are recognised in the Consclidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
Income when the asset is derecognised.
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Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liahilities
are recognised in the Group's
Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument,

Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value, less
directly attributable transaction
costs, except for the transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through prcfit or
loss which are recognised immediately
inthe Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income.

Classification of financial
instruments - 2019
Accounting Policy

Financial assets are classified under
IFRS 9 as amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income
(FVOCh or fair value through profit or
loss {(FVTPL) depending on the Group's
business mode| and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the
instruments.

The majority of the Group's financial
assets comprise debt and equity
instruments, classified as such

under lAS 32. Debtinstruments are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost where the business model
related to that instrument is to collect
the contractual cash flows and those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest {'SPPI). If

the cash flows fail the SPPI test,

the instrument is subsequently
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets thatare held for
collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling where the assets’
cash flows represent SPPI, and that
are not designated at FVTPL, are
rmeasured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVCCI).
Mavements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCl, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign

~ axchange gains or losses on the

instrument’s amertised cost which
are recognised in the Consalidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
income. Interest income from these
financial assets is includedin ‘Interest
income’ using the effective interest
rate method.

The Group subsequently measures
all equity instruments at FVTPL,
except where the Group’s
management has elected, at initial
recognition toirrevocably designate
an equity investment at FVOC. The
Group's palicy is to designate equity
instruments as FVOCl when those
investments are held for purposes
other than to generate investment
returns. When this election is used,
fairvalue gains or losses are
recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income and are not subsequently
reclassified to Comprehensive Net
Income, including on disposal.

The Group may irrevocably designate
financial assets at FVTPL if doing so
significantly reduces or eliminates

a mismatch created by assets and
liabilities being measured an
different bases.

Fair value at initial recognition -
Start Up Loans

Loans originated through the Group's
Start Up Loans programme have been
classified as amortised cost financial
instruments. The Croup charges a
single rate of interest (6%) ta Start Up
Loans customers that is independent
of the credit quality of the customer.
Thisinterest rate is not sufficient to
compensate for the expected losses
for the Start Up Loans scheme which
are farecast to be between 30% and
40%, reflecting the non-commercial
nature of the scheme. Therefore, the
transaction value of a Start Up Loan
will not equal its fair value.

The future expected cash flows are
risk adjusted and discounted using an
approprigte discountrale, whiclihas
been calculated by taking the average
5-year median corporate debt rate for
Caa/Crated loans, in order to calculate
the fair value,

In accordance with IFRS 9 {2018 [AS
39) the fair value adjustment at initial
recognition, whichis the difference
between the transaction value of

the loans and their fair value would
usuzally be deferred and either
amortised or recagnised when a gain
or loss was crystallised. However, the
Directers have determined thatitis
appropriate in this circumstance to
apply a true and fair override, and
consequently any fair vaiue adjustment
arising on the Start Up Loans loan book
will be recognised immediately through
the Consolidated Statement of
Comprenhensive Net Income because
this reflects the commercial position
more apgropriately.
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Classification of financial
instruments - 2018
Accounting Policy

Financial assets are classified into

the following specified categories:
financia! assets ‘at fair value through
profit arloss (FVYTPL), ‘held-to-
maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-
sale’ {AFS) financial assets and 'loans
and receivables’ The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets are classified as at
FVTPL when the financial assetis a
derivative financial instrument, held
fortrading oritis designated as at
FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are
stated at fair value, with any gains

cr losses arising on re-measurement
recegnised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive

Net Income, The net gain or loss
recognised incorporates any dividend
orinterest earned on the financial
asset, There are no held for trading
financial assets.

Held-to-maturity investments are
non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity that the Group has
the positive intent and ability to
hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are measured at
amartised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment,
with revenue recognised an an
effective interest rate basis,

Available-for-sale (AFS} finandcial
assets are non-derivative financial
assetsthat are not classified as loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments or financial assets at
FVTPL, or have been designated at
inception as AFS, AFS financial assets
are recorded at fair value, with

gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised

in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in the financial
instrument reserve with the
exception of impairment losses,

- interest calculated using the effective

interest method and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary assets,
which are recognised directly in

the Consolidated Statement of

+ Comprehensive Net Income, Where
. the investmentis disposed of the

cumulative gains or losses, orif the
investmentis determined to be
impaired the cumulative losses,

¢ previously recognisedin the financial
©instrument reserve are reclassified

to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income. Dividends
on AFS equity instruments are
recognised in the Consalidated

" Statement of Comprehensive Net

Income when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established.

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments, ariginated
or acquired, that are not quoted in

an active market, and comprise cash
and cash equivalents, receivables and
lnans. Afterinitial recognition they
are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less
any impairment. Gains and losses

are amortised through the
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income. Interest
income isrecognised by applying the
effectiveinterest rate, except for
short-termreceivables when the
reccgnition of interest would be
immaterial,

Impairment of financial assets
- 2019 Accounting Policy

The Group assesses on a forward-
looking basis, the expected credit
losses {'ECL) asscciated withits debt

_instrument assets carried at amortised

cost and FVOCQ and with exposures
arising from loan commitments and
financiat guarantee contracts.

At initial recognition, financial assets
are categorised as 'stage 1'and an
impairment provision is reguired for
ECLs resulting from default events
projected within the next 12 months

~{12-month ECL).
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Subsequently, financial assets are
considered to bein 'stage 2'when
their credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
sothatitis appropriate to recognise
lifetime ECL. The Group assesses
assetstobeinstage 2usinga
combination of non-statistical,
gualitative information as well as
quantitative, statistical information,
including when accounts are more
than 30 days past due or there has
been a significant relative increase

in the lifetime prabability of default
(PD) compared toinitial recognition,
where the PDis derived based on the
customer’s credit quality, including
analysis of behaviour scere and other
account characteristics.

Financial assets are included in 'stage
I'when there is objective evidence
that the assetis creditimpaired, with
expected credit losses still calculated
on & lifetime basis. Assets which are
meore than 90 days pastdue are in
default and are considered by the
Group to be credit impaired.

The measurement of ECL reflects an

. unbiased and probability weighted

amount that is determined by
evaluating arange of possible
outcemes, the time value of maney
andreasonable and supportable
information thatis available without
undue cost or effortatthe reporting
date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

ECLs are caiculated using three main
components, PD, a loss given default
('LGD"Y and the exposure at default
{'EADY), The LGD represents losses
expected on default, takinginto
account the mitigating effect of
collateral, its expected value when
realised and the time value of money.
The EAD represents the expected
balance at default, takinginto account
the repayment of principal and interest
from the balance sheet date to the
defauit. Discounting cf the expected
cashflows is perfermed using the
effectiveinterest rate of the loan.

Changes inthe carrying amount

of assets arising as a result of
impairment are recognised in

the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income. I a loan
has no realistic prospect of recovery,
any loss incurred by the Group on
extinguishing the debtis written

- off against the provision forloan

" impairment. Any subsequent

. recoveries of amounts previously

" written of f are recognised through

the Consolidated Statement of

- Comprehensive Net Inceme.

Impairment of financial assets
- 2018 Accounting Policy

Financial assets, other than those at
FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at each balance sheet
date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence
that, as aresult of one or more
events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset but
before the balance sheet date, the
estimated future cash flows from the
financial asset have been reduced.

Assets that are assessed not to be
impeaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment an a
collective basis. Chjective evidence

of impairment for a portfolic of
assets could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments,

an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolic, as well as
observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate
with defauit on receivables. The Group
makes an allowance for collective
impairment an a performing portfolio
for those assets which have becaome
impaired at the balance sheet date but
have yet to be reported asimpaired.

For financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amaunt and the
present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate.
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The carrying amount of the financial
asset isredured by the impairment
loss for all financial assets with the
exception of a portfolio of receivables
subject 1o cellective impairment, where
the carrying amountis reduced through
the use of an allowance account. When
a receivable within the portfoliois
considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account.
Subseguent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited
against the allowance account.
Changesin the carrying amount of
the allawance account are recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income.

When an AFS financial assetis
considerad to be impaired, cumulative
losses previously recognisedin other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income.

Assets held for sale

Assets are classified as held for

sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met anly
when the sale is highly probable,

the assetis available for immediate
sale inits present condition and the
assetis actively marketed for sale,
Management must be committed to
the sale which should be expected to
gualify as recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of
classification. Assets held for sale are
measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Financial liabilities

In both the current and pricr period,
financial lizbilities are classified and
subsequently measured at amartised
cost, except for;

- Financial lizbilities at fair value
through profit or loss: this
classificationis applied to
derivatives and cther financial
liabilities designated as such at
initial recognition, Gains or losses
on financial lizbilities designated
as FVTPL are presented partially
in Other Comprehensive Income
(the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability, which
is determined as the ameunt that
is notattributable to changesin
market conditions that give rise
to market risk). Thisis unless such
apresentation would create, or
eniarge, an accounting mismatch,
in which case the gains and lesses
attributable to changes in the credit
risk of the liability are also presented
in Comprehensive Net Income;

- Financial liabilities arising fram
the transfer of financial assets
nat qualifying for derecognition,
whereby a financial iability is
recognised for the consideration
received for the transfer. In
subsequent periods, the Group
recognises any expense incurred
on the financial tiability; and

- Financial guarantee contracts
and laan commitments,

Loan commitments at below
market rate

The Group accepts a lower than
market rate of return from ECF
investments in arder tc encourage
private sectar investors toinvest
alengside. Although the Graup
expects to make a pesitivareturn
from these investments, this return
is less than that required by the
private secter. The Group has atinitial
recognition elected toirrevecably
designate the liability related to these
loan commitments as mezsured at fair
value through profit or loss because
the group of financial assets and
financial lizhilities is managed, and

its performance is evaluatedona

fair value basis, in accordance with

a documented investment strateqy,
and information about these assets
and liabilities is provided internally

on that basis to the Group's key
management perscnnel, In 2017/18
the provision relating to loan
commitments was measured at
amortised cost under IAS 37.0n
adaoption of IFRS S the fair value on
initial recognition has been calculated
to be equivalent to the IAS 37 carrying
amount at 31 March 2018,
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Loans and other barrowings

The Group has loan facilities from

the Secretary of State for BEIS and
the Nuclear Liabilities Fund which are
classified and measured as amortised
cost financial liabitities.

In addition, it has received a capital
grantin respect of the Start Up Loans
scheme. The agreement does not
have a maturity date and carries an
interestrate of zero. The capital grant
is repayable ondemand, in whole or
in part, if at the absolute discretion

of BEIS certain conditions arise that
affect the scheme adversely. The
Group classifies and initially measures
the capital grant as an amartised

cost financial liability. Subsequentty
the Group measures the liability as
amortised cost but adjusts the
carrying value by any amounts it
believes will not be recoverakble,

Cash and cash equivalents

(Cash and cash equivalents comprise
cashin hand and current balances with
barks and other financial instituticns,
which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject
twinsignificant risk of changes in value
and have an original maturity of three
manths or less.

Provisions

Provisicns are recognised when the
Group has a present obligationas a
result of a past event, itis probable
that the Croup will be required to
settle that obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation,

The amountrecognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the
present cbligation at the balance
sheet date, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present
obligation, its' carrying amountis
the present value of those cash
flows when the effect of the time
value of money is materfal.

Contingent liabilities

The Group has contingent liabilities
arising through financial guarantees
issued to counterparties. A contingent
liability is a possible obligation
depending on whether some
uncertain future event occurs, or a
present obligation but paymentis

not prebable, or the amount cannot
be measured reliably.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The Group may at times enter into
finarcial guarantee contracts which
are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder foraloss It
incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due,
inaccordance with the terms of a
debtinstrument. Financial guarantee
contracts areinitially measured at
fair value and subsequently measured
at the higher of:

- The amountof the impairmentioss
allowance; and

- The amountinitially recognised less
the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the
principles of IFRS 15,

For financial guarantee contracts,
the loss allocwance is measured as a
financial liability (2018: provisicn),

Foreign exchange

The individual financial statements of
each Group company are presented in
the currency of the primary economic
envirenment in which it operates

{its functional currency) which is
pounds sterling,
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The Group applies {AS 21 The Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates and transactions that are
denominated in a foreign currency are
translated into sterling at the rate of
exchange ruling on the date of each
transaction, except where rates do
not fluctuate significantly, in which
case an average rate for aperiodis
used. Monetary assets and liabilities
dencminated in fereign currencies

as at the balance sheet date are
retransiated at the rates of exchange
ruling at that date. Transiation
differences are recognisedin the
Consclidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income,

Retirement costs

Payments ta defined contributicn
retirement schemes are recognised
as an expense when employees have
rendared service entitling them to
the contributicns.

Employee benefits

In accordance with JAS 19 Employee
Benefits, the Group recognises short
term employee benefits when an
employee has rendered service in
exchange for those benefits.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
wheneaver the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee.
Allother leases are classified as
operating teases.

Rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
Income on a straight-line basis cver
the term of the relevant lease except
where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits
from the lease asset are consumed,

3. Classification of financial
assets and financial liabilities
on the date of initial
application of IFRS 9

Reconciliation of IAS 39
toIFRS 9

The following table provides the
reclassification and remeasurement
impact arising frem the transition to
IFRS & on the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position at1 April 2G18,
the date IFRS 9 was adopted by

the Group.

Reclassification
These adjustments reflect the

- movement of balances between
categories on the Consolidated

i Statement of Financial Position with
* noimpact to sharehoiders’ equity.

" There is no change to the carrying

" value of the balances as aresuit of

the reclassification,

Remeasurement

These adjustments, which include
expected credit loss, resultina
change to the carrying value of the
investments on the Consclidated
Statement of Financial Position with
animpact to sharehclders’equity
net of tax.
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3. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities on the date
of initial application of IFRS 9 {continued)

Carryingamount

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Measurement 31March2018
basis {IAS 39) (1AS 39) Remeasurement
£C0C £00Q0
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised cost _ 63,641 -
Trade and other receivables Amortised cost 5,248 -
Prepayments 534 -
Loans and receivables Amortised cost 346,068 -
Held to maturity investments Amortised cost 31,090 -
Available-for-sale financial assets Al 885,793 -
Derivative financial instruments FYTPL (IAS 39) 31,653 -
Assets designated at FVTPL (IAS 39) FYTPL (IAS 39) _ 208,229 -
- N/A - (9,241)
- N/A - -
Property, plant and equipment N/A 1670 -
intangible assets N/A 1.88¢ -
Deferred tax asset - N/A 3,953 -
Total assets 1,679,761 (9.241)
Liabilities o 7
Trade and other payables Amortised cost (12,973) -
VAT and social security N/A (1.252) -
Corporation tax N/A (11,353) -
Provisions Amartised cost (183,741) -
Dilapidation provision N/A (120} -
- N/A - -
Leans and other borrowings Amortised cost {116,160} £,455
& FVTPL
Total liabilities {325,599) 6,455
Net assets 1,354,162 (2,786)
Equity
Issued share capital 1,371,408 -
Financial instrument reserve 41,633 -
Retained earnings (58,879) _ {2.780)
Total equity 1,354,162 (2,786)
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Carrying amount

1April2018 Measurement
Reclassification {IFRS 9) basis (IFRS 9}
£000 £000
o Assets
- 53641 Amortised cost Cash and cash equivalents:
- 5,748 ~ Amortised cost Trade and other receivables
- 534 N/A Frepayments
(346,068) - N/A -
(31.090) - N/A -
{985,793) - N/A -
(31.653) - N/A -
(208,229) - N/A -
437,794 478,553 Amortised cost Amortised cost investments
1,165,039 1,165,029 FVTRL (IFRS 9) Assets at FVTPL (IFRS 9)
- 1,670 N/A Property, plant and
equipment
- 1,882 N/A Intangible assets
- 3,953 N/A Deferred tax asset
- 1.670,520 Total assets
Liabilities
- (12.573) Amortised cost Trade and other payables
- {1,252} N/A VAT and social security
- {11,353) N/A Corporation tax
183,741 - N/A N/A
- (120) 7 N/A Dilapidation provision
{(183,741) (183,741) FVTPL Financial liability
_ _ measured at FVTPL
- (109,705) Amortised cost Loans and other
& FVTPL borrowings
- (319,144) Total liabilities
- 1,351,376 _ Netassets
. Equity
- 1,371,408 Issued share capital
(41,633) - -
41,633 ~{20,032) Retained earnings
- 1,351,376 Total equity
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Cash and cash equivalents, Trade

and other receivables, Loans and
receivables, and Held to maturity
investments that were classified as
‘loans and recelvables’and ‘hald to
maturity’ are now measured at
‘amortised cost’. There are no changes
in terms of measurement for these
assetsupon transition.

Assetsthat were classified as
‘available for sale' under 1AS 39
which meet the SPPI test for cash
flows characteristics are classified
as ‘amortised cost under IFRS 9.

Assetsthat were classified as
‘available for sale' under 1AS 39 which
are holdings in standard investment
funds with either alimitedlife or
redeemable units, are measured at
FVTPL as they are debt instruments
that do not meet the SPPI test,
Derivatives were classified as FVTPL
under IAS 3G and remain measured
at FVTPL under IFRS 9. However,
embedded derivatives are nc longer
assessed separately from the host
financial assetleading to a category
transfer of £31.7m from derivatives
toassets designated at FVTPL,

Loans and other borrowings include
£14.5m which is an unsecured fcan
from BEIS to SULCo which is measured
at amortised cost under IFRS 9. Also
included within Loans and other
barrowings is a capital grant of
£878m from BEIS to SULCo. The
repayable amount of the loan is
subject to the perfarmance of the
SULCe loan book and is therefore
classified as FVTPL under IFRS 9,

Anamount of £41.6m has been
reclassified from financial instrument
reserve to retained earnings as a
consequence of the Group's financial
assets classified as ‘available for sale’
under IAS 38 being redlassified as
FVTPL under IFRS 9.

4. Critical accounting
judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

In applying the Group's accounting
policies, which are described innote 2,
the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other
sources, The estimates and
assaciated assumptions are based
on histarical experience and other
factors that are considered tc be
relevant, Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed ¢n an

ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recagnised in the year
in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, orin
the year of the revision and future
years if therevision affects both
current and future years.

The estimates and assumptions that
risk causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial
yearare:

- Theinputs to valuation models
and techniques used to determine
estimated future cash flows to
calculate the fair values of assets
held at FVTPL and amortised cost;

- Theinputs to the modetling
technigues used to calculate the
fair value of financial liabilities/
guarantees relating to loan
commitment financial liability;

- Theassessment of ECL impairment
allowances against assets held at
FvOCi, amortised cost financial
assets and financial guarantees.

The futurereturns from FYTPL debt
fund investments are notlimited to
contractual cash flows of interest and
principal. Returns are inherently
uncertain and will depend on a range
of factorsincluding the manager's
success in originating lending
opportunities, costs and fees, how
the manager exercises giscretion in
trading off equity against debt
components inloan structures, credit
and warrant/equity performance,
and prevailing market conditions.
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The use of valuation models
and technigues used to
determine estimated future
cash flows.

The key global assumptions for the
Enterprise Capital Funds are the
risk-adjusted discount rate and the
volatility percentage used. The Group
has calculated these assumptions for
all Enterprise Capital Funds
investments on a consistent basis. As

points increase in the risk-adjusted
discountrate across the Enterprise
Capital Funds portfolic would
decrease the fair value of the debt
investment in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position by
around £13m. Likewise, a 200 basis
points decrease in the risk-adjusted
discountrate across the Enterprise
Capital Funds portfolioc would increase
the fair value of the portfolio by
around £14m.

Thereisinherent uncertaintyin both
the expected cash flows and the
discount rate used to calculate the fair
value atinitial recognition for Start Up
Loans to entrepreneurs.

The cash flows comprise four main
components; principal, interest,
expected loss on principal and
expecied loss oninterest. Foreach
individual account and for each period,
the expected loss on principal and the
expecied loss oninterestare
assessed by taking the cutstanding
contractual amounts and adjusting for
the marginal PDs and LGD.

The discountrate for each loanis
determined by reference to the 5-year
median yield for Caa/C rated corparate
debt applicable at the year of
origination,
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Impairment of financial assets

The calculation of impairment
provisicns is inherently uncertain and
requires the Group tc make a number
of judgements, assumptions and
estimates. The most critical scurces

- of estimation uncertainty are:

Economic scenarios and associated
probability weightings
IFRS 9 reqguires the calculation of

o o ' . ECLstoaccount for multipie forwarc-
an indication of sensitivity, a 200 basis - P

looking macro-economic scenarios.

The ECL model adopted by the Group
uses a Cyclicality Index {C1), which can
be cansidered as a measure of where

' the economy sits in the credit cycle at

any time.

The model uses publicly available data
on default rates as a basis forthe Cl

- and generates a hase case scenario

(determined by a regression model
utilising base case forecasts of
Cansumer Price Index growth rates,
interestrates and unemployment
rates published by the Bank of
Ergland}, then two better and

w0 worse scenarios generated

by considering a distribution of
possible scenarios arcund the

base case scenaric.

The calculation of probability

of default (PD)

The PD of each underlying loan or
credit facility provided by the Groupis
a key assumption for the IFRS 9 ECL
calculation and thisisreliant onrating
assessments undertaken by external
and internal PL models.

The calculation of loss given
default (LGD)

LGD assesses the loss potential in
case of adefaultandisreliant on the
collateral residual vaiue acting as
security reported against each loan
or the reported seniority ranking cf

* the Group's facility compared to other

investors. LCD is estimated using
internal models which consider
observedloss data or using external

; benchmarks where appropriate,

The calculation of exposure

at default (EAD)

Exposure at default (EAD) is estimated
for each month for the contractual
lifetime of each financial instrument.
Thisis either the contractual maturity
profite of the Investment or an internal
estimate of the exposure value based
on expected repayment profiles
based on historical information. A
credit conversion factoris applied to
undrawn irrevocable commitments
based on external benchmarks or
internally observed data for similar
portfolios or types of assets.
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5. Income
5.1 Interestincome
2019 2018
Note £000 £000
Contractual Interest from amortised cost investments 141 29,919 -
Amortisation of fair value adjustment on initial recognition
of investments 141 13,518 -
Effective interest rate income from amortised cost '
investments 43,437 -
Interest from loans and receivables 1411 - 19,690
Amortisation of fair value adjustment on initial recognition of
loans and receivables 1411 - 23.069
Effective interest rate income from loans and receivables - 42,759
Interest from available-Tor-sale assets _ 1413
14.2.1 - 50,614
Ameortisation of fair value adjustment on initial recognition of
available-for-sale assets 1421 - 13661
Effective interest rate income from available for sale assets - 64,275
Interest from held to maturity investments 1412 - 2,550
Total interestincome 43,437 109,584

The amortisation of the fair value adjustmant on inftial recognition represents the difference between the contractual
interestrate and the effective interest rate applicable for the financial asset.

5.2 Grantincome

2019 2018

£000 £000

Grant received from shareholder o 17,461 17,201
Total grantincome 17,461 17,201

Grantincome relates to the Resource Grant received from BEIS under the terms of the 'Grant Offer Letter’ between BEIS
and The Start Up Loans Company. The grant income funds the operating expenses of The Start Up Loans Company and
any amount in excess is recorded as deferred scheme income in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Pasition.
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5.3 Management fee income

2019 2018
£000 £000
Management fee income earned from:
Angel Co-Fund 30 413
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 15,302 13,467
Northern Powerhouse Investments Limited 2,691 2,135
Midiands Engina investments Limited 1,774 1.601
Cornwall and Isles of Scilly Investments Limited 310 372
Inrovate UK 309 204
~Nuctear Decommissioning Authority 80 -
East Midlands Early Growth Fund Limited 49 -
Other - 30 16
Total management fee income 20,575 18,208
5.4 Other income 5019 018
£000 £000
Arrangement and other fees 1,837 1,286
Total other income 1,837 1,286
6. Net gains/(losses) on investment assets -019 >018
Note £000 £000
Impairment allowance onloans and receivables 7 1411 - (16,185)
Fair value adiustment on initial recognition of loans and
receivables 14.1.1 - (36,165)
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition of amortised cost
assets 141 (18,419) -
write-offs of amortised cost assets 141 (2,364) -
Impairment ¢f avallable for sale assets 1421 - (11,498)
Impairment of available for sale assets reclassified from other
comprehensive income thatrelates to a previous period - (1,120}
Fair value adjustment on initial recagnition of available for
sale assets 14.2.1 - (37,300)
Foreign exchange gains on available-for-sale financial assets 14.2.1 - 755
Fair value gains on assets held at fair value through profit or loss
under IAS 39 14.2.2 - 17.234
Fair value gains on derivatives 7 7 14.2.3 - 13,005
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition of assets held at fair
value through profit or loss under IFRS 8 142 (45,870) -
Fair value gains on assets held at fair value through profit or loss
under IFRS 9 - 142 95,322 -
Total net gains/(losses) oninvestment assets 28,669 (66,272)
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7.Net gain on write down of repayable capital grant

2019 2018
£000 £000
write down of repayable capital grant received _ 7,291 16,824
Total net gain on write down of repayable capital grant 7,291 16,924

The Group receives a Capital Grant from BEIS under the terms of the ‘Grant Otfer Lelter between BEIS and The StartUp
Loans Company for the purpese of extending loans to entrepreneurs at below market rate, (See note 20). On expiry of
the grant period (31 March 2025), The Start Up Loans Company will repay to BEIS the amount of cash held inits bank
accounts representing capital and interest repayments from entrepreneurs. The repayable capital grant will be reduced
by any unrecovered amounts from the beneficiaries of the loans, The gain on write down of repayable capital grant
represents the reduction in the capital grant liahility for the write-offs and impairment losses incurred on the loans to
entrepreneurs in the period as well as the reduction/increase in the capital grant liability for the fair value adjustment
on initial recognition and the subsequent amortisation of this adjustment.

8. Operating Expenditure

8.1. Staff numbers and staff costs

The average monthly number of employees including executive directors was:

2019 2018
Fermanent staff 253 210
Seconded staff 3 4
Temporary and agency staff 37 36
Non-executive directors 7 9 8
Total staff numbers N 297 258
Aggregate remuneration comprised: 2019 >018
£000 £000

Wages and salaries:
Permanent staff including executive directors 16,722 13,569
Seconded staff 541 667
Temporary and agency staff 2,392 2,674
Non-executive directors' fees 357 387
Shortand long-term incentive plans and bonus schema 3,179 2,553
Social security costs 2,367 1973
Pensicn costs o 2,207 1,727

Total staff costs 27,765 23,550
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8.2. Other operating expenditure

2019 2018
£000 £000

Professional fees; _
Investment scheme design and transactions _ _ 2.636 3,296
Operational fees 5,808 2,847
Accommedation and office services ' 4,971 1,994
Information technology _ 6.216 - 2.247
Marketing _ 3,267 2,204
SULCo delivery partner fees - 7677 8,880
Auditer's remunerzation 432 207
Staff related costs, including training and travel 2,494 1.428
Other purchase of goods and services 274 755
Total other operating expenditure 34,775 23,858

Auditer's remuneration relates to fees payable for the audit of the Group's annual accounts. The Group’s auditor did not
provide any non-audit services.

8.3. Depreciation and amortisation

2019 2018
Note £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 15 776 _ 394
Intangible assets b7 820
Total depreciation and amartisation 1,443 - 1,21?
9, Taxation
9,1. Tax on profit on continuing activities 2015 2018
£000 £000
Current tax _
Current year 18,584 18,627
Adjustmentin respect of prior years ) 310 {£,058)
Total current tax 7 14,874 17,564
Deferred tax 7 7
Current year - (4,941} o (5,052)
Total deferred tax (4,941) (5.052)
Total tax on continuing activities 9,933 12,512
Recegnised through Comprehensive Net Income 7 8,933 17,546
Recognised through Other Comprehensive Income - (5,034)

Total tax on continuing activities 9,933 12,512
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Factors affecting the tax expense for the period

The tax expense for the period is dif ferent from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK as explained in the
table below. The corporation tax rate used is based on the enacted corporation tax rate for the year commencing

6 April 2018, The Finance Act 2015 which provides for reductions in the main rate of corporation tax from 20% tc 19%
effective from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 and 18% effective from 1 April 2020, was substantively enacted on

18 November 2015.

Deferred tax primarily relates to the Croup's investments in ECFs. It is calculated at 17% (2018: 17%) of the estimated
unreaiised gains within the funds. Thisis a temporary timing difference and the tax will become payable once the gains
are realised in the underlying funds, for example through investment exits,

The Group's investments in ECFs comprises interests in Limited Partnerships. Temporary accounting movements in
relation to these investments are either added back or deducted from the taxable profit or loss. The Group is subject

to tax on estimated realised gains or losses arising in the individual Limited Partnerships. The reconciliation below takes
account of these adjustments.

The tables below reconcile the tax charge for the year:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Profit before tax 81,253 11,311
Tax on profit at standard UK tax rate 19% (2018: 19%) 15,438 2,149
Effecrs of:
Net gain oninvestments recognised in reserves ~ 1,276
Permanent disallowances relating to:
ECFioan commitments financial liability/provision (8,429) 7.030
Amortisation of ECF fair value adjustment on initial recognition ~ (2,596)
Other permanent disallowances 37 {130}
Timing differences relating to:
ECF fair value gains on derivatives ~ (2,471)
ECF accrued return - (1.888)
ECF fair value adjustment on initial recognition 11,426 6,137
ECF impairment - 1683
ECF realised gains 7.284 8,323
ECF fair value movements (7.541) -
Long-Term Incentive Plan accrued expenditure 214 82
Other timing differences 155 1

Total tax charge 18,584 19,622
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9.1. Tax on profit on continuing activities (continued)
Unrealised losses Deferredtax
2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Unreaiised losses on ECF investments (28,080) (29.616) (4,775) (5,034)
Cther unrealisedlosses o (376) (1ee) (166 (18}
Unrealised [osses subject to (29.066) (29,722) (4,941) (5.052)
deferred tax
9.2. Corporation tax payable 2019 2018

£000 £000
Corporation tax payable at 1 April 11,353 5.897
Tax expense for the year 14,874 17.564
I_a_>§_pa1d - (e2.291) (12,108)
Corporation tax payable at 31 March 3,936 11,353
9.3. Deferred tax asset

2019 2018

£000 £000
Deferred tax {asset)/liability at 1 April (3.853) 1,099
Movementintheyear (4.941) (5.059)
Deferred tax (asset) at 31 March {8.894) (3,953)

10. Operating segments

The Group's performance and resuits are managed internally as follows:

— British Business Bank entities: these are split into British Business Finance Limited (BBFL), British Patient Capital
Limited (BPC), British Business Investments Ltd (BBI), The Start Up Loans Company (SULCo) and the overall Group
results, BPCwas established in 2018/19 and therefore is natincluded in the previous year's comparative figures,

- Programmes administered on behalf of BEIS: In addition to its own operations, the British Business Bank, throughits
subsidiary British Business Finandcial Services Ltd (BBFSL), administers assets on behalf of BEIS. These assets do not
form part of the British Business Bank plc Group financial statements but are reported to management. The financial
performance and position of these programmes is included within the Strategic Report. These figures are not part of

the audited financial statements.

- Business units: The Group's business units span the different subsidiaries to pool expertise.




116 British Business Bank — Annual Reportand Accounts 2015

Notes (o the consolidated financial statements

10, Operating segments (continuea)

Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ending 31 March 2015

Company
plcand Intra-group Total
BBFL BBI BPC SULCo BBFSL eliminations Group
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
incame
Investment Programmes - 1818/ - - - - 19,187
Venture Capital Solutions 840 - - - - (668) 152
StartUp Loans - - - 24,098 - - 24,098
Management fee & other income 52 1,837 - 60,769 (40,246) 2c.412
Grantincome - - ) - 17,461 - 17,461
- " g9z 21024 - 41558 60769 (40,834) 83,310
Net gains/(lesses) on
investmeant assets
Investment Programmes - 50,859 - - - - 60,859
Venture Capital Solutions (23,782) - 9,447 - - - (14,335}
StartUp Loans e e e (36,70 - - (36.701)
' ' (23,782) 60,858 8,447 (30,701 - - 15823
Net gain on write down of
repayable capital grant - - - 7.291 _ - _ ~ 7.291
Operational expenditure
Staff costs (LO31}  (1626) (827} (3.924) (20,357 - (27.765)
Professional services (174) (682) (418) (454) (7,716) - (9,444
General operations (11,433} (8, 694)_(_m5«ﬁ(_,jﬁ (€7145) 40246 (26.774)
(12,638) (11,002 (7.910) (17.481) (55218) 40,245  (63,983)
Net operating profit before
ECF loan commitment financial
liability and interest payable (35,528) 70.881 1,537 688 5,551 (688) 42,441
ECFlgan commitments
financial liability 44,364 - - - - - 44,364
Interest payable - - - (688) {5.552) 688 (5.552)
Profit/(loss) before tax 8,836 70,881 1,537 - (1) - 81,253

All transactions between Croup companies take place on an arm’s lengths basis. There are no differences between the
entities' reportable profit or loss and the results in the note above.
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10. Operating segments (continued)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period ending 31 March 2018

Company
plcand Intra-group
BBFL BBi SULCo BBFSL eliminations  Total Group
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income
Investment Programmes - 53,311 - - - 53,311
Venture Capital Sclutions 23,596 - - - - 23,586
Start Up Loans - _ - 32.677 - - 32,677
Management fee & other income 258 1,284 - 38,024 (20,072) 18,464
Grantincome - - 17,201 - - 17.201
23,854 54,595 49,878 38,024 {20,072) 146,279
Net gains/{losses) oninvestment
assets 7 7
Investment Programmes - 12,009 - - - 12,009
Venture Capital Solutions (28,922) - - - - (28,922)
StartUp Loans - - {49,359) - - (49,359)
(°8922) 12,009 {49,359} - - (66.272)
Net gain on write down of
repayable capital grant - - 16.924 - - 16.524
Operational expenditure
Staff costs (1,050) (1,371) {4,231) (15,858) - (23.550)
Professional services - - (717) (438) (5,112} - (6.267)
General operations (3,844) (6.245) (12,533) (16,014} 19,831 (18,805)
(4.854) (8,333) (17.202) (38.024) 19,831 (48,622)
Net operating profit before
ECF loan commitments provision
and interestpayable (9,962) 58.271 241 - {241} 48,309
ECF [oan commitments provision (36,398) - - - - (36,998)
Interest payable - - (241) - 241 -

Profit/(loss) before tax (46,960) 58,271 - - - 11,311
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1C. Operating segments {cantinued)

For 2018, the application of IAS 39 meant that the ECF portfolio was classified as AFS and so interest income was
recognised on an effective interest rate basis using the effective interest rate determined at initial recagnition.

The difference between the contractual interest rate and the effective interest rate represents the amortisation

of the fair value adjustment cn initial recognition. Fer the measurement of tha Group's adjusted return, realised gains
on derivatives and permanent diminutions in value are included and all other accounting impacts as shown in the
table below were excluded. For 2019, the application of IFRS 9 means that the ECF portfalicis classified as FVTPL,
For the measurement of the Group's adjusted return, the fair vaiue movement is included and all ather accounting
impacts as shown in the table below are excluded.

The table summarises the amounts relating to the ECFs that have beenrecognised in arriving at the Group profit/(loss)
befaore tax in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Income.

2019 2018
Note EQDO £000
Interestincome - 9,934
Fair value gains on derivatives - 13,005
Fair value adjustment cn initial recognition (45,870) {32,300}
Impairment _ o ) - (8,887)
Amortisation of fair value adjustment on initial recognition - 13,661
Fair valuation movements - 39,697 -
Provision released in year o 18,19 44,364 34,323
38186 29,736
Provision against future commitmeants 18,19 - 7132l
Net gain/(loss) on Enterprise Capital Funds 38,186 (41,585)

Start Up Loans

The Group accepts a lower than market rate of return from Start Up Loan loans to entrepreneurs as discussed in Note 2
to the financial statements. Accounting standards require the Group te recognise a fair value adjustment on initial
recognition when it makes a Start Up Loan.

2015 2018
£000 £000
Grosslending advanced in the year 81,153 104989
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition _{18,419) (36,165)

Fair value oninitial recognition 62,734 68,824
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10. Operating segments (continued)
Consclidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2019
Company
picand Total
BBFL BBI BPC SULCo BBFSL Group
£000 £000 EQOO £000 £000 £000
Investment assets
Amortised cost
BFP Small Cap - 2 - - - 2
BFP Mid Cap - 55,432 - - - 55,432
Investment Programme - 233,542 - - - 233,542
StartUp Loans - - - 137241 - 137241
Northern Powerhaouse
Investments 4,909 - - - - 4,909
Assets held at FVTPL
BFP Midcap - 436,058 - - - 436,058
investment Programme - 296,961 - - - 296,961
Enterprise Capitat Funds 228,611 - - - - 226,611
Venture/Growth - - 203,045 - - 203,049
UKIIF - 123,765 - - - 123,765
Other venture capital investments 2,350 - - - - 2,350
Total investment assets 233,870 1,145,760 203,049 137.241 - 1,719,920
ECF loan commitments financial -
liability o (139,377} - - - - (139,377)
Netinvestment assets 94,493 1,145,760 203,049 137,241 - 1,580,543
Other assets/(liabilities) S
Cash 182 59,551 2,856 3.409 86,109 152,117
Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets - - - 1,468 3,558 5,066
Corporation tax (1841 (1.508) (3€5) - (262) (3,9306)
Provisions - - - - (300) (300)
Deferred tax 8,566 14 - - 314 8,894
Loans and cther borrowings - - - (107,021}  (604.2564) (711,785)
Amounts owed from group
undertakings 30,554 129,073 (8,213) (32,800) (118,614) -
Amounts owed by sharehclder - - - - 525,000 525,000
Net other payables (270) (746) (433) (2,228) (4,726) (8,403)
Total Net Assets 131,694 1,332,144 196,934 69 {113,145) 1,547,696

At 31 March 2019 the Company held investments in subsidiaries of £1,585.0m which are eliminated in full on consolidation,
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10. Operating segments (continued)

Consclidated Statement of Financial Positicn as at 31 March 2018

Company
plcand Total
BBFL BBI SULCo BBFSL Group
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Investment assets
Loans and receivables
BFP Small Cap - 635 - - 635
Investment Programme - 209,767 - - 209,767
Start Up Loans - - 135,666 - 135,666
Held to maturity Investments
(nvestment Programme - 31,090 - - 31,080
Available-for-sale financial assets
BFP Midcap - 555,558 - - 555,558
BFP Small Cap - 14,114 - - 14,114
Investment Programme - 242,038 - - 242,038
Enterprise Capital Funds 172,388 - - - 172,388
Other venture capital investments 1.685 - - - 1,695
Assets designated at FVTPL
V(C Catalyst - 76,243 - - 76,243
UKIHF - 131,986 - - 131,986
Derivative financial instruments 31.653 - - - 31653
Total investment assets 205,736 1,261,431 135,666 - 1,602,833
ECF loan comimitments provision (3741 - - (183.741)
Netinvestment assets 21,995 1,261,431 135,666 - 1,419,092
Other assets/(liabilities)
Cash 6,870 13,580 187G 41,3721 063,641
Property, plant and equipment and
Intangible assets - - 1,984 1,568 3,552
Corporation tax (5,623) (5,730} - - (11,353)
Provisions - - - (120) {120)
Deferred tax 3,791 14 - 148 3,953
Loans and cther barrowings - - (116,160) - (115,160)
Amounts owed from group undertakings 19,126 (11,088) (15,970) 11,942 -
Net other payables (188) (457) (3,321} (4,477) (8.443)
Total Net Assets 45,971 1,257,740 69 50,382 1,354,162

At 31 March 2018 the Company held investments in subsidiaries of £1,244.3m which are eliminated in full an consolidation.
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11 Cash and cash equivalents

2019 2018
£000 £000
Government Banking Service 134.746 53,038
Commercial hanks 17,371 16,603
Total cash and cash equivalents 152,117 63,641

The Group generally maintains a cash balance of at least £50m to fund investments. As at 31 March 2018, the cash
balance was £152.1m with drawdowns in April and May 2019 of £105.8m. As the majority of the cash is held in the
Government Banking Service there is minimal cost to the Excheguer.

12. Amounts owed by shareholder

2019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts owed by Shareholder 525,000 -

On 31 August 2018 the Group lent £350 million to BEIS, its shareholder, under the terms of a Loan Agreement.
The amount lentis repayable on demand and has a zero-interest rate. In the year ending 31 March 2019, £75 million

was repaid under this L oan Agreement,

On 15 |anuary 2019 the Group lent a further £250 million to BEIS under the terms cf a separate Loan Agreement.
The amount lentis repayable on demand and has a zero-interest rate. In the year ending 31 March 2019, £nil was

repaid under this Loan Agreement.

These loans have been classified as FVTPL under IFRS 9 because the contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows
on specified dates and do not include any payment of interast,

13. Trade and other receivables

2019 2018

£000 £000
Amounts receivable within one year
Trade receivables 340 299
Accruedincome 7,859 4,146
Prepayments 706 _ 534
Other receivables o B41 803
Total trade and other receivables o 9,746 5,762

Trade receivables disclosed above are measured at amortised cost. The Directors consider that the carrying amount
of trade receivables approximates to their fair value as they are short term in nature.
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14, Investments

Business Finance Partnership

British Business Investments Limited
(BBI) manages the Business Finance
Partnership programme.

The Business Finance Partnership
{(BFP) has two strands, The first
strand is the BFP Mid Cap which
invests in funds who lend to medium-
sized businesses with turnover of up
to £500m. All of the BFP Mid Cap
investments were previously
classified as Available-for-sale
financial assets under 1AS 39. Upon
adoption of IFRS S by the Group, the
holding in one investment asset was
Classified as an amortised cost asset.
The value ¢f this assetat 1 April 2018
was £60.2m. See note 14.14 for
detaiis. The remainder of the BFP Mid
Cap portfoliowas classified as FVTPL
upon adoption of IFRS 9. See note
14.2.1 for details.

The second strand is the BFP Small
Cap which invests in debt funds and
non-bank lenders that provide an
alternative source of lending for

small busingsses with turnover up

to £75m. Almost all of the BFP Small
Cap's investments were previously
classified as Available-for-sale
financial assets with the remainder
Ciassified as Loan and receivables
under IAS 38, Upon adoption of IFRS 8
by the Group, those assets previously
classified as Available-for-sale
financial assets have teen reclassified
as FVTPL, See note 14.2.1 for details.
Those assets previously classified

as Loans and recaivatbles have been
reclassified as amortised cost financial
assets See note 14.1.1 for details.

Investment Programme

BBl manages the Investment
Programme, It makes carmmercial
investments that stimulate at least
the same amount of investment from
the private sector, encouraging new
lenders into the market and the
growth of smaller lenders. BBI's
investments infimited partnerships
through the Investment Programme
were classified as Available-for-sale
financial assets under IAS 39. Upon
adoption of IFRS 9 by the Group,
these assets have been reclassified
as FVTPL. See note 14.2.1 for details.

This programme has provided invoice
discount finance, participated in peer
to peerlending, has provided asset
finance and pravided other credit
facilities. This lending was classified
as Loans and receivables under IAS 39
and has been reclassified as
amortised tost financial assets. See
note 14.1.1 for details.

Through the Investment Programme,
BBl participated in a public issue of Tier
2 fixed rate reset callable subordinated
foan notes by Shawbrook Bank plc with
an initial semi-annual coupaon of 8¥%2%,
Theissue was listed on the London
Stock Exchange on 28 October 2015,
This investment was ciassified as

held to maturity under tAS 39 and

has been reclassified as an amortised
cost financial asset. See note 14.1.2
for details.

Venture/Growth

Following the launch of BPC, the vC
Catalyst programme was clased to
new investment and a new Venture/
Growth programme was setup.
Thraugh this pragramme, BPC invests
in commercially viable venture and
venture growth capital funds, including
evergreen structureas, to support UK
companies with high growth potential
to access the long-term financing they
need to scale up, BPCwill alsoinvest in
co-investment opportunities arising
through its portfolio. The Venture/
Crowth investments are fundead by
BPC following their transfer from BBI
onliuly 2018,

These investments were accounted
for and measured at FVTPL under IAS
3G, Upon adoption of IFRS S by the
Group these investments remain
classified as FVYTPL. See note 14.2.2
for details.

UK Innovation Investment Fund

The UK Innovation Investment Fund
(UKIIFY is funded by BB following the
acquisition of HM Government's
investment in the Fund cn 14 july
2017 UKIIF supports the creation

of viable investment funds targeting
UK high growth technalogy-based
businesses. It has invested through
two underlying fund of funds, the
UK Future Technology Fund, which
has now ceased making new
investments, and the Hermes
Envircnmental Impact Fund.

The UKIIF investments were
accounted for and measured at FVTPL
under |AS 39. Upon adopticn of IFRS 9
by the Group these investments
remain classified as FVTPL. See note
14.2.2 for details.
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Enterprise Capital Funds

British Business Finance Limited
(“BBFL") invests in Enterprise Capital
Funds (ECFs). ECFs are commercially-
focused funds that bring together
private and public money to make
equity investments in high growth
businesses. BBFL investsinto funds
on terms that improve the cutcaome
for private sector investors when
those funds are successful. It does
this by taking an agreed prioritised
return of 3% - 4.5%. Inreturn BBFL
is entitled to less of any remaining
upside gainin excess of the agreed
return, it afund is successful.

BBFL intentionally makes a trade-off
between the priaritised return and
potential upside gains, Qverall, the
terms mean that BBFL expects the
ECFs to provide a pasitive returnto
government, but this return will be
lower than that typically scught by a
private sector investor. Thisisinline
with the Croup's strategic objectives.

The investments which BBFL makes
in ECFs meet the accounting definition
of alean and by election were
classified as Available-for-saie
financial assets under [AS 39, Any
upside returns which the funds may
generate were separately accounted
for as derivatives and measured at
FVTPL. Upon adoption of IFRS 9 by
the Group, these assets have been
reclassified together as FVTPL.

Accounting standards require that
these financial assets are held at fair
value, whichis the amount thata
private sector investor would pay

for the investments. This means that
forevery ECF investment a fair value
adjustment cninitial recognitionis
recorded toreflect the fact that it will

~ not provide the level of return sought

by a private sector investor, evenif
it is providing a positive return. ECF
investments are measured at fair

© value an an ongoing basis. See note

14.2.1 for details.

~Inaddition, BBFL signs ECF

agreements committing to the

_ prioritised return and reduced upside

gain in advance of drawdowns, At

the point that BBFL enters into a new
commitment to provide a loan at
below market rate itrecognises a
provision which it accounts forasa
FVTPL financial iability. The provision

~isreleased when a commitmentis

drawn torecognise areduction in
the liability See note 13 for details,

Other Venture Capital
Investments

BBFL also has three other smaller
schemes: Help to Grow funds, Aspire
and the Capital for Enterprise Fund.
These are detailed in note 14.2.1.

Start Up Loans

The Start Up Loans Company lends

10 entrepreneurs via a number of
delivery partners. These loans are
made to entrepreneurs at an interest
rate of 6%. Losses onthese loans are
expected to be between 30% - 40%
of the total loans advanced, reflecting
the non-commercial nature of the
scheme, This lending was classified as
loans and receivables under IAS 39
and has been classified as amortised
cost financial assets under IFRS .

Accounting standards require that
these loans are measured at fair
value oninitial recognition and
subsequently measured atamortised
cost. The fair value adjustment on

~initial recognition represents the

difference between the face value
of lpans written and the present
value of future expected cash flows
discounted using an appropriate
discountrate.

Accruedinterestincome and
amortisation of the fair value
adjustment on initial recognition are
calculated for each individual loan.
For presentation purposes these are
presented separately as the accrued
interestincome is the contractual
interest that will be collected whilst
the fair value adjustment cn initlal
recognition will be amortised over
the life of the loans.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 March 2019
Amortisation
Opening Fair value of fair value
balance adjustment adjustment Expected
under oninitial Accrued oninitial creditloss Clesing
IFRS9  Transfers Additions recognition Repayments Interest  recognition Write-offs allowance balance
£000 £000 £000 E£000 E£000 £000 £000Q £000 E00D £000
BFP Small Cap G35 - - - (745) 18 - - 94 2
BFP Mid Cap 60,200 - 22,491 . (30135) 2957 - - (81) 55432
Investment
Programme £38.508 - 114,478 - (132.764) 16,200 - - (2.880) 233,542
StartUp Loans 129,210 - 81,153 (18,415) {66,560} 10,591 13,518 (2.364) (9.888) 137241
Nerthern
Powerhiouse
nvestments - - 5000 S F) 153 - - (91) 4509
Total 428,553 - 223122 (18,419) (230,357) @29.918 13,518 (2,364} (12.846) 431,126
14.1.1.l.oans and receivables
Asat 31 March 2018, previously dassified under 1AS 38
Amortisation
Fair value of fairvalue
adjustment adjustment
Opening Onbusiness oninitial Accrued eninitial Closing
balance combination Transfers Additions recognition Repayments interest  recognition  Impairment balance
€000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £400 £000 £000
BFPSmallCap 2332 - - - - {1,857} 104 - 56 635
Investment
Programme 136,073 - 146 133,578 - (66.921) 9,898 - (3.010y 209,767
StartUp Loans - 107342 - 104,989 {36,165) (60,026} 9,6H8 23,069 (13,231} 135,666
Total 138,405 107,342 149 238,567 (36,165) (128,804) 19,690 23,069 (16,185) 346.068
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14.1.2. Held to maturity investments
As at 31 March 2018, previgusly classified under IAS 39

Fair value
adjustment
Opening on initial Accrued Closing
balance recognition Repayments Interest balance
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Investment Programme 31,090 - (2,550} 2,550 31,090
Total 31,090 - (2,550) 2,550 31,090

The above asset represents an investment in fixed rate reset callable subordinated loan notes with an initial semi-annual
coupcn of 8%% issued by Shawbrook Bank plc.

14.1.3. Available-for-sale financial assets
As at 31 March 2018, previously classified under IAS 39

Opening Accrued Closing

balance Additions Repayments Interest Impairment balance

£000 £000 £000 £EQOO £000 £000

BFP Mid Cap 35,256 29,942 (6.656) 1,937 162 60,636
Total 35,256 29,842 {6.656) 1,932 162 60,636

14.1.4. Reconciliation of opening 2019 amertised cost assets balances under IFRS 9 with clesing
2018 1AS 39 balances

Classification Ciosingbalance Opening balance
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 Remeasurementon 1April 2018
Note (1AS 39) (IAS39) adoptionofIFRS 9 (IFRS 9)
Leans and
BFP Small Cap receivables - B35 - 635
BFP Mid Cap Available-for-sale 60.636 (436) 60,200
Loans and
Investment Programme _ receivables 209,767
Held to maturity 31,080
240,857 - (2,349) 238,508
Loans and
StartUp Loans - receivables 135,660 (6,456) 129210
3 (9,241) 428,553

The Remeasurement on adcption of IFRS 9 value of £6.5m incorporates the following:
— anincrease of impairment of £22.9m on transition to IFRS 9;

- adecrease invaluation of £11.8m attributable to the discovery of a post balance sheet arror in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2C18. In accordance with I1AS 8, Management have not restated the prior pericd comparative.
The error however has no impact on Group net assets asitis offset by a corresponding release of the capital grant;

— anincrease invaluation of £28.2m resulting from an enhanced underlying fair value madelling methodology.
Management censider this to be a change in accounting estimate as definedin IAS 8 and have therefore applied
it prospectively as at 1 April 2018. It is not however possible for Management to estimate the effect cof this estimate
in future periods,
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14.2. Investments held at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9
Asat 31 March 2018

Fair value
Opening adjustment
balance oninitial Fairvalue Closing
under IFRS 9 Transfers Additions recognition Repayments movements Impairment balance
EQCO E£000 £000 £000 £0C0 £000 £000 £000
BFP Mid Cap 484,922 - 28,415 - (114,705) 27,426 - 436,058
BFF Small Cap 14,114 {12891 129 - {1.85/) 505 - -
Investment
Programme 242,038 12,816 80,700 - (46,235) /7.646 - 296,961
UKIIF 131,586 - 8,568 - {35,320) 18,530 - 123,765
Venture/
Crowth 76,243 75 119,980 - (12,284 18,035 - 203,045
Enterprise
Capital Funds 204,041 - 92,060 (45,870) (63,312) 39,697 - 226,611
Help to Grow
Funds - - 1,368 - - - - 1,368
Aspire 203 - - - - (375) - 528
Capital for
Enterprise
Fund 79¢ - - - (360) (37) - 385
Direct
investments - - 17155 - - {17,100) - 59
Total 1,165,039 - 348,380 (45,870) (274,077) 95,322 - 1,288,794

Repayments are received when a fund has exited or partially exited an underlying investment and the Group receives
its share of the proceeds due to the contractual obligations of the fund.

On 26 March 2019 the Group agreed to sell to the Nuclear Liabilities Fund 20% of its holding in the Venture/Growth
assets with an effective date of sale of 1 April 2013. As required under IFRS 5 the Directors have assessed that

this proportion of these assets were held for sale at the balance sheet date and have disciosed them separately

on the face of the Cansolidated Statement of Financial Pesition. Assets held for sale at 31 March 2018 are £40.6m
{2018 £nil) and relate only to Venture/Growth assets. These assets are all held within BPC and are measured

at fair value less costs to sell. Further information is disclosed in note 28.
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14.2.1. Available-for-sale financial assets
At 31 March 2018, previously classified under IAS 39

Amortisation

Fairvalue of fairvalue
adjustment adjustment  Foreign
Opening an initfal Accrued  Fairvalue oninitial exchange Closing
balance Transfers Additions  recognitioh  Repayments interest movements recognition gains Impairment batance
£00C £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 E£0CO £000 £000 £000
Limited
Partnership
Investments - - )
BFP Mid Cap 551,816 - 20,804 - (108.320) 25057 5,565 - - - 494,527
BFP Small Cap 37,816 (19.874} - - (5,915} 725 592 - 353 321 14,114
Investment
Programme 121,577 19,725 118,959 - (29,6883} 12,966 481 - 402 (2,189) 242,038
) 711,’209 (149) 139,763 - (144,122) 38,748 6,738 - 755 (1,868) 751,074
Venture Capital
Investments
Enterprise
Capital Funds 171,227 - 64,307 (32300} (45554) 9,934 - 13,6601 - (8887, 172,388
Bridges 1,055 - - - (L,055) - - - - - -
Aspire 1650 - - - (16) - - - - (741) 903
Capitalfor
Enterprise Fund 1.815 - - - (841) - (182} - - - 792
175,757 - 64,307 ({32,300} (47.466) 9,934 (182) 13,661 - {9,628) 174,083

Total 886,966 (149) 204,070 (32,300) (191,588)48,682 6,556 13,661 755 (11,496) 925,157
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14.2.2. Assets designated at fair value through profit or loss under IAS 39

At 31 March 2018, previcusly classified under 1AS 39

Opening Fair value Closing
balance Additions Repayments movements balance
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
VL Catalyst 29,5272 43,323 (1.0CS) 4,407 76,243
EJKHF o _ ) - 141,629 (22,4;7_0) 12,827 77}31,986
Total 29,522 184,952 (23.479) 17,234 208,229
14.2.3. Derivative financial instruments
At 31 March 2018, previcusly classified under IAS 39 , ] .
Opening Fairvalue Closing
balance Repayments movements balance
£000C £000 £000 EQQO
Enterprise Capital Funds - 24,318 (5,671} 13,005 31,653
Total 24,319 (5.671) 13,005 31,653

Derivatives represent any upside returns which the Enterprise Capital Funds may generate and were accounted for
separately under IAS 39 from the underlying investment asset shown innote 14.2.1.

15. Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2019 .
Leasehold Fixtures &
improvement ITequipment Fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation
At1 April 2018 1,149 1,538 /8 2,765
Additions 1771 1,043 - 2,814
Disposals ) ‘ (46) - - (iG_)
At 31 March 2019 . ) 2874 2,581 78 5,533
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 2018 {£68) (782) (45) {1.095)
Charge for the year (333) (424) {1S) (776)
Disposals 46 - - 46
At 31 March 2019 ‘ (555) (L206) (64) (1,825)
Carrying amount
At 31 March2018 2,319 1,375 14 3,708
At 31 March 2018 881 756 33 1.670
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15. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

As at 31 March 2018 .
Leasehold Fixtures &
improvement ITequipment Fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At1April 2017 192 803 - 1,085
On business ccmbination 48 151 80 279
Additions 909 484 - 1,393
Disposais - - (2) (2)
At 31 March 2018 1,149 1,538 78 2,765
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At1April 2017 (116} (454) - (570
On business combination (1) (77) (33) (131)
Charge for the year (131) (251) (12) (394)
At 31 March 2018 (268} (782) (45) (1.0s5)
Carrying amount 7
At31March 2018 881 756 33 1,670
At 31 March 2017 76 449 - 525
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16. Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise purchased saftware,

17 Trade and other payables

2019 2018

£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade payables 1,508 554
VAT and social security 604 1,252
Accrued expenditure 12,387 7.420
Other payables 1.738 1,871
Deferred scheme income o ) 743 2,321

16,981 13,418
Amounts falling due after more than one year

Other payables 7 N _ 7 11ee 807
1.168 807
Total trade and other payables 18,149 14,225

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.
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18. Provisions

Year ended 31 March 2019 o

Loan Dilapidation

commitments provision Total

£000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2018 (under IAS 37 and 39) 183,741 120 183.861
Reclassification on transition to IFRS 9 (183,741) - (183,741}
Balance at 1 April 2018 {under IAS 37) - 120 120
Fravided Inyear - 300 300
Releasedin year - (120) (120}
Balance at 31 March 2019 - 300 300
Of which:
Current - - _ -
Non-current - 300 300
Year ended 31 March 2018

Loan Dilapidation

commitments provision Total

£000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2017 146,743 120 146,863
Provided inyear on new ECFs 71,321 - 71,321
Released in year (34,323) - (34,323)
Balance at 31 March 2018 183,741 120 183,861
Of which:
Lurrent 40,058 120 40,178
Nen-current 143,683 - 143,683

The 31 March 2018 balance includes a dilapidation provision under IAS 37 and a loan commitments provision under IAS 39,
On transition to IFRS 9 the loan commitments provision has been reclassified as a financial liability at FVTPL {Note 19).
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1S. ECF loan commitment financial liability

2019 2018

£000 £000
Balance at 1 April following reclassification on transition to IFRS 9 183,741 -
Provided in year on new ECFs - -
Releasedin year (44,364) -
Balance at 31 March 139,377 -
Of which:
Current 35877 -
Non-current 103,500 -

Nan-current amounts relate to undrawn loan commitments where, based on historic and forecast information, it is not
anticipated the commitments will be utilised with the next 12 months. Given the uncertain nature of timings of the
drawdowns from ECFs the Directors believe this is the hest estimate at the balance sheet date.

when a commitmentis drawn, the loan commitment is released and a separate fair value adjustment on the resulting
investmentis recognised in net losses oninvestments in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net Income,
toreflect the difference between the fair value and the amount drawn,

20. Loans and other borrowings

2019 2018
£000 £000
Unsecured loans £19,158 14,894
Capital grants ) o 52,127 ‘ 101,266
Total loans and other borrowings ' 711,285 116,160

The amounts falling due after one year of the unsecured loans at 31 March 2019 were £618.2m (2018: £7m).
No amounts are due after one year at 31 March 2019 in respect of the capital grants (2018: £nil). The capital grants
have been classified as a current liability as they are repayable an demand, in whale orin part, under certain conditians.

The unsecured loansinclude a term facility of £12m provided by BEIS to The Start Up Loans Company on 24 February
2014 which is repayable on 17 December 2020. The balance of this loan fadility at 31 March 2018 was £79m (2018:
£79m). Afurther term facility of £10m was provided on 17 December 2015 and is repayable on 17 December 2020.
The balance of this term facility at 31 March 2018 was £7m (2018: £7m).

On 23 August 2018 the Croup received afean of £350m from the Nuclear Liabilities Fund which is repayable in full
on 23 August 2020. This loan accrues interest at a rate of 2% per annum.

On 28 December 2018 the Group received a second loan of £250m from the Nuclear Liabilities Fund for the purpose

of making investments on behalf of the Nuclear Liabilities Fund after 1 April 2019. The term of this lean is 4 years

with the value reduced as the Group makes investment payments on the Nuclear Liabilities Fund’s behalf. Any amount
unutilised at 28 December 2022 will be repaid on this date. This loan accrues interest at a rate af 2% per annum for the
first 2 years decreasing to 1.5% for the remaining life of the loan.

During the year repayments of £nil (2018: £nil) were made against these unsecured loans.

During the year the Group recelved capital grants of £4.1m (2018: £25m) and wrote down the value of capital grants
by £73m {2018: £16.9m}. The fair value of the capital grants was written down by a further £6.5m fallowing the adopticon
of IFRS9on 1 April 2018.
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21, Contingent liabilities and indemnities

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 4794 Subsidiary companies. canditions for
exemption from oudit of the Companies Act 2006 which exempts qualifying companies fram the audit of their individual
accounts for a financial year. The exempticn isin respect of the following subsidiaries:

Subsidiary name Registered No.
British Business Finance Limited - 09091328
British Business Financial Services Limited 08174621
Capital for Enterprise Limited 06179047
Capital for Enterprise Fund Managers Limited 06826072
Capital for Enterprise (GP) Limited SC354499
British Business Aspire Holdco Limited 7 7 - - 09263858
The Start Up Loans Company 08117656

Asreqguired by the Act, the British Business Bank plc:

— Guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary companies are subject at the end ¢f the financial year
to which the guarantee relates, and until they are satisfied in full; and

- Asserts that the guarantee is enforceable against the British Business Bank plc by any person to whom the subsidiary
companies are liable in respect of those liabilities,

Under the Group's Help to Grow financial guarantee programme, the Croup has entered in to financial guarantee
agreements of £30m (2018: £60m). The Greup has guaranteed 75% of eligible lending tc SMEs under these agreements
and a counter guarantee is in place that guarantees 50% of the Croup's 75% of eligible lending. As at 31 March 2019 the
amountlent under these financial guarantee agreements was £3.2m (2018: £1.8m). During the year ending 31 March
2019 ene of the guarantee agreements totalling £30 million has expired with no amounts lent under it, Since the balance
sheet date, the remaining agreement totalling £30m has expired with no further amounts being able to be lent under it.
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22. Capital and other commitments

22.1. Capital commitments

The Group had the following undrawn commitments at the balance sheet date in relation to its existing investment
portfoiio;

2019 2018
£000 £000
British Business Investments Limited
BFP Mid Cap ' 143,968 211,778
Investment Programme 285,080 242,108
UKIIF _ _ 24,721 34,346
British Patient Capital Limited
Venture/Growth ' _ 413506 198,648
Venture Capital Solutions
Enterprise Capital Funds 265,108 368.149
Other
Northern Powerhouse Investments Ltd 45,000 50,000
Midlands Engine Investments Ltd N 32,500 32,500
1,209,883 1,137,529

22.2. Operating lease commitments

The Bank's occupation of the 5th and Gth floors at its registered office at Steel City House, West Street, Sheffield $12GQ
is governed by a 10-year lease agreement covering the period from 9 Octeber 2017 to 8 October 2027 for an annual
rental cost of £224,000 with an option to break the agreement after five years.

The Bank entered into a lease from 1 June 2018 to 8 Cctober 2027 to rent the 4th floor of Steel City House, West Street,
Sheffield, S1 2G0Q for an annual rental cest of £195,000 and including a rent-free period of 14 months,

The Bank's occupation of office space at 33 Kingsway, London, WC2B 6UF was governed by a Memorandum of Terms
of Occupation which ended on 3 December 2018,

The Bank entered into a 10-year lease from 11 May 2018 ta rent the 2nd floor of Salisbury Square House, 8 Salisbury
Square, London, EC4 for an annual rental cost of £1,232,725 and including arent-free period of 30 months.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, lease payments af £3.2m were recognised as an expense in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Netincome and the Bank incurred £0.9m in expenses in relation to occupying the offices
{including service charges. rates and utilities).

The future minimum operating lease payments are as follows:

<lyear 1-Syears >5years Tatal
£000 £000 £000 £000
At31March 20189 e 1B56_ 6,623 6553 . ...14.83¢

At 31 March 2018 574 1,047 1177 2,798
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23. Share capital

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of £1 each:

2019
1.496,407,924

2018
1,371,407,835

£000 £000
Brought forward 1,371,408 1.071,408
Shares issued for cash 125,000 300,000
Carried forward 1,496,408 1,371,408

The Campany has one class of ardinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.

24, Subsidiaries and other stgnificant undertakings

The Group consists of a parent company, British Business Bank plc, incarporated in the UK, and a number of subsidiaries
held directly by the British Business Bank plc, which operate and are incorporated in the United Kingdom.

The subsidiary undertakings of the parent company are shown below. The capital of each entity depends onits nature
and consists of ordinary shares. All the subsidiary undertakings have the same registered address being, Steel City
House, West Street, Sheffield 51 260 with the exception of The Start Up Loans Company whose registered office is
71-75 Shelton Street, Covent Garden, London WCZ2H 9JQ.

Country of Shares held
Subsidiary Incorporation Nature of Business by the Group
British Business Investments Limited” UK Makes commercial investments into 100%

providers of finance to smaller businesses
plus venture capital fund investments

BBB Patient Capital Holdings Limited UK Holding company 100%
British Fatient Capital Limited" UK Makes commercial investments intc 100%
venture and growth capital
British Business Finance Limited UK Manages and invests into schemes on 100%
_ behalf of the Group
British Business Financial Services UK Administers investment schemes on behalf 100%
Limited of the Department for Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy )
Capital for Enterprise Limited™ UK Holding company 100%
Capital for Enterprise Fund Managers UK Acts as fund manager of Capital for 100%
Limited* 7 7 7 Enterprise L P. B 7
Capital for Enterprise (GP) Limited” UK Acts as generzl partner to Capital for 100%
Enterprise L P.
British Business Aspire Holdco Limited” UK Provides equity investments to women 100%
led SMEs B
The Start Up Loans Company’ UK Provides loans to entrepreneurs N/A

*Indicates investments are not directly held in these companies.

The Start Up Loans Company is a company limited by guarantee of which British Business Finance Limited is the sole member,

Details of the subsidiaries’ results either individually or as part of a consolidated group, including their net assets as at the
balance sheet date and their profitorloss for the year ended 31 March 2018, are provided in the segmental reporting note 10.
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24, Subsidiaries and other significant undertakings (continued)

The British Business Bank Group also has the following significant holdings in undertakings other than subsidiaries.

Countryinwhichit  Class of share held Proportion held
Name is incorporated by the Group by the Group
BMS Finance S AR.L
Registered address:
55 Avenue Pasteur, 1-2311, Luxembourg Luxembourg Net classified 49.8%
Industrial Lending 1 {(Boost Fund)
Registered address;
6 Rue Adolphe, L-1116, Luxembourg Luxembourg Class A shares 46.6%
Pricoa Sterling Corperate Bond Fund?
Registered address:
70 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin, Ireland Irelznd Not classified 67.7%
VRG Ventures Limited
Registerad address:
Cardiff House, Tilling Road, London, NwZ2 1L, UK LUK Ordinary shares 28.4%
Muzinich UK Private Debt Fund
Registered address:
49 Avenue |.FK, L-1855, Luxembourg Luxembourg Not classitied 20./%

1. Pricoa’s latestfinancial yedr end wdas 30 June 2019, The fund does not proguce separate accoJnts and therefore tigures tor the fund are not
available.

25, Structured entities

A structured entity is an entity in which voting ar similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding contral,
Structured entities are generally created to achieve a narrow and well-defined objective with restrictions around
their ongoing activities.

Aninterestin astructured entity is any form of contractual or non-contractual involvement which creates variability
inreturns arising from the performance of the entity for the Group. Such interests include debt and equity investments
and investment management agreements.

Depending on the Group's power over the activities of the entity and its exposure to, and abllity to influence, its own
returns, it may consolidate the entity. In other cases, it may spensor or have exposure 1o such an entity butnot
cansolidate It. As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 the Greup does not cansoclidate any interests in structured entities
as the Group is not considered to have contral or significant influence over these entities due to the way these entities
are structured.

Tha nature and extent of the Group’s interestin structured entities and its maximum expasure is summarised below:

2019 2018
Interestin Limited Partnerships £000 £000
Available-for-sale financial assets - 875,157
Assets at fair value through profit or loss under IAS 39 - 208,229
Assets at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9 1,288,735 -

Total assets 1,288,735 1,133,386
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26. Financial instruments

26.1 Categories of financial instruments

The following table analyses the Group's financial assets and lizbilities in accordance with the categories of financial
instruments in IFRS 9. Prior year comparatives have been provided as classified under 1AS 39.

Assets Liabilities
held at held at Liabilities Non-financial
Assets held amortised amortised heldat assetsand

at FVTPL cost cost FVYTPL liabilities Total
At 21 March 2018 Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Property, plant and
equipment 15 - - - - 3,708 3,708
Intangible assets 16 - - - - 1,358 1,358
Amortised cost investment
assets 141 - 431,126 - - - 431,126
Investment assets heid
at FVTPL 147 1,288,794 - - - - 1,288,794
Trade and other
receivables 13 575,000 9,040 - - - 534,040
Prepayments 13 - - - - 706 706
Cash and cash equivalents 11 - 152,117 - - - 152117
Deferred tax 9 - - - - 8,894 8,894
Total assets 1,813,794 592,283 - - 14,666 2,420,743
Liabilities B _
Trade and other payables 17 - - (17,545) - (ec4)  (18,149)
Corporation tax 9 - _ - - - (3.936) (3,938)
Loans and other
borrowings 20 - - {619,158) (92,127) - {711,285)
ECF loan commitments 19 - - - (139,377) 7 - {138.377)
Provisions 18 - - - - (300) (300)
Total liabilities - - (B36,703) (231.,504) (4.840) (873.047)

Net assets 1,813,794 592,283  (636,703) (231,504) 9,826 1,547,696




138 British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2019 Notes to the consolidated financiai statements

26.1 Cateqgories of financial instruments (continued)

Liabilities Nan-

Assets Heldto Available held at financial

heldat Loansand maturity forsale amortised assetsand

FVTPL receivables investments assets cost liabilities Total
At 31 March 2018 Note £000 £000 £0Q00C EQOC £000 £000 £000
Assets
Froperty, plantand
eguipment 15 - - - - - 1,670 1,670
intangible assets 15 - - - - - 1,882 1.862
Loans and receivables 14.11 - 346,068 - - - - 346,068
Held to maturity
invastments 14.1.2 - - 31,080 - - - 31,080
Available-for-sale
financial assets 14.21 - - - 885,793 - - 985,763
Designated at FVTPL 14.2.72 208,229 - - - - - 208,229
Derivatives 14.23 31,653 - - - - - 31,653
Trade and other
receivables 13 - 5,248 - - - - 5248
Frepayments 13 - - - - - 534 534
Cash and cash equivalents 11 - 63,641 - - - - 63,641
Deferred tax 9 - - - - - 3,953 3,853
Total assets 239,882 414,957 31,090 985,793 - 8.039 1,679,761
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 - - - - {12,973) (Leshe) (14.225)
Corporation tax 9 - - - - - (11,353} (11.353)
Loans and other
borrowings 20 - - - - (116,160} - (116,160)
Provisions 18 ) - - - - (183741)  (120) (183861
Total liabilities " - - - - {312,874) (12,725) (325,599)

Netassets 239,882 414,957 31,090 985,793 (312,874) (4,686)1,354,162
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26.2. Fair value measurements

The informaticn set out below
provides information about how the
Group determine the fair values of
various financial assets and financial
fiabilities, Fair value is the price that
would be received tosell an assetor
paid to transfer aliability in an orderly
transaction between market
participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable cr estimated
using another valuation technique.

For financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised
into Level1, 2 or 3 based on the degree
to which theinputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurementinits entirety,
which are described as follows:

- Level1fair value measurements
are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active
markets;

— Level 2 fair value measurements
are those derived from inputs other
than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or lizhility, either directiy (i.e.
as prices) orindirectiy (i.e. derived
from prices); and

- Level 3 Tair value measurements
are those derived from valuation
technigues that include inputs for
the asset or liability that are not
based cn observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The Group's investment portfolio
consists of assets carried at amortised
cost and fair value,
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The Group's financial assets are all
classified as Level 3 assets, except
for one amortised cost investments
and one FVTPL investment which
are classified as Level 1 assets,

During the year ending 31 March 2019
the fair value of investment assets
held at fair value through profit or
loss increased by £95.3 million taken
to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income. Fair value
impairments on initial recognition

of amortised costinvestments

of £18.4m were taken to the
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income,

During the year ending 31 March 2018,
the fair value of Available-for-sale
financial assets increased by £67
million taken to Other Comprehensive
Income. The fair value of derivative
financial instruments increased by
£13.0 million taken to the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
Income. The fair value of assets held
as at fair value through profit or loss
increased by £17.2m taken to the
{onsolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income.

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fairvalueon a
recurring basis

Investments held at fair value
through profit of loss (FVTPL)

For all FVTPL assets, except for the
Enterprise Capital Funds and the one
Level 1 assetat FVTPL, the
investment valuation, a net asset
valuation (NAV) which is determinad
gn a fair value basis, is determined by
investment managers on a reqular
basis {(monthly or quarterly).
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The Directors review the investment
valuation reports pericdically and
are satisfied that they provide an
appropriate measure of fair value

at the reporting date.

The Group has also provided two loans
toits shareholder which at 31 March
201S had a total value of £525.0m
(2018 £nil). These loans have been
classifiedas FVTPL. The loans are
repayable on demand and have a
zero-interestrate, The Directors
consider that the credit risk for these
loans is minimal given the credit rating
of the borrower and that the value of
the principal autstanding represents
the fair value.

Enterprise Capital Funds

For the purposes of valuation, the
Enterprise Capital Fund investments
are bifurcated into a debtand a
derivative element, which are
disclosed together. The primary
valuation methodcology used for the
debtelement of investmentsis the
discounted cash flow methed. Fair

: value is estimated by deriving the

present value of the investment using
reasonable assumptions of expected
future cash flows and the estimated

~repayment value and date, discounted

at the appropriate risk-adjusted
discount rate, The discount rate is
estimated with reference to the
market risk-free rate and a risk-
adjusted premium.

Each investment has an annually
reviewed model, which foreach
valuation assessmentis updated for
actual asset performance and key
assumption and input changes.
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26.2. Fair value measurements (continued)

Notes to the consolidated financial statermnents

Enterprise Capital Funds also contain an equity derivative, The derivatives are valued using the Black-Scholes madel.

The key inputs used in the derivative valuation are:

Input
Net amount drawn and fund valuation as at 31 March 2019

Time to fund exit - ranging from 0-10 years

Assumptions in determining the input
Reparted by fund managers.

Assessed separately for each fund based on rema\'nihg
investment period and estimated timetable for fund
exits,

Volatility - ranging from 256% tc 30%

Dividend yield - ranging from 3.0% to 4.5%

Risk free rate

The ViX and the VXN indexes have been used as a
proxy for the expected volatility for non-sector
specific and technology specific funds respeciively.
Set to equal the contractual return which funds must
pay before any upside on the option is realised.
Derived from UK Government bonds.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Set out below is a comparison by class of carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial assets and financial

llabilities measured at amortised cost.

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fairvalue
2019 2019 2018 2018
[a]els] £000 £000 £000
Financial assets at amortised cost
Loans and receivables _
BFP Small Cap - - 635 635
Investment Programme - 209,767 209,767
Start Up Loans - 135,666 115,515
Held to Maturity Investments - - 31,080 33,279
Amortised cost
BFP Small Cap 2 2 - _
BFP Mid Cap 55,432 49,849 - -
Investment Programme 233,547 237,099 - -
Start Up Loans 137,241 144,731 - -
~ Northern Powerhause Investments 4,909 5,000 - -
431,126 436,681 377,158 360,196
Financial liabilities at amortised
cost
Unsecured loans 619,158 619,158 14,894 14,894
Capital grants - gz,127 892127 101,266 101,266
711,285 711,285 116,160 116,160

Financial assets at amortised cost are classed as Level 3 assets except for one investment that is publicly listed.
Unsecured lcans and capital grants are classed as Level 3 liabilities.
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StartUp Loans

Start Up Loans to entrepreneurs

are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and are not
quotedin an active market, Loans are
recognised when cashis advanced and
initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised
cost over the term of the loan.

For the estimation of fair value at the
reporting date, the Group has utilised
a future expected cash flow model
which is based on the recent past
performance for similar loans,

The future expected cash flows
derived from the model are
discounted using an eppropriate
discountrate which has been
calculated by taking the 5-year

median corporate debt rates for Caa/C -

ratedloans. Thisinformation has been
sourced from Moody’s market analysis.
Start Up Loans are classed as Level 3
assets based on the valuation
techniques used to determine the fair
value at the reporting date, The fair
value of Start Up Loans is sensitive

to changesin the discount rate and

to changes in expected cash flows
arising from the actual and future
expected performance of the lcans.
The fair value of Start Up Loans is
sensitive to changes in the discount
rate and to changes in expected cash
flows arising from the actual and
future expected performance of the
loans. A Z percentage point increase
in the discount rate as aresult of
movementsin corporate debtrates
for Caa/Crated loans or LIBOR could
lead to approximately £4.5m decrease
in fair value.
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BFP Small Cap, BFP Mid Cap and
Investment Programme

Loans at amortised cost provided
through the BFP Small Cap, the BFF Mid
Cap and the Investment Programme
comprise both fixed rate and floating
rate investments with an average
duration of not more than five years.
The Directors have assessed that the
changesininterestrates and in credit
spreads and the associated impact
onthe fair value of these assetssince
they were originated is not material
to the Group's results. The Directors
consider the carrying value of the
investments measured at amortised
cost tobe areasonable representation
of the fair value of these assets at

31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
BFP Small Cap, BFP Mid Cap and
Investment Programme amortised
costassets are classed as Level 3
assets in the fair value hierarchy.

Unsecuredloans and capital grants

The carrying value and fair value of
unsecured loans reflects the amount
at which the Group expects to settle
Its liabilities with BEIS and the Nuclear
Liabilities Fund respectively. The
carrying value and fair value of the
BEIS capital grant are equivalent
because the grant has no maturity
andis repayable on demand, in whoie
orin part, under certain conditions.

Liabilities held at FVTPL

The fair value of the capitat grants
repayable to BEIS are equivalent

to their nominal value because the
grants have no maturity date and
may become repayable on demand,
inwhacle orin part, under certain
circumstances,

The ECF loan commitments are part
of a group of financial assets and
financial liabilities that are managed,
and their performance evaluated on

a fair value basis, and information
about the group is provided internally
on that basis to the entity's key
management perscnnel. As permitted
under IFRS 9, an election has been
made to measure the financial liability
arising from the loan commitments

at FVTPL. The fair value of each
commitment is calculated by
discounting future cashflows using
adiscountrate which is adjusted

to take account of the credit risk.
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26.3. Financial risk
management

The Group has expasure te a number
of financial risks through the conduct
of its operations. Details of the
Group's risk management structure
are previded in the Risk Management
section of the Strategic Report. This
note presents information about the
nature and extent of risks arising
from the financial instruments.

The Group has exposure to the
following risks from its use of financial
instruments:

— Credit and Investment risk
— Marketrisk

- Liguidity risk

Credit risk and investment risk
Credit and investment risk is the risk

of loss to the Group from the failure

of clients, customers or counterparties
to fully hanour their obligations to the
Group, inciuding the whole and timely
payment of principal, interest,
callateral and other receivables and the
risk of loss due to a fall in the value of
equity investments or adverse credit
spread movements, Credit risk includes
settlementrisk, when a counterparty
fails to settle their side of a transaction,
and concentration risk, Credit risk may
arise in any of the Group's assets
where there is the potential for default
including assets held at amortised cost
and FVYTPL investments with a
contractual repayment.
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Assessments of credit and investment
risk are carried out as part of the
investment approval process and is
revisited on an angoing basis as part
of the Group's portfolio management
process. With respect to StartUp

. Loans, all loans to entrepreneurs are

on an unsecured basis and the credit
risk is the risk that an entrepreneur
will default on their contractual
obligations to make repayments
resufting in financial loss to the

Group. To manage this, the Executive
Committee approves the lending pelicy
forStart Up Loans and all changes toit,
Allloan applications are assessed with
reference to the lending policyin force
at the time. Subsequently loans are
regularly reviewed for any factors
that may indicate that the likelihood
of repayment has changed. During

the year there have been no
noteworthy changes in the credit

risk management procedures.

As part of the Risk Appetite process
the Group undertakes stress scenario
madelling on its portfelio. Severe but
plausible stressed scenarics featuring
significant asset value corrections

on the fair value of investments and
heightened portfolio defaults were
applied to planned deployment and
stock levels in each Programme within
the Bank, The general appreach is that
these scenarios are chesenonthe
basis that they are as severe asa

lin 20-year downside scenario (i.e.
the worst year in the past 20 years).
The cutput of this exercise reflects
the risk undertaken by the Group
gperating in underserved finance
markets and demenstrates that the
Group would suffer significant losses
if such a scenario was to materialise.
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The Group alse undertook a stress
test based upen the Bank of England
{BOE) Annual Cyclical Scenario
Stress Testing guidelines. This was
undertaken by analysing which UK
macreeconomic variables suggested
by the BOE would have an impacton
the Bank's credit and investment risk
exposures and then evaluating how
changes in these variables over a
5-year time horizon would impact on
credit and market value lgsses on the
Group's portfolic.

The findings of this exercise showed
that if the UK ecanomy were ta go
through a macroeconomic downside
scenario as prescribed by the BOE's
Annugl CGyclical Scenario within the
next financial year, the Bank couid
incur additional credit and invostment
losses of £215m (equivalent to c.8%
of the Bank's average capital deployed
between 2019-2023) over the next
five years.

These stress testing outcomes were
considered by the Board and alse
communicated to our stakehaolders.
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Maximum credit risk exposure

Maximum Net Maximum Net

exposure Collateral exposure exposure Collateral exposure

2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cash and cash equivalents 152,117 - 152117 63.641 - 63,641
Amounts owed by shareholder 525,000 - 525,000 - 7
Trade and other receivables 9,746 - 8,746 5,782 - 5,787
Amorlised costinvastments 431,126 83,770 337.356 - - -
Investments held at FVTPL 1,288,794 - 1.2887%4 - - -
Leans and receivables - - - 346,068 121,370 224,698
Held to maturity investments - - - 31,090 - 31,090
Available for sale financial assets - - - 985,793 - 985,793
Assets designated at FVTPL - - - 208,229 - 208,229
Q_g_rwil@tive financial irj‘skt[urﬂen‘g - - 31,653 - 31,653

Total 2,406,783 93,770 2,313,013 1,672,256 121,370 1,550,886

The Group through its applicable delivery partners has the ability to call on collateral in the event of a default of the
counterparty by way of calling en the asset for which the finance has been provided. The collateral disclosed in the tahle
relates in full to loans provided in relation to asset backed finance,

The maximum exposure is the carrying value of the financial assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
The carrying value of the investments in each class of financial asset is detailed in secticn 26.2 of this note and in note 14,

Credit risk rating and loss allowance
The Group has the following assets subject to expected credit loss impairments:

— Trade receivables;
— Assetsheld atamortised cost;

— (ash and cash equivalents,

Trade and other receivables

Impairment on trade and other receivables has been measured on the 12-month expected loss basis reflecting the short
maturities of the exposures. An expected credit loss has not been recognised in the accounts as itis not material.

Assets held atamortised cost

The Group's investments are assessed by the Group's Valuation Committee. The Creup produces credit risk ratings for
its investments based upon the estimated Probability of Default and Loss Given Default of that investment.
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26.3. Financial risk management {continued)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The following table presents an analysis of the credit quality of assets held at amortised cost, which were previously
classified as Loans and receivables, Available-for-sale, or Held to maturity. It indicates whether assets were subject
toa 12-month ECL or fifetime ECL allowance, and whether they were credit-impaired,

As at 31 March 2019 Stagel
£000
Law risk o 5,000
Medium risk 223,555
Highrisk 201,738
Defaulted financial assels N -
Total gross Carryimgwéaounts 430,297
Lass allowance (10,801)
Carrying amount 419,396

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£Q00 £0Q0 £000

- - 5,000

- - 223,559
15,313 - 217,051
o 56,168 66168
15,313 66,168 511,778
(8,671} (51.080) (80,652)
6,642 5,088 431,126

The movement in the allowance for assets held at amortised costduring the year was as follows.

Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2018 per IAS 39 42,249
Adjustment on initial application
of FRSS \ 3,593 3,524 17,750 25,557
Balance at 1 April 2018 per IFRS 9 10,673 10,445 45,686 67,806
Remeasurement! (10,308) 3,163 11,547 4,397
Transfer between stages (1,594 (3.162) 4,756 -
Financial assets repaid (672} {1.775) (1,906) (4,353)
New financial assets acquired - 12,802 - - 12,802
Balance at 31 March 2019 10,901 8,671 61,080 80,652

1. Remeasurement includes credit risk changes as a result of significant increases in creditrisk and changes in madel inputs and assumptions

The Group has undertaken sensitivity analysis of the key inputs to ECL impairment provision models. Due to the current
benign economic envirgnment, this analysis has concentrated on the downside impact on ECL provision levels:

- The potential impact of ascribing 100% probakbility to the worst-case economic scenario {equivalent to around

350% PD increase) could increase provisions by £41.0m.

— The potential impact of inaccurately modelled PR input with a sensitivity of a 1-notch downgrade en a granular
PDrating scale, equating to 1.5x multiple on all the performing loan PO inputs, could increase provisions by £7.3m.

- The potential impact of inaccurately modelled LGD input for the ECL calculations with a sensitivity of a 1-natch
downarade on a granular LGD rating scale, equating to a range of LGD input increases fram 5% to 30% depending

on the portfolio, could increase provisicns by £23.4m.
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Cash and cash equivalents

The Group held cash and cash
equivalents of £152.1m as at 31 March
2019 (2018: £63.6m). The cash and
cash equivalents are held with banks
and financial institutions which

are rated AA- to AA+ based on

S&P ratings.

The Group censiders that cash and
cash equivalents have a low credit risk
based on the external credit ratings
of the holding parties, As such, an
expected credit loss has not been
recognised in the accounts.

Market risk

Market Risk is the risk of direct or
indirect losses that arise from
fluctuations in the values of, or
income from, assets or in movements
ininterest or exchange rates or credit
spreads. The Group reccgnises market
risk arising from an nability to exit
aninvestment within the intended
time frame,

Interest rate risk

The Group'sinvestments include a
combination of fixed and variable rate
loans, Interest rate risk is reqularly
monitared to ensure that the mix of
variabile and fixed rate borrowing is
appropriate. The Group does not use
derivatives to hedge interest rate risk.

LIBOR sensitivity of the Group's

investments is estimated is as follows:

- Theimpact of a1 percentage point
increase in the interest rate
applicable toinvestments would be
an approximate increase inincome
of £8m over a ona-year period.
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- Theimpactof 2 0.25 percentage
point decrease in the interest rate
applicable to investments would be
an approximate decrease inincome
of £1m over a cne-year period.
Larger decreases are significantly
mitigated by LIBOR floors.

Currency risk

The Group dces not have material
exXposure to currency risk as the Group
primarily invests in its functional
currency, pounds sterling, There are
some investments in funds which
have an international investment
mandate and are denominated in
Euros or US Dollars. A condition of
investment in these fundsis that
they investinte the UK at a fund level
alarger amounit than our financial
investment. Approximately 5% of
the Group's portfolio is in non-pounds
sterling denominated investments.
There is currently no policy to hedge
this currency risk. Due to the small
amount of investments currently
held in foreign currency, no currency
sensitivity analysis has been
performed.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that anentity
does not have sufficient financial
rescurcesinthe shart term to meet
its obligations as they fall due, orits
strategy is constrained by inadequate
orinappropriate funding sources.

The Group manages its liquidity risk
as part of its cash and operational risk
mznagement processes and ensures
that sufficient funds in liquid form
are maintained at all times ta meet
lfabilities as they fall due.
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In relation to the capital grants
crovided to the Group, they may
become repayable on demand, in
whale orin part, if at the absoiute
discretion of BEIS, certain conditions
arise that affact the Start Up Loans
Company adversely. The Group is
dependent on continuing support
from BEIS that the grants will not be
recalled for a period of atleast 12
months from the date of approval of
these financial statements.

The Group has also entered inte term
facilities with BEIS, the repayment of
which is managed as part of The

Start Up Loans Company's cash flow
ferecasting, business planning and
liquidity management processes which
ensure that any mismatches between
maturing assets and liabilities are
smoothed and a degree of protection
is provided against any unexpected
developments that may arise.

During the year the Group entered
into term facilities with the NLF,
the repayment terms of which are
setoutinnote 20, Should there be
a shortfall at the repayment point
of these term facilities, the Group's
shareholder has confirmed they will
provide the necassary cash by way
of capitalinvestment.

Other than the capital grants and
term fadilities, liquidity riskis not
deemed significant to the Group as
it1s 100% Government funded, with
all programmes pre-approved and
committed to, and it does not have
aleveraged balance sheet.
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Capital measuring economic capital in the ending 31 March 2019. The Bank
The British Business Bank plc's share  @ssessment of new investment manitors its performance against
capital comprises 1,496,407,024 transactions. The Bank's Adjusted this indicator as part of its monthly
of issued and fully paid ordinary Return on Capital employed is performarnce managementand for
shares of £1. The Bank is not governed by BEIS and definedina the financial year ending 31 March
subject to external regulatory capital Shareholder Framework Document. 2018 remained above the target
requirements under the Basel I The Adjusted Return on Capital throughout the year, Further details
requlatory capital framework and Employed is a key performance on the Adjusted Return on Capital
therefare does not manage its capital indicator thatis set for the Bank by Employed are given in Objective 4
according to the Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 its shareholder as part of the annual - Manage taxpayers money efficiently
planning cycle and a figure of 3.6% section of the Strategic Report,

requirements set out in that
framework. Where appropriate
the Bank uses internal models for

was achieved for the financial year

27.Related party transactions
Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been efiminated on

consalidation and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Group and its related parties are disciosed below,

Key Management Personnel
Key Management Persannel refer to the Executive Committee of the Group and Non-Executive Directors.

2019 2018
£000 £Q00
Compensation
Salaries and ather short-term benefits 7 1,965 1.815
Long term benefits 600 503
Post-employment benefits . o 134 123
2.699 2,441

Aggregated contributicns in respect of Key Management Personnel to defined contribution pension schemes for the
year ending 31 March 2019 were £134,000 (2018 £123,000).

Trading transactions

The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategqy (BEISYis the principal shareholder and parent of the

British Business Bank plc. British Business Bank plc provides services to BEIS inrelation to some financial assets held by
BEIS. inreturn, British Business Bank recognises management fee income inrelation to the services provided., In addition,
BEIS provided temporary staff to the Group which are recharged. Nuclear Liabilities Fund Limited (NLF)is a related party
by virtue of being contreiled by the Group's ultimate shareholder.

Northern Powerhouse Investments Limited (NPIL), Midlands Engine Investments Limited (MEIL) and Cornwall and Isles
of Scilly Investments Limitad (CloS) are related parties by virtue of having directors who are also directors of British
Business Bank plc and because they are companies owned by the ultimate sharehalder. The Group has provided services
in the year to these companies and recognises management fee income in relation to the services provided,
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During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Income
Management fee _
BEIS 15,307 13.467
NPIL 2,691 2,135
MEIL 1,774 1601
CloS 310 377
Innovate UK 309 _ 204
Nuclear Decommissioning Authority 80 -
East Midlands Early Growth Fund Limited 49 -
Grant income - BEIS 17,461 17.201
Write down of repayable grant received - BEIS 7.291 16,824
- ' ' 45,267 7;.-';'.71;;904
Expenditure
Staff secaonded from BEIS 199 198
Rent payable to BEIS - 621 531
Cther amounts payable to BEIS - = 15
I ' 874 744
Investment transactions
Purchase of UKIIF investment assets from BEIS - e 134,743
- - 134,743
Capital Transactions
Sharesissued to BEIS 125,000 300,000
Grants received from BEIS 4,100 25,000
Loans issued to BEIS (B00,000) -
Repayments received on loansissued to BEIS - 75,000

(395,900) 325,000




148 British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2015 Notes tothe consolidated financial statements

27. Related party transactions (continued)

Amounts outstanding at year end

As at 31 March 2019, the Group was owed £2.8m from BEIS relating to the management fee (2018: £2.9m) and cwed
BEIS £0.4m.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group was owed £2.6m from NPIL (2018: £0.1m), £1.8 from MEIL {(2018: £0.7m}, and £0.7m
from CloS (2018: £0.4m) relating to the management fee.

As at 31 March 2018 the Group was owed £539.9m in unsecured loans by BEIS and owed £97.8m in capital grants to BEIS,

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has made loan commitments ta NPIL of £50m (2018: £50m) and MEIL of £32.5m (2018:
£32.5m). During the year ending 31 March 2019 NPIL had drawn down £5m of its loan commitment. MEIL did not draw
down on their loan commitment during the year,

As at 31 March 2019 the Group owed £600.0m inunsecured loans to NLR

28. Events after the reporting date

On 1 April 201G the Group disposed of its investment assets disclosed as ‘Held for Sale’ at 31 March 2018 to the
Nuclear Liabilities Fund Limited, These assets were dispased of on an arm'slength basis at fair value and the valuation
recorded in the Consalidated Statement of Financial Position equates to the proceeds receivable,

29. Controlling party

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group's parent company and ultimate controlling party is the Secretary of State for
the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. The consolidated financial statements of the Department
for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy are avaiiable from the government departments’ website at GOV.UK.
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Opinion on financial
statements

I have audited the financial
statements of British Business Bank
plc for the year ended 31 March 2019
which comprise:

- the Cempany Statement of
Financial Position,

- the Company Statement of
Changesin Equity;

- the Company Cash Flow Statement;
and

— therelated notes, including the
significant accounting policies.

The financial reparting framework
that has been applied in their
preparationis applicable law and

the Internaticnal Financial Reperting
Standards as adopted by the European
Union and as regards the parent
company financial statements, as
appliedin accordance with the
provisicns of the Companies Act 2006.
I have also audited the information in
the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 68 10 872 thatis described

as having been audited.

In my opinion the financial
statements:

- giveatrue and fair view of the
state of the parent company's
affairs as at 31 March 2019; and

— have been properly prepared in
accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by Eurcpean Union; and

— have been prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006,
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Basis of opinions

I conducted my audit in accordance
with International Standards an
Auditing (ISAs) (UK), My responsibilities
under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements secticn of my
report. Those standards require me
and my staff to comply with the
Financial Reporting Council's Revised
Ethical Standard 2016, tam
independent af the British Business
Bank plcin accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to my
audit and the financial statements in
the UK. My staff and | have fulfilled
our gther ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these reguirements,

| believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to pravide a basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going
concern

I am reguired to conciude cn the
appropriateness of management's

use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit
evidence cbtainad, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the British Business Bank
plc's abiiity to continue as agoing
concern for a period of at least twelve
months from the date of approval of
the financial statements. If | conclude
that a material uncertainty exists,

lam required to draw attention in my
auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements
cr, if such disclosures are inadequate,

ndependent auditor's report
to the members of British
Business Bank plc

to modity my opinion. My conclusicns
are pased on the audit evidence
obtalned up to the date of my
auditor's report, However, future
events or conditions may cause the
entity to cease to continue as a going
concern, I have nothing to reportin
theserespects.

Responsibilities of the
directors for the financial
statements

As explained more fully in the
Directors Responsibilities Statement,
the directors are responsible for:

— the preparaticn of the financial
statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view.

. — suchinternal control as

management determines is
necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements
that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to
fraud or errar,

- assessing the parent's company’s
ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, if applicable,
mattersrelating to going concern
and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liguidate the parent
£ompany or to cease gperations,
or have no realistic alternative
but to doso.
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Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial
statements

My responsibility is to audit and
express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with
applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing {ISAs) (UK).

An auditinvolves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements sufficient
to give reascnable assurance that

the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. Reasonable
assurance is a high levet of assurance,
butis not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with [SAs
(UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud
or errcr and are considered material if,
individually crin the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions

of users taken an the basis of these
financial statements,

Aspart of an auditin accordance with
ISAs (UK), L exercise professional
Judament and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

- identify and assess the risks of
material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether
due tofraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence thatis
sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve
coliusion, forgery, intentianal
omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control,

- obtain anunderstanding of internal
control relevant to the auditin
order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the
purpose cf expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the British

Business Bank plc's internal control. -

- evaluate the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

- evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and content of the
financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the
censolidated financial statements
represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Notes to the cuonsclidated financial statements

| communicate with those charged
with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal
control that | identify during my audit.

Other Information

Directors’ are responsible for the
otherinformation. The other
infarmation comprises information
includedinthe annual report, other
than the parts of the Directors’
Remuneration Report describedin
that report as having been audited,
the financial statements and my
auditor's report thereon. My apinion
on the financial statements does not
cover the ather information and 1do
notexpress any form of assurance
conclusion therean. In connection
with my audit of the financial
statements, my responsibility is to
" read the other information and, in
" doing so, consider whether the ather
information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or my
knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have
performed, | conclude that thereisa
material misstatement of this other
information, | am required toreport
that fact. lhave nothing toreport
in this regard.
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Opinion on other matters
prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

Inmy opinion:

- the part of the Directors’
Remuneraticn Report to be
audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006;

— inlight of the knowledge and
understanding of the company
and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, | have
nctidentified any material
misstatements in the Strategic
Report or the Directors' Report; and

- theinformation givenin the
Strategic Report and Directors’
Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements and those
reparts have been preparedin
accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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Matters onwhichlreport
by exception

| have nothing to reportin respect
of the following matters where the
Companies Act 2006 requires me
toreport to you if, in my opinion:

- adequate accounting recerds
have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for
my audit have not beenreceived
from branches notvisited by my
staff;or

— thefinancial statements and the
part of the directors' remuneration
report to be audited are notin
agreement with the accounting
recards and returns; or

- certaindisclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law
are not made; or

- | have not received all of the
information and explanations
[ require for my audit; or

— acorporate governance statement
has not been prepared by the
parent company.

Hilary Lower

~ (Senior Statutory Auditor)
L 11 July 2019

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditer General
{Statutory Auditor)

National Audit Office

157-197 Buckingham Patace Road
Victoria

London SW1w 9sP
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Company financial statements

Company statement
of financial position

as at 31 March 2019

Company financial statements

2019 2018

Note £000 £000
ASSETS o
Cashand cash equlvalerntsr 7 84,677 37,927
Amounts owed by shareholder b 525,000 -
Trade and other receivables 3 17,860 18,216
Investments _ 4 1,588,982 1,244,260
Property, plant and equipment 3,595 1,561
Intangible assets 4 7
Deferred tax - 283 118
Total assets 2,220,401 1,302, 089
LIABILITIES
Trade and cther payables 5 {139.859) (7,400)
Corporation tax payable (262) -
Loans and other borrowings 6 {604,264)
Provisions . ‘ (300) {120}
Total liabilities (744 685) (7,520}
Net assets 1,475,716 1,294,569
EQUITY
Issued share capital 1,496,408 1,371,408
Retained earnings B (20,692) _(/6,839)
Total equity 1,475,716 1,294,569

The Company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and consequently the statement of
comprehensive income (including the profit and loss account) of the parent company is not presented as part of these
financial statements. The profit of the parent company for the financial period amcunted to £56.2m (2018: loss £28.1m),

The financial statements of the Company were approved by the Board of Directars and zuthorised on 11 July 2018, They

were signed on its behalf by:

mv\:ﬂ_"‘ Keith Morgan

Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 155 t0 158 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Company number 08616013
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Company statement
of changes in equity

as at 31 March 2019
Issued Retained
capital earnings Total
£000C £000 £000
Balance as at1 April 2018 1,371,408 (76,839) 1,294,569
Netincome after tax - 56147 56,147
Total comprehensive income - 56,147 56,147
Issue of ordinary shares - 125,000 - 125,000
Balance at 31 March 2019 1,496,408 (20,692) 1,475,716
Balanceasat1April 2017 7 1,071,408 (48,721) 1,022,687
Net income after tax o ‘ = (28,118) (£8,118)
Total comprehensive income - - (28,118) (28,118}
Issue of ordinary shares 300,000 300,000

Balance at 31 March 2018 1,371,408 (76,839) 1,294,569
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Company cash
flow statement

as at 31 March 20189

Company financial statements

2019 2018

Note £000 £000
Profit/(loss) before tax 56,244 (28,118)
Cash flows from operating activities
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, bad debt and impairments 653 375
Interest expense 5,552 -
Impairment of investments in subsidiary undertakings 4 - 52,665
Purchase of investments in subsidiary undertakings 4 (1,547,839) (320,853)
Disposal of investmentsin subsidiary undertakings 4 1,203,117 -
Corporation tax paid - (60)
Interest paid (1,288) -
Other provision expense 180 -
Movement in trade receivables 3 356 (12,567)
Movement n trade payables 5 132458 1965
Net cash used in operating activities i (150,520) (306,593)
Cash flows from investing activities
Furchases of property, plant and equipment {2730y (1,355)
Netcashused in investing activities (2,730) (1.355)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of new shares _ _ 125,000 300,000
Amounts owed by shareholder 2 (525,000) -
Proceeds from loans received o G 600.000 -
Net cash from financing activities o 200,600 300,000
Netincrease/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 46,750  (7,948)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 37927 45,875
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year 84,677 137,927

The notes on pages 155 to 158 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the Company
financial statements

as at 31 March 2019

1. Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting
The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 ('the Act’),

The Company's financial accounting policies are consistent with those described in the consolidated accounts of the
British Business Bank plc. Disclasures in relation to share capital have not been repeated here as there are no differences
to those provided in the consolidated accounts (note 23).

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are measured at cost less impairment in accordance with AS 27,

These financial statements have been prepared on the geing concern basis as described in the consolidated financial
statements of the British Business Bank plc, and under the historica! cost convention. The financial statements are
presented in pounds steriing, which is the Company's functional currency.

2. Amounts owed by shareholder

2019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts owed by Shareholder 525,000 -

On 31 August 2018 the Company lent £350 million to BEIS, its shareholder, under the terms of a Loan Agreement.
The amount lentis repayable on demand and has a zero-interest rate, in the year ending 31 March 2019, £75 million
was repaid under this Lcan Agreement.

n15January 2019 the Company lent a further £250 million to BEIS under the terms of a separate Loan Agreement.
The amount lent is repayable on demand and has a zero-interestrate. In the year ending 31 March 2019, £nil was repaid
under this Loan Agreement,

3. Trade and other receivables

2019 2018

£000 £000
Amounts receivable within one year _ _
Trade receivables 182 53
Accrued Income 7 375 -
Prepayments 541 385
Amaounts due from Group companies 16,748 15,784
Other receivables ) o “w o 1594
Total trade and other receivables - 17.860 18,216

Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as amortised cost financial assets (2018: loans and receivables) and are
meaasured at amortised cost.
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4, Investments

Notes to the Company financial statements

The Company acts as a holding company for the Group and has the following principal subsidiary undertakings which
affected the Group's results ar net assets:

Subsidiary

BEBE Patient Capital Holdings Limited
British Business Finance Limited (BBFL)

British Business Financial Services Limited (BBFSL)

Nature of Business

Holding company
Manages investment schemes on behalf of the Group.

The Start Up Loans Company (SULCo) which pravides loans
to entrepreneurs is a subsidiary of BBFL

Manages investment schemes on behalf of the Department
for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy

All subsidiary undertakings are wholly-owned and incarporated In the UK, all shareholdings are in the name of

British Business Bank plc.

During the year ended 31 March 2019 the company disposed of its 100% shareholding in British Business Investments
Limited (BBI) to BBB Patient Capital Holdings Limited, which is a 100% owned subsidiary of the Campany. British Business
Investments Limited and British Patient Capital Limited are 100% owned subsidiaries of BBB Patient Capital Holdings

Limited.

See note 24 of the consclidated hinancial statements tor details ot all subsidiary holdings ot the Lompany.

At 31 March 2019

BBI Holdings BBFL Total
Investmentin £000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balance 1,203,117 - 41,143 1,244,260
fnvestmentinyear , - 1,473,839 74,060 1,547,838
Disposalinyear 203117 e - (1,203,117)
Closing Balance - 1,473,839 115,143 1,588,982
At 31 March 2018
BBI BBFL Total
Investmentin £000 £000 £000
Opening balance 820,764 55,308 976,077
Investmentin year 282,353 38,500 320,853
Impairment T T o] o) (52,665)
Closing Balance 1,203,117 41,143 1,244,260
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5. Trade and other payables
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2019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within cne year o
Trade payables 1,181 336
VAT and social security 547 664
Accrued expenditure /7,896 3,077
Amounts due to Group companies 127,708 -
Otherpayables . _ 1,686 2,016
139,014 6,593
Amounts after more than one year
Accrued expenditure - B4 807
139,859 7.400
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.
6. Loans and other borrowings 2015 5018
£000 £00C0
Unsecured loans 604,264 -
Total lsans and other borrowings 604,264 -

On 23 August 2018 the Company received a ioan of £350m from the Nuclear Liabllities Fund which is repayable in Tull cn

23 August 2020.

On 28 December 2018 the Company received a second oan of £250m from the Nuclear Liahilities Fund for the purpose
of making investments on behalf of the Nuclear Liabilities Fund after 1 April 2019, The term of this loanis 4 years with
the value reduced as the Group makes investment payments on the Nuclear Liabilities Fund behalf. Any amount

unutilised at 28 December 2022 will be repaid on this date.

During the year repayments of £nil were made against these unsecured loans,
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/. Related party transactions

During the year under review British Business Bank plc was 100% owned by the UK Government, with the shareholder
being the Secretary of State for the Department for Business, Energy and industrial Strategy (BEIS). The Company has
elected to take the exemption under IAS 24 regarding disclosure of transactions with related parties because the UK
Government has control cver both the Company and other related entities. Compensation paid to key management
personnel is disclosed in the Directers’ Remuneration Report.

The Company trades with Government bodies on an arm's length basis cn commercial terms in line with centractua!
agreements. The main Covernment bodies transacted with are BEIS and the Company's principal subsidiary undertakings
BBB Patient Capital Holdings Limited, British Business Finance Limited (BBFL) and British Business Financial Services
Limited (BBFSL).

The Group's trading and ather capital transactions with BEIS were all effected through the Company and are disclosed
in note 27 of the conselidated financial statements, The Company provided capital to BBB Patient Capital Heldings and
BBFL as shownin note 4. In addition, it made charges to its principal subsidiary undertakings in respect of services
provided on their behalf amounting to £40.1m (2018: £19.8m).

8. Controlling party

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company's ultimate controlling party is the Secretary of State for the Department for
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. The consolidated financial statements of the Department for Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy are available from the government departments website at GOV.UK. Capies of the group financial
statements of the British Business Bank plc are available from Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy, Cardiff CF14 3UZ.
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8ritish Business Bank plc is a public limited company registered in England dand Wales (registration number 08616013, registered office at Steel City Hause
west Street Shetfield 51 2GQ). As the holding Company of the Group operating under the trading name of British Business Bank, it is a development bank
wholly owned by HM Government which is not authorised or requlated by the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) or the Financial Conduct Autharity (FLA)

It uperates under its own trading name through a number of subsidiaries, one of which is authorised and regulated by the FCA. British Business Bank plc and
its subsidiary entities are not banking institutions and do not operate as such. Accordingly, none of the British Business Bank group of companies takes deposits
or offers banking services, A complete legal structure chart far British Business Bank plc and its subsidiaries can be found at www.british business bank.co.uk




